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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

. Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement

. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation

. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

Philippines

. SEC Identification Number

147584
BIR Tax Identification Code
043-002-727-376

. Address of principal office

Unit 1705, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City

Postal Code

1605

. Registrant's telephone number, including area code

(02) 632-7714

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

June 21, 2018, 3 o'clock P.M., Valle Verde Country Club, Inc., Capt. Henry Javier Street,
Pasig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
Jun 5, 2018

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor
Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
Address and Telephone No.

Unit 1705, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):



Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
1,990,480,889

Common
13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to

the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

n Premiere
! Horizon

\ Invigorating the Countryside

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
PHA

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders’ Jun 21, 2018

Meeting

Type (Annual or

Special) ANNUAL

Time 3:00 P.M.

Venue Valle Verde Country Club, Inc. Pasig City
Record Date May 15, 2018

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books

Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

Filed on behalf by:
Name Raul Ma. Anonas
Designation CIO/ COO



June 1, 2018

Securities and Exchange Commission

Secretariat Building, PICC Complex

R
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Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City o o

Attention:

Re:

Gentlemen:

Dir. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.

Market and Securities Regulation Dept.

2018 Definitive Information Statement

We respectfully submit the Amended Definitive Information Statement of Premiere
Horizon Alliance Corporation (“PHA”) in relation to the conduct of its annual stockhclders’
meeting to be held on June 21, 2018, at 3:00 p.m. at the Valle Verde Country Club, Capt.
Henry Javier Street, Pasig City. Incorporated therein are the changes and comments of the
Securities and Exchange Commission on PHA's Definitive Information Statement.

SEC Comments

Remarks

Provide SEC Form 17-C Complied with. Attached to

the Amended DIS is the
coply of SEC Form 17-C.

Management Report - High and Low | Please see page 38 of the
Prices as of March 31, 2018 and latest | Amended DIS.
practicable trading date

L-SEC (DIS5 2018)

Unit E-1705, 17th Floor, East Tower,

Very truly yours,

MA. FEL GAWANG

Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605

Metro Manila, Philippines Tel No. 6327714/6327715
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-iS
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box: ' Sl 0 1 f\ag

[ 1Preliminary Information Statement

p LI .
[X1 Definitive Information Statement . C@-yu Q‘

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter Premiere Hotizon Alllance Corporation
3 Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
4, SEC Identification Number 147584
5. BIR Tax Identification Code 043-002-727-376
B. Unit 1705 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Bldg.,
Exchange Rd., Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605
Address of principal office Postal Code
7. Registrant’s telephene number, including area code__(02) - 632-7715
8. June 21, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. at the Valle Verde Country Club, Pasiq City
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders
9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first fo be sent or given to security holders
May 29, 2018.
10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Narne of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor : Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation

Address and Telephone No. : Unit 1705 East Tower Philippine Stock Exchange Bldg.,
Exchange Rd., Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605; Tel. no. {02)-832-7715

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants}:

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Sfock
Qutstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common 1,990,480,889

1,648,692,000 listed
12 Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange - common shares



PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION
Unit 1705, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605

NOTICE OF AN CKHOLDERS' M
To All Stockholders:

Please be advised that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of PREMIERE HORIZON
ALLIANCE CORPORATION will be held on Thursday, June 21, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. at the Valle
Verde Country Club, Capt. Henry Javier Street, Pasig City, Philippines.

The following is the agenda of the meeting:

Call to Order

Proof of Notice and Certification of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on October 26, 2017
Management Report & Audited Financial Statements for Year Ended December 31, 2017
Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors and Management

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other Matters

Adjournment

NGOG RGN

For purposes of the meeting, stockholders of record as of May 15, 2018 are entitied to notice and to
vote at the said meeting. Registration for the said meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. For convenience in
regislering your attendance, please have available some form of identification, such as, a driver's
license, voter's 1D, TIN card, SSS card or passport.

if you will not be able to attend the meeting but would like to be represented thereat, you may
submit your proxy form, duly signed and accomplished, to the Corporate Secretary at the
Corporation's principal office located at Unit 1706 East Tower Philippine Stock Exchange Bldg.,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City no later than June 11, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. Beneficial
owners of shares lodged with the Philippine Depositary Trust Corporation or registered under the
name of a broker, bank or other fiduciary allowed by law must, in addition to the required 1.D.,
present a notarized certification from the owner of record that he is the beneficial owner, indicating
thereon the number of shares. Corporate shareholders shall iikewise be required to present a
notarized secretary's cerlificate attesting to the authority of its representative to attend and vote at
the stockholders’ meeting. In accordance with Rule 20.11.2.18 of the 2015 Implementing Rules and
Regulations of the Securities and Regulation Code, proxies executed by brokers shall be
accompanied by a certification under oath stating that before the proxy was given to the broker, he
had duly obtained the written consent of the persons in whose account the shares are held.

Validation of proxies will be held not later than June 14, 2018 at the Company's principal office.

Makati City, Metro Manila, May 25, 2018.

ANA MARIA . KATIGBAK
Assistant Corporate Secretary



ANNEX “A"

Details and Rationale

1. Call to order

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr., will call the meeting to
order.

2. Proof of notice and certification of quorum

The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Roberto V. San Jose, will certify that coples of this Notice have been
sent to all stockholders of record as of May 15, 2018, and whether the attendees represented at the
meeting hold a sufficient number of shares for quorum to exist for the valid fransaction of business.

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on October 28,
2017

Copies of the draft minutes have been distributed together with the Notice of Stockholders’ Meeting
and Information Statement.

The stockhoiders will be requested to approve the draft minutes. The following is the proposed
resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting of Premiere
Horizon Alliance Corporation held on October 26, 2017 be, as it is hereby, approved.”

4, Management Report & Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 3N,
2017

The President, Mr. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica Jr., will present the report of Management to
discuss initiatives undertaken and challenges faced by the Company in 2017 and share his
personal perspective of the Company's future,

The Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Manolo B. Tuason, will present the financial results and the audited
financiai statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. The audited financial statements were
prepared by the Company’s independent auditors, SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. and approved by the
Company's Board of Directors. {n compliance with the regulatory requirements, the audited financial
statements have also been submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission and Bureau of
Iinternal Revenue.

Copies of the Management Report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 have been distributed with the Information Statement.

Questions will be entertained from the stockholders after the presentation.

The stockholders will be requested to approve the Management Report as presented by the
President, and the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. The
following is the proposed resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the annual Management Report as presented by the Presidont and
the Corporation's audited financial statements for year ended December 31, 2017 be,
as it is hereby, approved.”

5. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors and Management
The Company's performance was the result of the acts, contracts, resolutions and actions of the

Board of Directors and Management of the Company, and the stockholders will be requested to ratify
the same. The following is the proposed resolution:



“RESOLVED, that ail acts, contracts, resolutions and actions of the Board of
Directors and Management of the Corporation from the date of the last annual
stockholders’ meeting up to the present be, as they are hereby, approved, ratified and
confirmed.”

6. Election of Directors
Eor Regular Directors

AUGUSTO ANTONIO C. SERAFICA, JR.
GEORGE EDWIN Y. SYCIP

RAUL MA. F. ANONAS

WINSTON A. CHAN

RAMON A. RECTO

VICTOR Y. LM

SISO M. LAO

Noohuh

For independent Directors

8. ARSENIO BENJAMIN E. SANTOS
9. RAMON G. SANTOS

Voting may be done in person or by proxy. Proxy forms have been distributed to all stockholders of
record together with this Notice. Signed and accomplished proxy forms are required to be submitted
not later than 5:00 p.m. of June 11, 2018 and shall be validated no iater than June 14, 2018, Votes
may be cumulated as provided in the Corporation Code.

7. Appointment of External Auditors

The proposal is to appoint Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co., as the Company’s external auditor for the
current year. The following is the proposed resoiution:

“RESOLVED, that Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co., be appointed as the external auditor of
the Company for the current year 2018-2019.”

8. Other Matters
Stockhoiders may propose to discuss other issues and matters.
9. Adjournment

After all matters in the agenda have been taken up, the Chairman shall entertain a motion to adjourn
the meeting.
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INFORMATION STATEMENT
{SEC FORM 20-1S)

PART I.
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Security Holders.

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (the “Company” or *PHA") wil be holding its annual
stockholders’ meeting on June 21, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. at the Valle Verde Couniry Club, Pasig City,
pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors at a special meeting held on March 12, 2018.

The complete mailing address of the principal office of is Unit 1705 East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Bldg., Exchange Rd., Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

The approximate date when the information statement wilt be first sent to security holders will be on
May 29, 2018.

Item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

There are no matters to be taken up during the annual stockholders’ meeting with respect to which
the law allows the exercise of appraisal right by any dissenting stockholder. The Corporation Code
limits the exercise of the appraisal right only in the following instances:

a. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of share, or of authorizing preferences in
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence (Section 81);

b. In case of the sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all
or substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 81);

¢. In case of merger or consolidation (Section 81},
d. In case of investments in another corperation, business or purpose (Section 42).

Since the matters to be taken up do not include any of the foregoing, the appraisal right will not be
available.

However, if at any time after this Information Statement has been sent out, an action which may give
rise to the right of appraisal is proposed at the meeting, any stockholder who votes against the
proposed action and who wishes to exercise such right must make a written demand, within thirty (30)
days after the date of the meeting or when the vote was taken, for the payment of the fair market
value of his shares. Upon payment, he must surrender his certificates of stock. No payment shall be
made to any dissenting stockholder unfess the Company has unrestricted retained earnings in its
books to cover such payment.

item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

The directors, officers, nominees for directors and their associates do not have a substantial interest,
direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon in the stockholders’
meeting other than their re-election to their respective positions.




The Company has not been informed in writing by any person of any intention to oppose any action to
be taken at the meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporafion ({the “Company” or ‘PHA") will be helding its annual
stockholders' meeting on June 21, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. at the Valle Verde Country Club, Pasig City.

The complete mailing address of the principal office of is Unit 1705 East Tower, Phifippine Stock
Exchange Bidg., Exchange Rd., Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

The approximate date when the information statement will be first sent to security holders will be on
May 24, 2018.

Itemn 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

The record date to determine the stockholders entitled to notice and to vote at the meeting is on May
15, 2018.

As of May 15, 2018, there are 1,990,480,889 unclassified common shares entitled to notice and to
vote at the meeting, of which 1,480,559,189 shares are registered under Filipinos and 123,944,101
shares are registered under foreign ownership. Each common share is entitled to one vote. The

Company has 1,648,592,000 common shares listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange
(“PSE").

The election of the board of directors for the current fiscal year will be taken up and all stockholders
entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy. The stockholders have the right to cumulate their
votes in favor of their chosen nominees for director in accordance with Section 24 of the Corporation
Code. A stockholder may vote such number of shares registered in his name as of the record date for
as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one
candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his
shares shall equai, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he
shall see fit. The total nurnber of votes cast by such stockholder should not exceed the number of
shares owned by him as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied by the whole number of

directors to be elected. There is no stated condition precedent to the exercise of cumulative voting
rights,

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners of more than 5% of
voting securities as of the record date.

Common | PCD Nominee | PCD Nominee Filipino 1,480,559,189 74.38%
Corporation Corp. is the
G/F Makati record owner
Stock
Exchange
6767 Ayala




Avenue

Makati City
Stockholder
Common | PCD Nominee | PCD Nominee Foreign 123,944,101 06.23%
Corporation Corp. is the
G/F Makatfi record owner
Stock
Exchange *The Corporation
6767 Ayala has no
Avenue information of

Makati City any beneficial
owner holding
Stockholder more than 5%
interest in shares
lodged under
PCD Nominee
Corp.

{(2) Security Ownership of Management

The following are the security ownership of the directors and executive officers of the Company as of
May 15, 2018:

nShls)

Fo el i BT 1?'1-t1>-'-=" A Ak SR T s T e N . i e R
Common | Augusto Antonio C. 114,070,001 (D&1) Filipino 5.73%
Serafica, Jr.,
Chairman and
President
Common | Siso M. Lao, Director 71,666,667 (D), Filipino 8.96%
106,721,807 (i) lodged
with PCD
Common | George Edwin Y. Sycip, | 2,010,000 (D) Filipino 0.1%
Director
Common | Raul Ma. Anonas, 21,250,001(D) Filipino 1.07%
Director
Common | Victor Y. Lim, 83,000 (&) Filipino 0.00%
Director
Common | Winston A. Chan, 2,500 (D) Filipino 0.00%
Director
Common | Ramon A. Recto, 1(D) Filipino 0.00%
Director
Common | Arsenio Benjamin E. 2,500 (D) Filipino 0.00%
Santos,
Independent Director
Common | Ramon G. Santos, 2,500 (D) Filipino 0.00%
independent Director
Common | Manolo P. Tuason, 700,000 (1) Filipino 0.04%
SVPI/CFC
Total 15.9%
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(3) Voting trust Holders of 5% or More

There are no persons holding five percent (5%) or more of a class under a voting trust or
similar arrangement.

{4) Changes in Control

There has been no change in control in year 2017 and as of the date of this Information
Statement.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers
A Directors and Key Corporate Officers

For information required of Directors and Corporate Officers and the nominees for directors, please

refer to Annex “A.” None of the directors or officers are connected with any government agency or its
instrumentalities. A copy of the Certification attesting thereto is attached Annex “B.”

Copies of the Certifications of the Independent Directors are attached as Annexes “C” and “C-1.”

The nominees for the Board of Directors of the Corporation for the current year pre-screened by the
Nominations Committee are the following:

Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr.

George Edwin Y. Sycip

Winston A. Chan

Siso M. Lao

Raul Ma. F. Anonas

Victor Y. Lim

Ramon A. Recto

Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos (Independent)
Ramon G. Santos (Independent)

All nominees are Filipino citizens. The aforementioned nominees are expected to attend the annual
stockholders’ meeting.

Nemination and Election of Independent Directors

The incumbent Independent Directors are: Arsenic Benjamin E. Santos and Ramon G. Santos. The
incumbent directors have certified that they possess ail the qualification and none of the
disqualifications provided under the Securities and Regulation Code (“SRC”).

The following are the details of the nominations for Independent Director received and approved by
the Nominations Commitfse:

Nominee for independent Person Submitting the Relation of Nominee to the
Director Nomination Nominator
Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos Raul Ma. F. Anonas None
Ramon G. Santos Raul Ma. F. Anonas None

In compliance with the Corporation’s Revised Manual of Corporate Governance, the Nominations and
Compensation Committee, how known as the Corporate Governance Committee, was constituted and

members thereof were duly elected for the year 2017 consisting of Ramon G. Santos, as Chairman,
Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos and Victor Y. Lim as members.



The Corporate Governance Committee was created: to accept and pre-screen nominees for the
election of the Board Direclors as welt as Independent Directors conformably with the criteria
prescribed under existing SEC rules and the Corporation's Revised Manual of Corporate Governance;,
to prepare and make available to the SEC and the stockholders before the stockholders' meeting a
final list of candidates; to establish a formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on
executive remuneration, and for fixing the remuneration packages of corporate officers and directors.
The Corporation complies with the requirements of Rule 38 of the SRC on the nomination and
election of Independent Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee has determined certain criteria for nomination to the Board
including the following guidelines: the nature of the businesses of the corporations which the nominee
is a director; the age of the director; number of directorship/active memberships and officership in
other organizations; and possible conflicts of interest.

Significant Employees

Ricardo S. Consuniji lli
Senior Vice President-Operations

Mr. Bombit Consunji (54yo) has over 15 years' experience in construction and real estate. He has
over 20 years experience in operations management, transition management, mergers &
acquisitions. He has an in-depth knowledge and experience in the BPO industry. Prior to Premiere
Horizon and Goshen Land, Mr. Consunji was the President of Kital Philippines Corporation. He was
also the Director for Facilities and Reai Estate and Shared Services of Sitel. He also worked as Site
Director of eTelecare Global Selutions. He was a General Manager in Philcom Corporation seconded
from PLDT. He also worked as a Consultant in CAL SAE in Richmond, USA. He was also the
Principal Engineer at the Public Estates Authority.

Mr. Consunji has a Master of Business Administration and Public Management Certificate from the
Stanford Graduate School of Business. He has a BS in Civil Engineering from the University of the
Philippinas, Diliman.

Manolo B. Tuason
Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Manolo Tuason (64yo) has over forty years experience in the field of financial management and
backroom operations that include management information system, treasury management and
control, financial & management accounting, auditing, administration and personnel management.
Has had experience in financial consultancy in setting-up of automated financial and accounting
system, organizational re-structuring, financial accounting and procedures, formulation of policies and
procedures to strengthen internat control.

Currently, he is working as Chief Financial Officer and Director of 1TQC Enterprise Resources, Inc.
Previously he worked as Financial Consultant in Guevent Investment Development Corporation and
Seed Capital Ventures, Inc. Also he became the President of Borough Financing Corporation,

Ana Liza G. Aquino
Vice President

Ana Liza (45y0) graduated with a degree in Management Economics from the country’s number one
Jesuit-run university, Ateneo de Manilz, on a full-scholarship.

Since then, she has worked in various industries performing different roles. She gained extensive
experience in operations and human resources management while she was in the |T Qutsourcing
Industry. She had gained in-depth knowledge and skills in data conversion processes and software

development life cycles. Along with this, she also managed client relationships for offshore projects,
including those in the United States.



Today, she currentiy works in a publicly listed investment holding company, Premiere Horizon Alliance
Corporation, as Vice President under its Corporate Finance department. She also handles the
Corporate HR and Corporate Governance roles of the company. She is aiso involved in Subsidiary
Operations for the company’s real estate and alternative technology businesses.

Liza finished her Executive MBA at the Asian Institute of Management in December 2017 and was a
consistent Dean’s Lister. She also represented AlM at the Global Network Week where she attended
the Behavioral Science of Management course at the Yale University School of Management in June
2017.

On her spare time, she visits new places and her favorite destinations. She believes that traveling is
one of the best educations a person can get. She’s an avid fan of books and photography, and good
food.

Joseph Jeeben R. Segui
Assistant Vice President

Mr. Joseph Jeeben Segui (30yc) graduated as Summa Cum tLaude from the University of the
Philippines, Diliman with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Mathematics. Jeeben, as his friends call
him, has an extensive experience in business analysis, deal making, business development, and
corporate finance and has aided various companies in achieving their profit and investment targets.
He is previously connected with Mitchell Madison Group as Business Analyst; and Asian Alliance
Investment Corporation as Deal Manager.

Today, Jeeben is the Assistant Vice-President — Corporate Finance of Premiere Horizon Alliance
Corporation (PHA}, a publicly listed investment holding company based in the Philippines. Among his
notable roles in PHA are to analyze investment opportunities, to conduct business and financial
reviews, and to design projections, plans, structures, and terms for investors and partners.

Family Relationship

There is no family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among
directors, executive officers or persons nominated or chosen to become directors or executive officers
of the Corporation.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Corporation is not a party to any legal proceedings. It is not involved in any pending legal
proceedings with respect to any of its properties. It is not involved in any claims or lawsuits involving
damages that may materially affect it or its subsidiaries.

However, the Corporation’s subsidiaries are invoived in the following material legal issues:

(a) Digiwave Solutions Inc. (DSI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Is currently
involved in two (2) pending issues:

{1) Civil Case No. Q-10-68354 filed by E-MPA Fires Company against Blue Skies Philko, Inc.
and DSl for Specific Performance and Damages with the Regional Trial Court (*RTC") of
Quezon City, Branch 224, The case is still in the trial stages.

Digiwave Solutions Inc. is the defendant in a civil case for damages filed by E-MPA Fires
docketed as E-MPA Fires vs. DSI, Q-10-68354 for Specific Performance and Damages
with the National Capital Regional Trial Court - Quezon City, Branch 88. The defense is

scheduled to present its next witness, Atty. Stephen E. Cascolan, on the next hearing
date

(2) Civil Case No. 019315 filed by Rosemarie M. Lipana against DS| for a sum of money with
prayer for the issuance of a Writ of Preliminary Attachment with the Metropolitan Trial
Court Branch 68 of Pasig City. The case is still in the trial stages.



(3)

Digiwave Solutions Inc. is the defendant in Civil Case No. 019315 filed by Rosemarie M.
Lipana for a sum of money with prayer for the issuance of a Writ of Preliminary
Attachment with the Metropolitan Trial Court Branch 68 of Pasig City. The proceedings
before the MTC has been suspended due to the filing of a Petition for Review before the
RTC of Pasig City. The Petition for Review questions the Court’s order disallowing DS! to
present its witnesses because of its failure to file the Judicial Affidavits of its withesses.
The respondents have repeatedly failed to file their comment/answer to the Petition. At
the last hearing on 19 April 2018, the Ms. Lipana, again, failed to appear. The next
scheduled hearing is on 07 June 2018.

(b) Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI), a 55% owned subsidiary of the Company, is currently
involved in four {(4) pending matters:

(M

)

@)

(4)

Petition for Cancellation of Entry No. 328630-36-211 in Transfer Certificate of Title
{(“TCT") No. T-66332 filed by Rosaline N. Abance against National Grid Corp., the
Register of Deeds of the Province of Benguet, Solicitor General, Land Registration
Authority and Goshen Land Capital, Inc., with the Regional Trial Court, First Judicial
Region, Branch 8, La Trinidad, Benguet. GLCI is a party-in-interest due fo its existing
project at the Summerfields Subdivision, covered by the TCT. The next hearing is set on
September 14, 2017 for the purpose of terminating presentation of evidence by the
parties.

Petition for Cancellation of Entry No. 328630-36-211 in Transfer Certificate of Title
(“TCT") No. T-86332 filed by Rosaline N. Abance against National Grid Corp., the
Register of Deeds of the Province of Benguet, Solicitor General, Land Registration
Authority and Goshen Land Capital, Inc., with the Regional Trial Court, First Judicial
Region (*FJR"), Branch 8, La Trinidad, Benguet. GLCI is a party-in-interest due to its
existing project at the Summerfields Subdivision, covered by the TCT. The next hearing
is on May 22, 2018, for the manifestation of National Grid Corp. on its
Comment/Opposition on the reduction of the annotated easement. Meanwhile, a
negotiation on the claims of Ms. Abance against GLCI is being made. It will be presented
fo the court as compromise.

Judicial Titling filed by Remedios Sucdad, Jenniclaire S. Bartolome, Sunshine
Villagracia, Peterson A. Sucdad, Mark Anthony A. Sucdad, Cedric Sucdad, Antonio P.
Sucdad, Romeo Abenes, and Gloria Abenes, with the RTC Branch 8 of La Trinidad,
Benguet for the Registration of Parcels of Land under Act No. 496 as Amended by P.D.
1529. GLCl is a party-in-interest due to an existing Memorandum of Agreement with the
lot-owner of the GLCl-owned Blue Ridge Mountains Project. We are yet to receive order
of hearing date for the opposition filed against our application of titling.

Judicial Titing fled by Remedios Sucdad, Jenniclaire S. Bartolome, Sunshine
Villagracia, Peterson A. Sucdad, Mark Anthony A. Sucdad, Cedric Sucdad, Antonio P.
Sucdad, Romeo Abenes, and Gloria Abenes, with the RTC Branch 8 of La Trinidad,
Benguet for the Registration of Parcels of Land under Act No. 496 as Amended by P.D.
1529. GLCI is a party-in-interest due to an existing Memorandum of Agreement with the
iot-owner of the GLCI-owned Blue Ridge Mountains Project. The cases were re-raffied to
the following courts: (i) LRC Case Number 10-LRC-0033 ~ Branch 10, RTC, FJR, La
Trinidad, Benguet (Remedios Sucdad, et al.), (i) LRC Case Number 10-LRC-0036 -
Branch 8, RTC, FJR, La Trinidad, Benguet (Remedios Sucdad, et al); (i} LRC Case
Number 10-LRC-0034 — Branch 10, RTC, FJR, La Trinidad, Benguet {Antonio P.
Sucdad); (iv) LRC Case Number 10-LRC-0035 — Branch 62, RTC, FJR, La Trinidad,
Benguet (Romeo Abenes); and (v) LRC Case Number 10-LRC-0037 — Branch 8, RTC,
FJR, La Trinidad, Benguet (Gloria Abenes). The current issue being resolved is the
Opposition filed by a certain Leuterio claiming ownership of land covering an area of
20,000 sq. m. within the title application. The case has been temporarily archived
pending receipt by the court of a joint survey to determine the exact technical
description/location of the portion claimed by Leuterio. GLCI's technical findings



compared with the geodetic description submitted by Leuterio are in conflict with each
other. This matter is currently being resolved by the parties.

The outcome of these lawsuits or claims cannot be presently determined. In the opinion of
Management and its legal counsel, the eventual liability from these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation.

Furthermore, its director, George Edwin Y. SyCip is involved in the following legal proceedings:

(1) Victory Fund Limited, Harvest All Investment Limited, Bondeast Private Limited, and Hedy S.
C. Yap Chua (collectively, “Complainants”), who are minority stockholders of Alliance Select
Foods International, Inc. (“Alliance”) filed a complaint against Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Dee,
Joanna Y. Dee-Laurel, George E. SyCip, Teresita Ladanga, Grace Dogillo, Arak Ratborihan,
Raymond See, Marie Grace Vera Cruz, and Antonio Pacis (collectively, the "Respondents”)
who were or still are directors andfor officers of Alliance, for Syndicated Estafa and
Falsification of Public Documents before the Office of the City Prosecutor in Manila (*OCP-
Manila®). The OCP-Manila dismissed both complaints (ie., Syndicated Estafa and
Falsification of Public Documents charges, and the Perjury counter-charge) through a Joint
Resolution dated July 12, 2016. The Complainants then filed a Pefition for Partial Review
dated August 29, 2016 in the Depariment of Justice (*DOJ") which was denied in its Joint
Resolution dated March 31, 2017.

The Complainants filed a Motion for Partial Reconsideration dated April 17, 2017, which the
DQJ granted in its Joint Resclution dated March 27, 2018. The DQJ affirmed the dismissal of
the Complainants' charges of Syndicated Esfafa and Falsification of Public Documents
against the Respondents but found probable cause to charge the Dees, George SyCip,
Teresita Ladanga, Grace Dogillo, and Arak Ratborihan with simple Esfafa under paragraph
2(a), Article 315 of the Revised Penal Code.

Mr, SyCip received the March 27, 2018 Resolution on April 5, 2018. He has timely filed his
Motion for Reconsideration on April 15, 2018 to dispute the factual and legal findings of the
DOJ. The Motion for Reconsideration is currently pending resolution.

(2) On February 13, 2014, Dr. Albert Hong Hin Kay acting in his personal capacity and ON behalf
of three foreign corporations who are all stockholders of Alliance Select Foods International,
Inc. (“Alliance”), filed a complaint against Mr. SyCip and Alliance’s Assistant Corporate
Secretary, Afty. Annsley Bangkas, for alleged violation of the complainant corporations' right
to inspect under Secs. 74 and 75, in relation to Sec. 144, of the Corporation Code. The case
was titled Harvest Alf Investment Limited, ef al. v. Annsfey Bangkas, et al, initially docketed
as |.S. No. XV-14-INV-14B-00503 at the Office of the City Prosecutor in Pasig (“OCP Pasig®}.
Thereafter, the same foreign corporations filed on March 11, 2014 another criminal case for
alleged violation of the right to Inspect, this time against the following members of the Board:
Mr. SyCip, Jonathan and Alvin Dee, and |barra Malenzo. The case was titled Harvest Alf
investment Limited, et al. v. Gecrge SyCip, et al, initially docketed as I.S. No. XV-14-INV-
14C-00974, at the OCP-Pasig. These cases were consolidated and transferred to the DOJ
and redocketed as NPS Docket Nos. XVI-INV-15B-00033 (formerly 1.S. No. XV-14-INV-14B-
00503) to 00034 (formerly 1.S. No. XV-14-INV-14C-00974). These cases were initially
dismissed; however, on December 4, 2017, the DOJ reversed its previous rulings through its
Resolution dated December 4, 2017 and found probable cause to indict Mr, SyCip and his co-
respondents. Mr. SyCip filed a Motion for Reconsideration dated December 13, 2017 which is
currently pending resolution,

At the same time, Albert and Hedy Yap-Chua filed a petition for inspection of Alliance’s
corporate books and records before the Regional Trial Court of Pasig on May 12, 2014, The
petition, titled Hedy S. C. Yap-Chua, et al. v. George E. SyCip, et al, is docketed as
Commercial Case No. 14-219 (the "Civil Inspection Case”) and is currently pending before
Branch 161 of the Regional Trial Court of Pasig. The petition for ingpection is also based on
the same Inspection Request in the abovestated criminal cases.
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As a result of the issuance of the DOJ Resolution dated December 4, 2017, two (2)
Informations for violation of Sec. 74 in relation to Sec. 144 of the Corporation Code were filed
in January 2018 before the Metropolitan Trial Court of Pasig (‘MeTC Pasig’). The criminal
cases, titted People of the Philippines v. Annsley Bangkas, et al., are docketed as Criminal
Case Nos. M-PSG-18-00148-CR to 00149-CR and were raffied to Branch 72 of the MeTC-
Pasig. The MeTC-Pasig issued an Order dated February 23, 2018 finding that there is
probable cause for the issuance of warrants of arrest against ail of the accused including Mr.
SyCip and directed the issuance of such warrants. However, the trial court failed to rule on a
previously filed Motion to Suspend Due to a Prejudicial Question in relation to the Civil
Inspection Cass. At the hearing scheduled on Aprii 10, 2018, the parties were given time to
comment on pending incidents in the case.

Notwithstanding the existence of the legal proceedings involving Mr. SyCip, the Company does not
find the same to be material to the evaluation of his abflity or integrity to occupy the position of director
for the current year, and to be elected again as director for the year 2018-2018.

Other than the above mentioned cases, the Corporation is neither aware of any legal proceedings of
the nature required to be disclosed under Part 1, paragraph (C) of Annex C, SRC Rule 12 nor is it
aware of the occurrence of any of the following events, which are material to an evaluation of the
ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer or control

person of the Corporation during the past five (5) years and up to the date of this Information
Statement:

1. any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which a director, person nominated
to become a director, executive officer, promoter, or control person of the Corporation was a
general partner or executive officer either at the time of bankruptcy or within two (2) years
prior that time;

2. any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being
subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and
other offenses of any director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer,
promoter, or control person;

3. any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining,
barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement in any type of business, securities,
commodities or banking activities a director, person nominated to become a director,
executive officer, promoter or control person of the Corporation; and

4. judgment against a director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer,
promoter, or control person of the Corporation found by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law,
and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The Corporation, in the regular and ordinary course of business, has entered into transactions with
assoclates, affiliates, subsidiaries and other related parties principally consisting of cash advances
and reimbursement of expenses, guarantees and inter-company charges.

Related Party Transactions

1. Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control or are controlled by or under common confra! with the Company, including holding
compahnies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, are related parties of the Company.
Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management
personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family

of these individuals, and companies assoclated with these individuals also constitute related
parties.
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The Company discloses the nature of the related party refationship and information about the
transactions and outstanding balances necessary for an understanding of the potential effect
of the relationship on the consolidated financial statements, including the amount of
outstanding balances and its terms and conditions including whether they are secure, and the
nature of the consideration to be provided in settiement. The Company has not recognized

any impairment losses on amount due from related parties for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016.

Please refer to page 51 of the Company's 2017 consolidated audited financial statements
attached herein as Annex "D" for the Company's transactions and account balances with
related parties done in the normal course of business.

2. In 2008, the Company has entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) with various
landowners for the development of certain lots. Pursuant to such JVA, the landowners shall
contribute the title and the interest to the lots and the Company shali provide the necessary
funding and expertise to undertake and complete the implementation of the residential project
development as development manager, and as exclusive marketing agent of the project. The
Company shail pay the landowners their share in net proceeds after deducting a marketing
fee equivalent to 15% of the selling price. The Company recognizes the share of the

landowners as liability upon sale of the related real estate inventories. These amounts are
payable on demand.

3. Compensation of the Company's key management personnel consists of short-term
employee benefits amounting to Php 23.86 million, Php 37.82 million, Php24.50 million, and
Php 12.80 million, in 2018, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. There are no post-
employment benefits in 2017, 2016, and 2015. There are no agreements between the
Company and any of its directors and key officers providing for benefits upon termination of

employment, except for such benefits to which they may be entitled under the Company's
retirement plan.

Resignation of Directors

No director has declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Direcltors since the date of the last
annual meeting because of a disagreement with the Corporation on any matter relating to the

Corporation’s operations, policies or practices, and the required disclosures relevant to the existence
thereof.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following table is a summary of all plan and non-plan compensation awarded to, earmned by, paid
ta, or estimated to be paid to, directly or indirectly, the Chief Executive Officer (*CEQ"), the four (4)
most highly compensated executive officers other than the CEO who served as executive officers,

and all officers and directors as a Group as of May 15, 2018 (in¢luding the preceding two fiscal years,
and current fiscal year — estimated only):

Name / Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Other Annual
Compensation

Teofilo A. Henson 2015 2,470,000.00
Chairman 2016 2,660,000.00
2017 2,660,000.00
2018 1,610,000.00
Augusto C. Serafica 2015 4,810,000.00
President & CEC 2016 5,180,000.00
2017 5,180,000.00

2018 5,180,000.00
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Raul Ma. F. Anonas 2016 3,510,000.00

EVP & COO 2017 3,600,000.00
2018 3,780,000.00
Manolo B. Tuason 2016 2,470,000.00
SVP & CFO 2017 2,500,000.00
2018 2.660,000.00
Andres A. del Rosario 2016 2,470,000.00
SVP & Treasurer 2017 2,500,000.00
2018 2,660,000.00
AnaLiza G. Aquino 2016 1,560,000.00
Vice President 2017 1,600,000.00
2018 1,680,000.00
Executive Officers 2016 4,992 ,000.00
Aggregate amount 2017 5,542,000.00
{Unnamed) 2018 2,170,000.00
Directors 2015 1,350,000.00
2016 1,350,000.00
2017 £99,998.00
2018 1,298,899.66 Estimated

Compensation of Directors

Under Section 30 of the Corporation Code, in the absence of any provision in the By-Laws of the
Corporation, the directors shall not receive any compensation as such directors, except for reasonable
per diem aliowance (an average of Php 25,000.00 per meeting for each director) for their attendance at
each board meeting. Any such compensation, other than per diems, may be granted to directors by the
vote of stockholders representing at least a majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or
special meeting. Provided, further, that the total yearly compensation shall not be more than ten percent
(10%) of the net income before income tax of the Corporation during the preceding year.

Since the date of their elections, the directors have served without compensation. The directors did not
receive any amount or form of compensation for committee participation or special assignments. As of

this date, no standard or other arrangements have been made in respect of director's compensation
aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

There are no other arrangements pursuant to which any director of the Corporation was
compensated, or is to be compensated, directiy or indirectly, during the Corporation’s ast compieted
fiscal year and the ensuing year, for any service provided as a director,

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements
The executive officers of the Corporation are cavered by employment contracts corresponding to their

respective job descriptions. There are no amangements for compensation or payment from the

Corporation in the event of a resignation, retirement or termination of the executive officer's
employment or change in contro! of the Corporation.

Warrants and Options

There are no options andfor warrants held by the Corporation’s directors and key executives.
item 7. Independent Public Accountants
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The Corporation's current independent public accountant recommended for re-election for the current
year is SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co. ("SGV & Co."). Mr. Jaime F. Del Rosario is the engagement
partner assigned by SGV & Co. to lead the audit of the Corporation’s financial statements. SGV was
the auditor for the previous fiscal year ended 2017.

In_ compliance with the General Requirements of SRC Ruie 68, ag amended, under Part 3(b)(ivi(ix),

which requires that Independent Auditors or in the case of an audit firm, the signing partner_of the
regulated entities shall be rotated after every five (5) years of the engagement and a two {2) year
cooling off period shall be observed in the re-arrangement of the same signing partner of _individual
auditor, the Corporation has engaged SGV & Co. as its external auditor for the past five (5) vears.
with Mr. Det Rosario as the new Partner In-Charge beginning the audit year 2016. The previous
Partner In-Charge was Jose Pepito Zabat lll, which handled the audit from year 2011 up to 2015,

Duly authorized representatives of SGV & Co. will be present at this year's Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and are expected to respond to appropriate questions. SGV auditors will also be given
the opportunity to make a presentation or statement in case they decide to do so.

The 2012 to 2017 audit of the Corporation by SGV & Co. is in compliance with the requirement that
the external auditor should be rotated every five (5) years or earlier or the handling partner shall be
changed.

There was no event in the past years where SGV & Co. and the Corporation had any disagreements
with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure
or auditing scope or procedure.

The following are members of the Audit Committee, now renamed as the Audit and Risk Oversight
Commiftee:

Chairman : Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos (Independent Director)
Members : Ramon G. Santos

Siso M. Lao

Victor Y. Lim

Management is requesting the stockholders to approve appointment of SGV & Co. as the external
auditor of the Company for the current year 2018.

Item 8. Financial and Other Information

The Audited Financial Statement (prepared in accordance with SRC Rule 68, as amended, and Rule
68.1), Statement of Management's Responsibility as of December 31, 2017, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and the Results of Operation for the last three years

(required under Part IV (c) of Rule 48), and Market Price of Shares and Dividends are attached hereto
as Annex “D" hereof.

D. OTHER MATTERS

Item 9. Action with Respect to Reports

The following items will be submitted to the shareholders for their approval or ratification:

1. Approval of the minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on October 26, 2017;
2. Approval of the Management Report and audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017,
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3. Ratification of all acts of the Board of Directors and Management from the last
stockholders’ meeting to the date of the stockholders' meeting;

4. Election of the Board of Directors; and

5. Approval of the appointment of SGV & Co. as the external auditor of the Corporation for
the current year 2018. .

Copies of the Corporation’s Management Report, Audited Financial Statements for year ended
December 31, 2017 is available in the website of the Corporation and may be also inspected during
reasonable hours of business prior to the date of the meeting at the Corporation’s principal
office. Approval of the foregoing constitutes rafification by the stockholders of the Corporation's
performance for the year 2017.

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting held on October 26, 2017 constitutes 2
ratification of the accuracy and faithfulness of the Minutes to the events which transpired during the
meeting.

ltem 10. Matters Not Required To Be Submitted

All corporate actions to be taken up at the annual stockholders' meeting will be submitted to the
stockholders of the Corporation for their approval in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporation Code.

Matters not required to be submitted are the Cail to Order and Certification of Notice and Quorum.

Item 11. Voting Procedures
i.  Method of voting

In all items for approval except for the election of directors, gach share of stock entitles its
registered owner to one vote.

During the election of directors, every stockholder entitled to vote shall have the right to vote
the number of shares of stock standing, in his own name on the stock books of the
Corporation; and said stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as
there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the number of directors to be elected muitiplied by the number of shares shall
equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he
shall see fitt Provided, That the total number of votes cast by him shail not exceed the
number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the Corporation multiplied by the
whole number of directors to be elected.

At least two seats or at least 20% of the number of directors to be elected, whichever is
lesser, shall be allotted for the election of independent directors as required by the SRC and
Corporation’'s Code of Corporate Governance.

ii. The votes shall be taken and counted viva voce and/or by balloting.
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PART li. INFORMATION REQUIRED |N PROXY FORM

Item 1. |dentification

This proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors and Management of Premiere Horizon Aliiance
Corporation to stockholders of record as of May 15, 2018. The solicited proxy shall be exercised by
Mr. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr.. President of the Corporation or the stockholder's authorized
representative.

Item 2. Instruction

a. For agenda items other than election of directors, the proxy form shall be accomplished by
marking in the appropriate box either “FOR", *AGAINST" or "ABSTAIN" according to the
stockholder's/proxy's preference.

For election of directors, the stockholder/proxy shall mark with an “X" the space acrass the
name of his chosen nominee for regular and independent director.

If no instructions are indicated on a retumed and duly signed proxy, the shares represented
by the proxy will be voted:

FOR the approval of the minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on October 26,
2017,

FOR the approval of the Management Report and audited financial statements for year ended
December 31, 2017;

FOR the confirmation and ratification of ali acts and resolutions of Management and the
Board of Directors from the date of the last stockholders’ meeting to date as reflected in the
books and records of the Company;

FOR the election of the following directors: Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr., George Edwin Y,
Sycip, Winston A. Chan, Raul Ma. F. Anonas, Ramon A. Recto, Victor Y. Lim, Siso M. Lao,
Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos (Independent Director) and Ramon G. Santos {Independent
Director);

FOR the approval of the appointment of SGV & Co. as the external auditor of the Company
for 2018-2019;

and to authorize the Proxy to vote according to discretion of the Company's President or
Chairman of the Meeting on any matter that may be discussed under “Other Matters”.
A Proxy Form that is returned without a signature shali nct be valid.

b. The matters to be taken up in the meeting are enumerated opposite the boxes on the form.
The names of the nominee directors are likewise enumerated oppaosite an appropriate space.

c. The proxy forms shall be submitted to PHA on or before 5:00 p.m. of June 11, 2018 at the
principal office of the Corporation, Proxy forms shall be validated until June 14, 2018, at the
Corporation's principal office.

PLEASE USE THE ATTACHED PROXY FORM

Item 3. Revocability of Proxy

A stockholder may revoke his proxy on or before the date of the Annual Meeting. The proxy may be
revoked by the shareholder's written notice to the Corporate Secretary advising the latter of the
revocation of the proxy, or by a shareholder's personal attendance during the meeting.
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ltem 4. Persons Making the Solicitation

This solicitation is made by the Corporation. No director has informed the Corporation in writing or
otherwise of his intention to oppose any action intended to be taken up at the meeting.

Solicitation of proxies will be done mainly by mail. Certain employees of the Corporations will also
solicit proxies in person or by telephone. The estimated amount to be spent by the Corporation to

solicit proxies for the Board of Directors is Php 30,000.00. The cost of solicitation will be borne by the
Corporation.

Item 5. Interest of Certain Persons in Matters to be Acted Upon

No member of the Board of Directors or executive officer since the beginning of the last calendar year,
or nominee for election as director, or their associates, has had any substantial interest, direct or

indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any of the matters to be acted upon in the meeting, other
than election to office.

The Corporation does not intend to bring any matter before the meeting other than those set forth in
the nofice of the annual meeting of stockholders and does not khow of any matter to be brought
before the meeting by others. If any other matter does come before the meeting, the proxy shall vote
in the manner indicated by the stockholder, or if no such indication is made, in_accordance_with
proxy’s discretion.

The Company will provide without charge fo each person soficited, upon his written request, a copy of
the Company's annual report on SEC Form 17-A duly filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. At the discretion of Management, a reasonable fee may be charged for the expense

incurred in providing a copy of the exhibits. All requests may be sent to the Company’s head office
and addressed fo:

Attention: Maricel Marinay
Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
Unit 1705 East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Bldg., Exchange Rd., Ortigas Center,
Pasig City
Telephone No.: (02) 632-7715
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION
ANNUAL STOCKKHOLDERS' MEETING
June 21, 2018

PROXY FORM

held on June 21, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. at the
Philippines with Record Date May 15, 2018.

This proxy is being solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of PREMIERE
HORIZON ALLIANCE GORPORATION (the “Company”) for voting at the annual stockholders’ meeting to be

Valle Verde Country Club, Captain Henry Javier St, Pasig City,

I, the undersigned stockholder of the Company, da hereby appolnt, name and constitute either of the Company's

President, AUGUSTO ANTONIO C. SERAFICA, JR.,

or

as my attorney-in-fact and proxy, to represent me at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting of the Company to be held

on June 21, 2018 and any adjournmant
might or could if present and vot,
matters which may properly co
particular, | hereby direct my said
by marking the same with an “X".

(s) or postponement thereof, as fully and to all intents and purposes as |
ing in person, hereby ratifying and confirming any and all actions taken on
me before such meeting or adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof. In
proxy to vote on the agenda items set forth below as 1 have expressly indicated

AGENDA ITEMS

ACTION

Itern 1. Call to Order

No action necessary.

ltem 2. Proof of Notice and Certification of Quorum

No action necessary.

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

Item 3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting held
on Cctober 26, 2017

Item 4. Approval of the Management Report and Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

item 5. Confirmation and ratification of all acts and resolutions of
Management and the Board of Directors from the date of the last

stockholders’ meeting to date as reflected in the books and records of the
Company

ltem 6. Election of Directors

For Regular Director:

Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr.

Raul Ma. F. Anonas

Ramon A. Recto
Victor Y. Lim

Siso M. Lao

George Edwin Y. Sycip

Winston A. Chan

For Independent Director:

Arsenic Benjamin E. Santos

Ramon G. Santos

ltem 7. Approval to appoint SGV & Co. as the external auditor of the
Company for 2018-2019

ltem 8. Other Matters According to

Proxy's
Discretion

Item 9. Adjournment

IN CASE A PROXY FORM IS SIGNED AND RETURNED IN BLANK
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if no instructions are indicated on a retumned and duly signed proxy, the shares represented by the proxy will be
voted:

FOR the approval of the minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on October 26, 2017,

FOR the approval of the Management Report and audited financial statements for year ended December 31,
2017;

FOR the confirmation and ratification of all acts and resolutions of Management and the Board of Directors from
the date of the last stockholders’ meeting to date as reflected in the books and records of the Company;

FOR the election of the following directors: Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr., George Edwin Y, Sycip, Winston A,
Chan, Raul Ma. F. Anonas, Ramon A. Reclo, Victor Y. Lim, Siso M. Lao, Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos
(Independent Director) and Ramon G. Santos (Independent Director);

FOR the approval of the appointment of SGV & Co. as the external auditor of the Company for 2018-2019;

and to authorize the Proxy to vote according to discretion of the Company's President or Chairman of the
Meeting on any matter that may be discussed under “"Other Matters”,

A Proxy Form that is returned without a signature shail not be valid.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No member of the Board of Directors or executive officer since the beginning of the last fiscal year, or nominee
for election as director, or their associates, has had any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings
or otherwise, in any of the matters to be acted upon in the meeting, other than election to office.

VALIDATION OF PROXIES

The proxy forms shall be submitted to PHA on or before 5:00 p.m. of June 11, 2018 at the principal office of the
Corporation. Proxy forms shall be validated until June 14, 2018, at the Corporation’s principal office.

REVOCATION OF PROXIES

A stockholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it any time before the right granted is exercised. A proxy is

also considered revoked if the stockholder attends the meeting in person and expresses his intention to vote in
person.

Signed this 2018 at

(DATE) (PLACE)

Printed Name of Stockholder Signature of Stockholder or Authorized Signatory

[*N.B.: Partnership, Corporations and Associations must attach certified resolutions or extracts thereof
designating the Proxy/Representative and authorized signatories]

PLEASE DATE AND SIGN YOUR PROXY

PLEASE MARK, SIiGN AND RETURN YOUR PROXY BY HAND OR MAIL (iN TIME FOR IT TO REACH THE
COMPANY) ON OR BEFORE 5:00 P.M. of JUNE 11, 2018,
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1L._SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonabie inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report Is signed in Makati City on May 26 2018.

PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION

By:

ANA MARIA(Y. KATIGBAK
Assistant Corporate Secretary




MANAGEMENT REPORT

(A) Management's Discussion and Analysis and Plan of Operation

Our discussions in the foregoing sections of this report may contain forward-looking statements that
refiect our current views with respect to the Group's future plans, events, operational performance,
and desired results. These statements, by their very nature, contain substantial elements of risks and
uncertainties. Actuai resuiis may be different from our forecasts.

Furthermore, the information contained herein should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements and related notes. Our financial statements, and the
financial discussions below, have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Plan of Operations for Year 2018
West Palawan Premiere Development Corp. (WPPDC)

WPPDC was incorporated in August 9, 2016 as a 100% owned subsidiary of PHA, 1t shall own the
500 hectares in Brgy. Bacungan Puerto Princesa plus the other properties transferred by the other
subsidiaries. WPPDC has engaged the services of a master planner to design a master plan for the
property into various pods for development. In 2018, WPPDC will embark on the development of its 5-
hectare Nagtabon property into a tourist destination.

Redstone Construction and Development Corporation (RCDC).

RCDC will continue to service its two (2) principal clients in Surigao. It shall maintain its existing fleet
of 39 heavy equipment, 89 dump trucks and about 15 service vehicles to service the requirement of
its clients. PHA will declare 22.1% holding as property dividend to PHA shareholders of record as of
May 15, 2018.

Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES)

The 51% investment in CUBES was completed in January 2015. The projected volume of business
for 2016 is around 720 tons of refrigeration (TR) in Nine (9) sites around the country,

Other Developmental Business Activities/ Subsequent Events.
The Group continues to identify other businesses that will generate more revenues. It is now looking
at various business opportunities in mining, real estate, energy and tourism-related industries.

Discussion and analysis of the Group and its majority-owned subsidiaries’ top five (5) key
performance indicators, including the manner by which the Group calculates or identify the
indicators on a comparative basis.

The Group, with its subsidiaries, uses the following key performance indicators:

1) Revenues

2) Net Income {Loss) From Continuing Operation
3) Debht- to- Equity Ratio

4) Current Ratio

5) Return on Assets
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Using the Debt-to-Equity Ratio as indicator, the Group computes the following in the manner

presented below:

Debt-to-Equity = jabiliti
Total Stockholders’ Equity

Using Current Ratio as indicator, the Group computes the following in the manner presented below:

Current Ratio =
Total Current Liabilities

Using Return on Investments as indicator, the Group computes the following in the manner presented

below:

Return on Assets

Book Value of Assets

Presented below is the comparative table of the Group's performance for the years 2016 and 2015,

2014, respectively.

__________________________________________ F"mmemmememmecmesemeemeetcecmssssescsesemncesnsas

' \ . December3i
[ i Audited 2017 .  Audited 2016
R 728683757 1 911,139,516
12 Netincome """ | 39,163,499 1 47,360,874
: 3. Debt-to- Equity Ratio { 3.09:1

{4 ! CurrentRatio ' :

15 RefumnOnAssets '

i : Audited 2016
1 Revenues T 11,139,516 ;
2 1 Net Income | 47,360,875 !

................................................................. v
3| Debt -to- Equity Ratio_ T o 2.99:1 "
{4 CurrentRatio S 1.37:1 1
1 5 ' Return On Assets ' 0.01:1

Revenues

B L L
.

The Group revenues in 2017 amounted to Php 728.65 million which is Php 182.49 million or

20.03% lower than the 2016 Group revenue of P 911.14 million,

The Group revenues in 2016 amounted to P 911.14 million which is Php 28.67 million or 3.25%

higher than the 2015 Group revenue of 882.47 miillion.

Net Income

The Group net income in 2017 amounted to Php 39.16 million which is Php 8.20 million or

17.31% lower than the 2016 Group net income of 47.36 million.

The Group net income in 2016 amounted to Php 47.36 million which is Php 24.22 million or
33.84% lower than the 2015 Group net income of 71.58 million.Debt to Equity Ratio

The Group debt to equity ratio in 2017, 2016, and 2015 amounted to 3.09:1, 2.99:1, and 2.99:1,

respectively

.............................................. P e L L e,

December 31
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Current Ratio

The Group current ratio in 2017, 2016, and 2015 amounted to 1.55:1, 1.37:1, and 0.91:1,
respectively.
Return on Assets (ROA)

The Group return on assets for 2017, 2016, and 2015 amounted to 0.01:1, 0.01:1, and 0.02:1,
respectively.

Results of Operations for the last three (3) years

2017

During the years 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Group recorded a net income of Php 39.16 miillion,
Php 47.36 million, and Php 71.58 million, respectively. Presented in the subsequent sections are the
details of the Company’s income statement accounts:

The Group real estate sales in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 479.48 million and Php 605.42
million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 125.94 million or 20.80%. In 2017, there
was a slowdown in GLCI's real estate constructions which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

The Group mining service revenue in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 247.14 million and Php
297.83 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 50.69 million or 17.02%. In 2017,
there was a slowdown in RCDC's mining operations which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

The Group service income in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 1.65 million and Php 7.88 million,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 6.23 million or 79.08%. In 2017, the operations of
CUBES were suspended which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

The Group film rights in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 0.38 million and -nil-, respectively. In
2017, the Company sold one of its film rights which resulted in the aforesaid revenue. There were
no film rights sold for 2016.

The Group cost of real estate sales in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 289.05 million and Php
380.42 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 91.37 million or 24.02%. As

previously stated, there was a slowdown in GLCl's real estate constructions which resulted in the
aforesaid decrease.

The Group costs of services in 2017 and 2016 amounted Php 221.33 million and Php 259.88
millien, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 38.55 million or 14.84%. As previously
stated, there was a slowdown in RCDC's operalions and a suspension of CUBES' operations
which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

The Group depreciation and amortization in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 85.11 million and
Php 112.47 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 27.36 million or 24.33%. The
decrease primarily came from the change in useful life of certain depreciable assets. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 57.52
million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 27.59 million.

The Group personnet costs in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 108.64 million and
Php 112.73 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 4.09 million or 3.63%. The
decrease primarily came from the suspension of operations CUBES. The sald account is
presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 57.00 million,
and General and Administrative Expense - Php 51.64 million.
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The Group fuel and oil in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 37.75 million and Php 50.65 million,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 12.90 million or 25.47%. The decrease primarily
came from the slowdown in RCDC's operations. The said account is presented in the financial
statements for 2017 under Cost of Services.

The Group repairs and maintenance in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 37.09 million and Php
33.36 miliion, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 3.73 million or 11.18%. The increase
primarily came from the extensive repairs and maintenance performed during the year. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 36.59
million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 0.50 million.

The Group taxes and licenses in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 16.75 million and Php 12.38
million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 4.37 miilion or 35.30%. The increase
primarily came from the higher taxable base and bracket used to compute taxes and licenses for
the year 2017. The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost
of Services — Php 10.98 miliion, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 5.77 million.

The Group transportation and travel in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 6.51 million and
Php 14.87 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 8.36 million or 56.22%. The
decrease primarily came from the reduced fransportation and travel requirements for the year
2017. The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of
Services — Php 1.71 million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 4.80 million.

The Group professional and legal fees in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 25.16 million and Php
43.29 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 18.13 million or 41.88%. The
decrease primarily came from the reduced services availed from professionals for the year 2017.
The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services —
Php 4.50 million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 20.66 million.

The Group rentals and ufilities in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 12.28 million and Php 19.32
million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 7.04 million or 36.44%. The decrease
primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said account is presented
in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 3.83 million, and General
and Administrative Expense — Php 8.45 million.

The Group entertainment, amusement, and recreation in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 3.07
million and Php 6.68 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 3.61 million or 54.04%.
The decrease primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said account
is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 2.47 million,
and General and Administrative Expense — Php 0.60 million.

The Group Commissions in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 27.24 million and Php 37.50 million,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 10.26 million or 27.36%. The decrease primarily
came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said account is presented in the
financial statements for 2017 under General and Administrative Expenses.

The Group outside services in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 2.10 million and Php 3.25 million,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 1.15 million or 35.38%. The decrease primarily
came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said account is presented in the
financial statements for 2017 under General and Administrative Expenses.

The Group supplies and materials in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 2.06 million and
Php 0.67 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 1.38 million or 207.46%. The
increase primarily came from the increased operational requirements. The said account is
presented in the financial statements for 2017 under General and Administrative Expenses.

The Group advertising and promotions in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 1.77 million and Php
4.77 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 3.00 million or 62.88%. The decrease
primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said account is presented
in the financial statements for 2017 under General and Administrative Expenses.
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The Group freight and handling in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 1.69 million and
Php 0.88 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 0.81 million or 92.05%. The
increase primarily came from the increased operational requirements. The said account is
presented in the financial statements for 2017 under General and Administrative Expenses.

The Group other expenses in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 32.80 million and Php 16.68
million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 16.12 million or 96.64%. The increase
primarily came from the increased operational requirements. The said account is presented in the
financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 11.10 million, and Generai and
Administrative Expense — Php 21.70 million.

The Group interest income in 2017 and 2016 amounted fo Php 7.16 million and Php 13.84 million,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 6.78 million or 48.64%. The decrease primarily
came from the reduced cash in bank balances. The said account under Other Income (Charges).

The Graup change in fair value of investment property in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php —nil-
and Php 158.94 million, respectively. There were no changes in fair value of investment property
in 2017. The said account is presented under Other Income (Charges).

The Group sale of asset held for sale in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php —nil- and Php 10.26
miilion, respectively. There were no sale of asset held for sale in 2017. The said account is
presented under Other Income (Charges).

The Group impairment losses in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 0.58 million and Php 3.48
million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 2.90 million or 83.33%. There were fewer
and lower assessments for impaired assets in 2017. The said account is presented under Other
Income (Charges).

The Group interest expense in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 95.66 million and Php 129.79
million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 34.13 million or 26.30%. The decrease
primarily came from the increased capitalization of borrowing costs in 2017. The said account is
presented under Other Income (Charges).

The Group other income in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 26.78 million and Php 6.88 million,
respectively, which shows an increase of Php 19.90 million or 289.24%. The increase primarily

came from additional income eamed from other sources. The said account is presented under
Other Income (Charges).

2016

Redstone Construction And Development Corporation (RCDC), a mining service subsidiary, gave 12-
month-revenues in 2016 as well as in 2015. Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions,
Inc. (CUBES) gave twelve (12) and three (3) months revenues to the group in years 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Goshen Land Capital, Inc. {GLCI), a real estate subsidiary, gave twelve (12) and seven
(7) months revenue to the group in 2016 and 2015, respectively. In 2016, West Palawan Premiere
Development Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary, gave five (5) months revenue to the Group.
The Group posted a net income of Php47.36 million in 2016 from Php71.58 million of 2015 showing a

51% decrease. The following were the major changes in the Company’s income statements accounts
from continuing operations:

Mining service revenue in 2016 amounted to Php297.83 million. This posted Php8.12 million
increase from 289.71 million of 2015 or 2% increment. There was no material change in the
Group 2016 mining service revenue compared to last year.

Real estate sales in 2016 amounted to Php605.42 million. This posted Php15.05 million increase

from Php590.37 million in 2015 or 3% increment. There was no material change in the Group
2016 real estate sales compared to last year.
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» Costs of services in 2016 amounted Php380.42 million. This posted Php10.50 million increase
from Php369.92 million costs of services in 2015 or 3% increment. There was no material
movement in the costs of services.

e Personnel costs in 2016 amounted to Php53.29 million. This posted Php13.3¢ million increase
from Php39.90 million in 2015 or a 33.56% increase. The increase was mainly due to the salaries
and wages of Goshen Land Capital, Inc., which the Group charged 12 months and 7 months
salaries and wages in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

s Professional fees in 2016 amounted to Php36.50 million. This posted Php9.70 million decrease
from Php46.20 million in 2015 or 20% decrease. The decrease was mainly due to charging to
land rights the professional fees incurred thereto.

e Depreciation and amortization in 2016 amounted to Php107.96 million. This posted Php41.70
million increase from Php66.26 million in 2015 or 63% increase. The increase was mainly due to
Php10.53million impairment of exclusive rights and the depreciation of heavy equipment acquired
in the second half of 2015.

« Transportation and travel in 2016 amounted to Php5.13 million. This posted Php1.08 million
increase from Php4.05 million of 2015 or 27% increase. The increase was mainly due additional
transportation and travel requirements of the Group in 2016.

» Rentals and utilities in 2016 amounted to Php11.91 million. This posted Php3.10 million increase
from Php8.81 milion of 2015 or 35% increase. The increase was mainly due to the rental and
utilites of Goshen Land Capital, Inc., which the Group charged 12 months and 7 months rental
and utilities expenses in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

+ Taxes and licenses in 2016 amounted to Php6.23 million. This posted Php8.64 decrease from
Php14.87 of 2015 or a 58% increase. The decrease was mainly due to documentary stamp tax
which the Group incurred more in 2015 on its promissory notes as compared to this year.

o Supplies and materials in 2016 amounted to Php.67 million. There was no material change in the
Group supplies and materials of this year compared to the previous year.

» Entertainment, amusement and recreation in 2016 amounted to Php3.85 million. This posted a
Php2.64 miliion decrease from Php6.49 million of 2015 or a 59% decrease. The decrease was
mainly due to the decline in the Group requirement of entertainment, amusement and recreation
in 2016 as compared to 2015.

« The Group did not have equity in net earnings on investment in associate in 2016 because the
investment in associate was classified by the management into Assets Held for Sale as of

December 31, 2015. in 2015, the Group equity in the net earnings on the investment in associate
amounted to Php1.18 million.

s Interest income from bank deposits amounted to Php2.08 miillion. This posted an increase of
Php1.61 million from Php.47 million of 2015 or a 247% increase. The increase was mainly due to
huge amount of bank deposits in the 1% half of 2016.

e Impairment iosses in 2016 amounted to Php3.48 million. This posted a decrease of Php3.42
million from Php6.90 million of 2015 or a 98% decrease. The decrease was due to the lesser
amount assets to be impaired found by the management in 2016 as compared to last year.

= Interest expenses in 2016 amounted fo Php129.79 million. This posted an increase of Php72.75
million increase from Php57.34 of 2015 or a 44% increase. The increase was due to the increase
in interest on the loans that the Group availed more in the middle second half of 2015.

2015

Redstone Construction and Development Corp. (RCDC), a mining service subsidiary, gave 12-menth-
revenues in 2015 as well as in 2014, Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, Inc.
(CUBES) gave three (3) months revenue fo the Group. Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI), a real
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estate subsidiary, contributed a seven (7) months from June to December 2015, The Group posted a
net income of Php100.92 million in 2015 from Php147.49 million in 2014 showing a 46% decrease.
The following were the major changes in the Company’s income statement accounts from continuing
operations:

Mining services reached Php289.71 million revenue in 2015 a 97.11% higher compared to 2014.

These posted the 2015 revenues at 97.11% much higher versus 2014.

The cost of services of the Group mining services also showed a 1.02% increase versus 2014 as
there was Php199.91 million in 2015 and Php99.17 million in 2014. The increase was mainly due
to the increase in depreciation and manpower costs in the site.

Personnel cost made a post of Php39.90 miillon, a 588% increase over the Php5.80 million in
2014. The increment was due fo the business expansion.

Professional and legal fees posted Php46.20 million and Php19.18 million in 2015 and 2014,
respectively, showing a Php27.02 million or 141% increase that was friggered by the additional
support group due to expanding operaticn.

Depreciation and amortization increased to Php9.06 million from Php1.62 million in 2014, or
459% higher than 2014.

Transportation and trave! increased fo Php4.05 million from Php1.92 million in 2015, or 111%
higher due to added administering expenses of the Parent Company.

Rentals and utilities made an increase of 476% in 2015. The transfer of head offices to Tektite

from Maybunga has caused rent and ufilities to post at Php8.81 million in 2015 from Php1.53
million in 2014.

Taxes and licenses posted Php8.77 million in 2015 from Php5.26 millien in 2014, showing a
Php3.51 million, or 67% increase. Increase was mainly due to the increase in documentary stamp
tax amounting to Php1.95 million of the Parent and the taxes and licenses of the new subsidiaries
Goshen Land Capital, [nc. (GLCI) and Concepts Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc. (CUBES).

Supplies and materials cost increased by 137% making a post at Php0.65 million from Php.27
million.

Entertainment, amusement and recreation displayed at Php6.49 million and Php1.82 million in
2015 and 2014, respectively, made an increase of Php4.65 million or 257% higher than in 2014
which was triggered by the additional support group business expansion.

Equity in net earnings of an associate posted at Php0.90 million in 2014 and Php.55 million for the
initial FADC operation late in 2013.

Interest income from bank deposits posted of Php0.45 million in 2015 from Php0.50million in
2014.

Impairment losses of Php7.01 million in 2015 was recognized, Impairment loss was caused by the
written-off of the receivables amounted to Php3.03 million of Digiwave Solutions, Incorporated
(DSl) a subsidiary that stopped operations since the secend half of 2014. Goshen Land Capital,

inc. also contributed Php2.67 million fo the impairment losses a provision for the uncollectible
receivables.

Interest expense posted Php55.07 million in 2015, a 564% higher from the Php8.29 million in
2014. In 2014, there were additional Php102.88 million short term loans from banks. In 2014, the
group also generated a Phpd08 million exchangeable notes and increase of the obligations under
finance lease in the amount of Php105.58 million. Increase in interest expense was also due to
the inclusion of the Goshen Land Capital, Inc. Interest on loan amounted to Php32.29 miliion.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

2017

The Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 4,096.55 million
and Php 3,723.64 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 372.90 million or 10.01%.
The Company's total liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 3,084.38 million
and Php 2,790.00 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 304.38 million or 10.91%.
The Company's equity as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 591.84 miliion and Php
533.99 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 57.85 million or 10.83%. The Company's
equity attributable to non-controlling interests as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php
410.33 million and Php 399.64 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 10.68 million or
2.67%.

The following are the balance sheet items with changes amounting to five percent (5%) from the
previous year:

Cash as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 70.16 million and Php 90.31
million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 20.15 million or 22.31%. Cash used in
operations amounted to Php 71.65 million; cash used in investing activities amounted to Php
163.56 million; while cash provided by financing activities amounted to Php 215.07 million; the
sum of which represents the aforementicned decrease.

Receivables - net as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 1,424.67 million and
Php 1,145.32 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 279.35 million or 24.39%.
The increase primarily came from the uncollected contract receivables.

Real estate held for sale as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 824.99 million
and Php 723.28 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 101.71 million or

14.06%. The increase primarily came from the additional construction and development costs
of the Company’s real estate assets.

Inventories as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 13.00 million and Php 12.20
million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 0.80 million or 6.56%. The increase
primarily came from the additional costs of inventories.

Other current assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 302.00 million and
Php 205.50 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 96.50 million or 46.96%.
The increase primarily came from additional advances made to suppliers and contractors; and
input VAT claimed during the year.

Non-current portion of contracts receivabie as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 220.98 million and Php 387.19 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php

166.21 million or 42.93%. The decrease came from reclassification of non-current to current
contract receivables.

Goodwill and intangible assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 143.71
million and Php 159.33 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 15.62 million or
9.80%. The decrease primatrily came from the amortization of intangible assets.

Property and equipment - net as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 330.39
million and Php 393.09 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 62.70 million or
15.95%. The decrease primarily came from the depreciation during the year.

Land and land development as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 578.79
million and Php 123.28 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 455.51 million
or 369.49%. The Iincrease primarily came from the reclassification of investment property
which was sold by PHA to WPP during the year.
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Investment property as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php —nil- million and
Php 399.95 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 399.95 million or 100%. The
decrease primarily came from the reclassification of investment property which was sold by
PHA to WPP during the year.

Other noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 187.86 million
and Php 84.19 miliion, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 103.67 million or
123.14%. The increase primarily came from the input VAT claimed during the year.

Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 807.37
million and Php 644.03 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 263.34 million
or 40.89%. The increase primarily came from the payables made to third parties and
advances during the year.

Short-term loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 209.10 million and
Php 211.05 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 1.85 million or 0.92%. There
were no significant changes during the previous year.

Income tax payable as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 0.34 million and
Php 0.88 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 0.54 million or 61.36%. The
decrease primarily came from the decreased taxable income during the year.

Purchased land payable — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 148.90 million and Php 240.37 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php
91.47 million or 38.05%. The decrease primarily came from the payments made during the
year.

Loans payable — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 407.70
million and Php 421.27 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 13.57 million or
3.22%. The decrease primarily came from higher payments made during the year.

Obligations under finance lease — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 26.12 million and Php 47.25 million, respectively, which shows a decrease
of Php 21.13 million or 44.72%. The decrease primarily came from payments made during the
year,

Instaliment payable — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted {o Php —
nil- million and Php 27.99 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 27.99 million
or 100%. The decrease primarily came from payments made during the year.

Pension [iabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 13.18 million and Php
19.12 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 5.94 million or 31.07%. The
decrease primarily came from suspension of operations of CUBES which resulted in the
termination of its employees.

Convertible loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 522.92 million and
Php 423.41 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 99.51 million or 23.50%.
The increase primarily came from the additional convertible loans during the year.

Purchased land payable - noncurrent portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted
to Php 20.37 million and Php 11.94 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php

8.43 million or 70.60%. The increase primarily came from the reclassification of non-current to
current.

Loans payable — noncurrent portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php
566.76 million and Php 405.59 miillion, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 161.17
million or 39.74%. The increase primarily came from the additional loans during the year.

Obligations under finance lease — noncurrent portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 8.62 million and Php 9.84 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of
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Php 1.22 million or 12.40%. The decrease primarily came from the reclassification of non-
current to current obligations under finance lease.

« Deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 262.98 miliion
and Php 327.25 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 64.27 miliion or
19.64%. The decrease primarily came from the reversal of certain deferred tax liabilities
during the year.

2016

At the end of 2016, the Company's total assets were valued at Php3.68 billion from Php3.38 billion of
2015 or 9% growth from last 2015; total liabilities were valued at Php2.75 billion from Php2.53 billion
of 2015 or 9% increase from 2015; and total equity was valued at Php933.71 million from Php861.19
million of 2015 or 8% higher than 2015. The equity attributable to non-controlling interest was valued
at Php534.03 million in 2016 from Php500.81 million of 2015 or a 6% growth from last year.

The following are the causes for the materia! changes, i.e. those amounting to five percent (5%} of the
relevant accounts:

Cash — Cash decreased to Php90.31 million in 2016 from Php143.78 million of 2015 showing 4%
decrement from 2015. The cash provided by financing activities amounted to Php23.61 million in
2016. While, the cash used in the operating and investing activities amounted to Php56.46 million
and Php20.63 million, respectively, in 2016.

Receivables - As at December 2016, the Group receivables amounted to Php1.53 billion from
Php1.31 billion of 2015. The majority of which came from the sale of the real estate of Goshen
Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI) a subsidiary engaged in real estate business. The balance of the
receivables as at December 31, 2016 was 18% higher than that of 2015.

Real Estate Held For Sale — As of December 31, 2016, the Group real estate held for sale had a
carrying amount of Php723.28 million from Php673.3¢ million of 2015 or 7% growth.

Other current assets — As of December 31, 20186, the Group other current assets had a carrying
amount of Php206.23 million or a 5% growth from 2015 with balance of Php188.36 millicn.

Intangible assets — As at December 31, 2016, the Group intangible assets had a carrying amount
of Php159.33 million from Php175.17 million of 2015. There was 9% or Php15.84 million
decrease in intangible assets. The decrease was due fo the impairment of exclusive rights to
distribute of Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) engaged in
refrigeration business and the film rights of the Group.

investment property — As at December 31, 2018 and 2015, the investments property had carrying
value of Php399.95 million and Php273.00 million, respectively or an increase of Php126.75
mitlion or 46% higher than that of 2015. The increase in carrying value was from the appraisal
increase of the land amounted to Php158.94million or 58% increase from 2015, Investments in
property were carried at fair market vaiue of the investment property as at reporting date,

Property and equipment — As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group Property and
Equipment had carrying amount of Php391.10 million and Php479.06 million, respectively. There
was no major addition to the property and equipment, and the decrease in value was from the
depreciation recognized in 20186.

Trade and other payables - As at December 31, 2016, the Group trade and payables amounted
to Php1.09 billion or 17% higher than that of 2015. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in accrued expenses of the Group.

Short-term loans -~ As at December 31, 2016, the Group short-tetrm loans amounted to
Php211.05 million or 16% higher than that of 2015. In 2016 the Company availed of shorf-term
loans amounted to Php29.52 million due to the financing requirements of the Group for additional
working capitai requirements of subsidiaries.
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Income tax payable — The Group recorded Php.88 million corporate income tax payable of 2016 a
196% higher than that of 2015.

Obligations under finance lease — As at December 31, 2016, the Group finance lease obligations
had a carrying amount of Php57.09 million an increase of Php57.09 million or 100% higher than
that of 2015. The increase was due to the availment of the Group of the loans through the finance
lease.

Instaliment payable — As of December 31, 2016, the Group instaliment payable had carrying
amount of Php28.00million from Php179.00million or 84% decrease. The decrease due to
amortization payment of the loan in 2016.

Loans payable - As at December 31, 2016 the Group loan payable amounted to Php831.45
million, 99% higher than 2015. The increase was due to the availment of an additional loan,

Pension liabilities — As at December 31, 2016 and 2015 the balance of the pension liabilities was
Php19.12 million and Php15.44 million, respectively, or an increase of Php3.68 million or 24%
higher from the 2015. The increase was due to re-measurement of pension costs.

2015

At the end of 2015, the Company’s audited total assets were valued at Php3.35 billion from
Php748.17 million in 2014 or 348% higher; total liabilities were valued at Php2.51 billion from
Php314.55 million in 2014 or 698% higher; and total equity was valued at Php837.55million from
Php433.62 million in 2015 or 83% higher than 2014. The equity atiributable to non-controliing interest
was valued at Php352.02 million in 2015 from Php22.79 million in 2014,

The following are the causes for the material changes, i.e. those amounting to five percent (5%) of the
relevant accounts:

Cash — Cash decreased to Php143.78 million in 2015 from Php190.32 million in 2013 showing
32% decrement in 2015. The operating and financing activities provided Php633.12 million in
2014 and Php101.22 million in 2014. While, the investing activities provided Php680.66 million in
2015 and provided Php163.23 million in 2014.

Receivables - As at December 2015, the balance of receivables were Php1.44 billion, Php1.23
billion of which were from the sale of the real estate of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI) a
subsidiary engaged in real estate business. The balance of the receivables as at December 31,
2015 is 1,378% higher than that of 2014.

Real Estate Held For Sale — As of December 31, 2015, the Group reél estate held for sale had

carrying amount of Php673.39 million. This posted a 100% increase since the Group real estate
subsidiary just came in starting May of 2015,

Other current assets — The balance of the other current assets as at December 31, 2015 is
Php70.09 million or 231% higher than 2014 with balance of Php21.16 million.

Intangible assets ~ As at December 31, 2015, the Group intangible assets had carrying amount of
Php175.17million as compared to Php16.64 million of 2014. There was Php158.53 million or a
853% growth. The increase were due to the recognition of the exclusive right to distribute for the
Concepts: Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc. (CUBEs) and the resuiting goodwill in the
acquisition of the majority shares of Goshen Land Capital, Inc, (GLCI).

Investment property - As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group investments property had
carrying value of Php279.90 million and Php159.88 million, respectively or an increase of
Php119.92 million or 75% higher than that of 2014. The increase in carrying value were from the
appraisal increase of the land amounted to Php102.42 million and additional acquisition of land
classified as investment property and the additional costs incurred in the amount of Php17.50
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million or 75% increase from 2014, Investments in property were carried at fair market value of
the investment property as at reporting dats.

Investment in associate - In the 1%t quarter of 2015, the Parent Company put an additional
investment in Concepts: Unplugged Business Environment System (CUBESs), Inc. amounted to
Php40.00 million giving the company control to classify the same as subsidiary. This gave 119%
decrease in 2015 from 2014 investments in associated amounted to Php73.44million.

Property and equipment — As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group property and
equipment had carrying amount of Php479.06 million and P163.89 million, respectively. During
the year 2015 there were additions to property and equipment amounted to Php454.08 million.
Heavy equipment acquired in 2015 amounted to Php399million or about 88% of the total additions
made.

Trade and other payables — As at December 31, 2015, of the Group trade and other payables had
carrying amount of Php927.83 million or 585% higher than that of 2014. The significant increase
in the trade and other payables were from the inclusion of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. Trade and
other payables.

Short-term loans — As at December 31, 2015, the Group short-term loans had carrying amount of
Php182.23 million or 130% higher than that of 2014. In 2015 the Company availed of short-term
loans amounted to Php182.23 million due to the financing requirements of the Group for the
acquisition of heavy equipment and for additional working capital requirements of subsidiaries.

income tax payable ~ The Group recorded Php.40 million corporate income tax payable in 2015 a
855% lower than that of 2014. Though the current provision for income tax is higher than 2014 by
291% or Php3.39 million income tax payable is still lower because the group were able to pay

more than half of the provision for current income tax due in the group quarterly income tax
retums.

Loans payable - As at December 31, 2015 the Group loan payable amounted to Php793.71
million or 3,982% higher than 2014. The increase was mainly due to the inclusion of the Goshen
Land Capital, Inc, (GLCH) loan a new subsidiary joined in the group in 2015. The GLCI loan as at
December 31, 2015 was Php582.21 million representing 73% of the total loans payable.

Pension labilities — As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group pension liabilities had carrying
amount of Php15.44 million and Php3.46 miliion, respectively, or an increase of Php11.98 million
or 346% higher from the 2014. The increase was due to re-measurement of pension costs.

ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The Company and its subsidiaries use the following key performance indicators: 1}
revenues; 2) gross profit / loss; 3) gross profit ratio (computed as gross profit divided by
the gross revenues); 4) net income / loss; 5) net profit ratio (computed as net profit divided
by the gross revenues); 6) net profit attributable to parent; 7)12 months trailing net
income (loss) {computed as year o date net income (loss) plus net income of the latest
annual income minus the previous year to date net income (loss); 8) 12 months trailing net
income (loss) per share (computed as 12 months trailing net income (loss) divided by
weighted average number of shares);9} debt-to-equity ratio (computed as {otal liabilities
divided by total Stockholders’ Equity); 10) current ratio {computed as total current assets
divided by total current liabilities); 11) debt ratio (computed as total liabilities divided by total
assets); and 12) return on investment (computed as net income divided by investment).

i | l March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 [ Inc/(Dec) |
|' T, | Revenues [ Php 117,691 | Php 150,834 | Php (32,843)
[2 [Gross Profit Loss | Php 27,451 | Php 41,636 B Php (14,185)
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‘3. - Gross Proﬁt!Loés Rétio '23% - ' "28% ' - 5%
|4. [Net Profit / Loss r Php (48,930) r Php (32,891) Php (16,039)
B INei Profit/ Loss Ratio | -41% | T22% -19%
6. [NetProft/Loss |
attributable to Parent Php (46,848) Php (34,550) | Php (12,298) -
7 [ 12 months Fraiingnet | Php 23,125 Php 35,788 | Php (12,663) .
income (loss)
8. [Traiing 12months 001 002 T0.02
| eamnings(loss) per ‘
share basic
T “["March 31, 2018 | December 31, ~Inci(Dec)
2017
[e '.|'Deb‘t-to- Equity Ratio | 3791 | 3.00:1 0.70
l1o. Current Ratio l 1.46:1 ‘ 1.55:1 -0.09
‘11. (DebtRatio | 0.79:1 | 0.76:1 ‘ 0.03
% 12, ! Return on Assets | -0.10:1 [ 0.10:1 r -0.20

During the first quarter of 2018 the Group generated gross revenues of Php 117,991
thousand broken down into Php 104,289 thousand from real estate sales and
Php 13,702 thousand from mining refated services.

Gross profit in the 15t Quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 27,451 thousand and Php
41,636 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 14,185 thousand or 34.07%.

The Group's net loss attributable to the equity holder of the parent in the 1% Quarter of 2018
and 2017 amounted to Php 46,848 thousand and Php 34,550 thousand, respectively, which
shows an increase of Php 12,298 thousand or 35.59%.

The Group’s 12 months tailing net income in the 1 Quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to

Php 23,125 thousand and Php 35,788 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 12,663 thousand or 35.38%.

The Group's trailing net income (loss) per share in the 1% Quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to 0.01 and 0.02 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of 0.01.

The Debt-to-Equity Ratio is 3.79:1 and 3.09:1 in the 1% quarter of 2018 and year end 2017,
respectively.

The Current Ratio is 1.46:1 and 1.55:1 in the 1%t quarter of 2018 and year end 2017,
respectively.

The Debt Ratio is 0.79:1 and 0.76:1 in the 1%t quarter of 2018 and year end 2017,
respectively.

The Return on Assets is -0.10:1 and 0.10:1 in the 1%t quarter of 2018 and year end 2017,
respectively.
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There were no events that triggered direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to
the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

Moreover, there were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

The following are the causes for the material changes, i.e. those amounting five percent (5%)
of the relevant accounts or such lower amount, between this period versus the previous, on a
vertical and horizontal basis of analyses:

Financial Position

» Cash - As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account amounted to Php
59,617 thousand and Php 70,160 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php
14,543 thousand or 20.73%. Cash used in operations amounted to Php 209,648
thousand; cash provided by investing activities amounted to Php 107,080 thousand: while
cash provided by financing activities amounted to Php 88,024 thousand; the aforesaid
cashflows represents the decrease during the reporting period.

> Receivables, net — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account
amounted to Php 1,629,259 thousand and Php 1,424,673 thousand, respectively, which
shows an increase of Php 204,586 thousand or 14.36%. The increase primarily came
from the uncollected contract and other receivables during the reporting period.

» Unused supplies and spare parts - As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this
account amounted to Php 21,793 thousand and Php 13,004 thousand, respectively,
which shows an increase of Php 8,789 thousand or 67.59%. The increase primarily came

from the additional unused supplies and spare parts accumulated during the reporting
period.

> Other current assets — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account
amounted to Php 694,891 thousand and Php 301,996 thousand, respectively, which
shows an increase of Php 392,895 thousand or 130.10%. The increase primarily came
from the additional advances made for certain projects during the reporting period.

» Other non-current assets — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account
amounted to Php 71,587 thousand and Php 187,868 thousand, respectively, which shows
a decrease of Php 116,281 thousand or 61.89%. The decrease primarily came from the

reciassification to other current assets of advances made for certain projects during the
reporting period.

» Trade and other payables — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account
amounted to Php 1,335,870 thousand and Php 907,372 thousand, respectively, which
shows an increase of Php 428,498 thousand or 47.22%. The increase primarily came
from the increase in unpaid trade and accrued expenses during the reporting period.

» Purchased land payable - current — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this
account amounted to Php 126,990 thousand and Php 148,905 thousand, respecfively,
which shows a decrease of Php 21,915 thousand or 14.72%. The decrease primarily
came from the payments made during the reporting period

» Loans payable - current — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account
amounted to Php 515,382 thousand and Php 407,701 thousand, respectively, which
shows an increase of Php 107,681 thousand or 26.41%. The increase ptimarily came
from the additional loans availed during the reporting period



» Obligations under finance lease - current — As of March 31, 2018 and

December 31, 2017, this account amounted to Php 19,957 thousand and Php
26,121 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 6,164 thousand or
23.60%. The decrease primarily came from the payments made during the reporting
period

Performance

> Revenues - The Group’s revenues in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php

117,991 thousand and Php 150,834 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 32,843 thousand or 21.77%.

Revenue from the real estate sales in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php
104,289 thousand and Php 144,770 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 40,481 thousand or 27.96%.

Revenue from the mining related services in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted
to Php 13,702 thousand and Php 6,065 thousand, respectively, which shows an increase
of Php 7,637 thousand or 125.92%.

The net decrease in revenues were due to the siowdown of construction works and the
increased services rendered to mining client(s) during the 1%t quarter of 2018,

Cost of real estate sofd ~ The Group’s cost of real estate sold in the first quarter of 2018
and 2017 amounted to Php 64,543 thousand and Php 81,010 thousand, respectively,
which shows a decrease of Php 16,467 thousand or 20.33%. The costs of the real estate
sold decreased due to the slowdown of construction works during the 1%t quarter of 2018.

Cost of services ~ The Group's cost of real estate sold in the first quarter of 2018 and
2017 amounted to Php 25,997 thousand and Php 28,188 thousand, respectively, which
shows a decrease of Php 2,191 thousand or 7.77%. The Cost of services decreased due
to lower personnel costs and other direct costs during the 1t quarter of 2018,

Professional and legal fees — The Group's professional and legal fees in the first
quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 9,264 thousand and Php 10,296 thousand,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 1,032 thousand or 10.03%. The decrease
primarily came from the lower fees and decrease in services rendered by professionals
during the 1% quarter of 2018.

Personnel cost - The Group's personnel cost in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 9,181 thousand and Php 11,845 thousand, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 2,664 thousand or 22.49%. The decrease primarily came from the lower
personnel requirements of operations during the 1% quarter of 2018.

Advertising - The Group’s advertising expenses in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 7,432 thousand and Php 8,046 thousand, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 614 thousand or 7.83%. The decrease primarily came from the lower
advertising expenses required by operations during the 15t quarter of 2018.

Taxes and licenses — The Group's taxes and licenses in the first quarter of 2018 and
2017 amounted to Php 3,297 thousand and Php 8,981 thousand, respectively, which
shows a decrease of Php 5,684 thousand or 63.29%. The decrease primarily came from
the decrease in taxes incurred and taxable transactions of the Group during the 1
quarter of 2018.

Depreciation and amortization — The Group’s depreciation and amortization in the first
quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 4,165 thousand and Php 3,762
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thousand, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 403 thousand or 10.71%. The
increase primarily came from the increased halance of depreciable assets during the 1%
quarter of 2018.

Rentals and utilities and supplies — The Group's rentals and utilities and
supplies in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 2,320 thousand and
Php 2,998 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 678 thousand or
2263%. The decrease primarily came from the lower rentals, utilites, and supplies
required by operations during the 1% quarter of 2018.

Transportation & Travel — The Group's transportation and travel in the first quarter of
2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 2,328 thousand and Php 1,538 thousand, respectively,
which shows an increase of Php 790 thousand or 51.39%. The increase primarily came
from the increased transportation & travel expenses required by operations during the 15
quarter of 2018.

Entertainment, amusement and recreation — The Group’s entertainment, amusement
and recreation in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 1,620 thousand and
Php 701 thousand, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 919 thousand or
131.03%. The increase primarily came from the increased entertainment, amusement,
and recreation expenses required by operations during the 15t quarter of 2018.

Repairs and maintenance — The Group’s repairs and maintenance in the first quarter of
2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 533 thousand and Php 786 thousand, respectively,
which shows a decrease of Php 253 thousand or 32.18%. The decrease primarily came
from the decreased repairs and maintenance required by operations during the 1%t quarter
of 2018.

Other Expenses — The Group's other expenses in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 7,796 thousand and Php 5,725 thousand, respectively, which shows an
increase of Php 2,071 thousand or 36.17%. The increase primarily came from the
increased other expenses required by operations during the 1% quarter of 2018.

Interest income — The Group's interest income in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 1,746 thousand and Php 788 thousand, respectively, which shows an
increase of Php 858 thousand or 121.63%. The increase primarily came from the
increased balance of interest earning assets during the 1%t quarter of 2018.

Other income - net — The Group's other income - net in the first quarter of 2018 and
2017 amounted to Php 6,086 thousand and Php 3,660 thousand, respectively, which
shows an increase of Php 2,426 thousand or 66.26%. The increase primarily came from
higher service income earned from operations during the 1% quarter of 2018 which is
presented as part of the said account.

Interest expenses — The Group’s interest expenses in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 36,278 thousand and Php 27,369 thousand, respectively, which shows
an increase of Php 8,909 thousand or 32.55%. The increase primarily came from
increased bafance of inferest bearing liabilities during the 1%t quarter of 2018.

Provision for income tax (benefit} — The Group's provision for income tax (benefit)
in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php -nil- thousand and Php 3,073
thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 3,073 thousand or 100.00%.
There were no provisions for income tax (benefit) during the 1=t quarter of 2018.

For assessing impairment of goodwiil, a test of impairment is performed annually or when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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There were no seasonal aspects that had any material effect on the financial condition or
results of operation.

During the 1st quarter of 2018 the Group’s gross revenues and net loss amounted to Php
117,991 thousand and Php 48,930 thousand, respectively; while, in 2017 the same amounted
to Php 150,834 thousand and Php 32,891 thousand, respectively. In the 1% quarter of 2018
and 2017, The equity holder of the Parent amounted to Php 46,848 thousand and Php 34,550 -
thousand in net loss, respectively.

As of the March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, The Group's total assets amounted to Php
4,564,145 thousand and Php 4,096,553 thousand, respectively; the total liabilities of the same
aforesaid period amounted to Php 3,610,900 thousand and Php 3,094,378 thousand,
respectively.

The Parent Company incorporated West Palawan Premiere Development Corp. as a 100%
owned subsidiary.

The Parent Company increased its ownership interest in Redstone Construction and
Development Corporation to 80%. The increase took effect in the tst half of 2015.

In the 1st half of 2015, the Company acquired Goshen Land Capital, Inc. and obtained a 55%
ownership thus gaining control.

In 1%t half of 2015, the Parent Company increased its ownership to the Concepts Unplugged:
Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) an affiliate in 2014. The increase in ownership
gave the parent the power to control.

Financial Statements

The Company's consclidated Financial Statements are duly filed as part of this Annual Report. The
SEC Form 17-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2018 is attached as Annex “E."

(B) Information on Independent Auditor and Other Related Matters

{1) External Auditor's Fees and Services

a) Audit Fees

b)

d)

The Company has engaged SGV & Co. as its external auditor for the last six (6) fiscal years.
SGV & Co. has conducted the financial audit of the group including the parent company and
its various operating subsidiaries. For this service, the total biling of SGV & Co. (VAT

exclusive). were Php 1,770,000 Php 1,541,000, and Php770,000.00, for 2017, 2016, and
2015 respectively.

Tax Fees

Aside from the aforementioned activities, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not
engaged SGV & Co, for any other service.

All Other Fees

Aside from the audit fees disclosed under letter (a} above, the Company has not engaged any
cther services or products of SGV & Co. for the last five (5) fiscal years.

Audit Committee’s Approval Policles and Procedures

- Review the financial reporting and disclosures
- Ensure accounting policies and principles are adhered to
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- Review the internal contro! process used
- Ensure regulatory requirements have been complied with

(2) Changes In and Disagreements with Independent Auditors on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure
During the course of the audit, the Company and SGV & Co. did not have any material disagreements

on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope
or procedure.

(C) Market Information
(1) Market Price and Dividends
The common shares of the Company are traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE") under the

symbol “PHA". The Company’s closing price as of May 15, 2018 was Php 0.390.

The following table indicates the quarterly high and low sale price of the Company's common shares
as reported on the PSE for the years 2014 up to May 31, 2018.

HIGH Low

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

1st Quarter  0.4550 0.44 0.44 0.60 0.38 0.42 0.43 0.42 0.56 0.36
0.3550

As of
2nd Quarter  May31 0.40 0.43 0.65 0.455 0.35 0.39 0.42 0.57 0.45
3rd Quarter 0.39 0.41 0.69 0.66 0.39 0.41 0.56 0.62
4th Quarter 0.36 0.48 0.58 0.6 0.35 0.45 0.46 0.58

As of May 15, 2018 there were 126 shareholders of record of PHA’s common shares and listed below
are the top twenty (20) common shareholders, including their nationalities, number of shares held,
and the approximate percentages of their respective shareholdings to PHA's total outstanding
common stocks:

SHAREHOLDERS' NAME NATIONALITY HOLDINGS RANK
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION Filipino 1,480,559,189 74.38%
PCD NCMINEE CORPQORATION (NON-
FILIPINO) Foreign 123,944,101 6.23%
SISO M. LAO Filipino 71,666,666 3.60%
AUGUSTO C. SERAFICA, JR Filipino 70,000,001 3.52%
TEQOFILO A. HENSON Filipino 50,000,000 2.51%
TLC MANNA CONSULTING, INC. Filipino 40,000,000 2.01%
S. CAPITAL CORP Filipino 36,000,000 1.81%
ASIAN ALLIANCE INVESTMENT
CORPORATION Filipino 34,722,223 1.74%
MYKA ADVISORY AND CONSULTANCY
SERVICES, INC Filipino 27,500,000 1.38%
RAUL MA. F. ANONAS Filipino 1.07%
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21,250,000

ALFREDO LOZANO JR. ‘ Filipino 16,666,666 0.84%
RAFAEL YAPTINCHAY Filipino 8,333,334 0.42%
KENNETH KEE YAO SEE Filipino 1,750,000 0.09%
ANTONIO ONG Filipino 1,500,000 0.08%
RENATO Y. CHUA Filipino 1,050,000 0.05%
ERNESTO LIM Filipino 1,000,000 0.05%
RAUL ALON Filipino 500,000 0.03%
LILY ROSE DE LEON Filipino 475,000 0.02%
SHIRLEY Y. SEE Filipino 300,000 0.02%
LEONCIO TAN TIU Filipino 200,000 0.01%
TOTAL TOP 20 SHAREHOQLDERS 1,987,417,180 99.85%
TOTAL OUSTANDING SHARES 1,990,480,839  100.00%
(3) Dividends

PHA has declared a 22.1% property dividend of it Redstone Construction and Development Corp.
(RCDC) to stockholders of record May 15, 2018 equivalent of 268 million shares at the new par value
of Php 0.10 per share and a cash dividend of Php 0.001482 per share or a total of Php 2.95 million to
be applied to the payment of applicable taxes. The dividend will come from the unrestricted retained
eaming as of December 31, 2017. The property dividend ratio will be at 1,346 shares of RCDC for
every 10,000 PHA shares.

On December 18, 2013, the Board of Directors of DSI approved the declaration of a total of Php78.0

million as stock dividend from its un-appropriated retained earnings. Payment is subject to approval
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of the increase in autherized capital stock.

Under the By-Laws of the Company, dividends shall be declared only from surplus profits and shall be
payable at such time and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine as they deem
proper; Provided, however, that no stock dividends shall be issued without the approval of the
stockholders representing not less than two-thirds (2/3) of all stock then outstanding and entitled to
vote at a general meeting of the Company or at a special meeting called for the purpose. No
dividends shall be declared that impair the capital of the Company. Other than the aforesaid, there are
no other restrictions that would limit or would likely to limit in the future the ability of the company to
pay dividends on common equity.

(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction
I. Subscription by Regular Directors

On December 15, 2011 the majority of the board of directors authorized the subscription by three (3)
of its regular directors to one hundred seventy five million (175,000,000} of the Company's unissued
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common shares at a subscription price of Php0.30 per share or at Php0.05 above par value. The
three (3) subscribing directors are: Mr. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr., Mr. Siso M. Lao and Mr.
Teofilo A. Henson. The subscribing directors did not vote during the meeting when their offer to
subscribe to the unissued shares was approved.

{5) Interim Financial Statement

The interim financial statement as of March 31, 2018 is incorporated in the 17-Q report.

D. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (PHA) recognizes the need to ensure that the Company is
directed, supervised, and supported with accountability, impartiality and transparency.

The Board of Directors and the Management of PHA also recognizes good corporate govemnance as
essential in performing its obligations to the company's stockholders. To this end, PHA aims to
strengthen its corporate governance to accomplish the corporate goals along with its guarantee fo
increase stockholder value.

PHA Corporate Governance Manual

The original Manual of Corporate Governance was adopted on July 1, 2002. Pursuant to SEC
Memorandum No. 6, the Company revised its Manual of Corporate Governance on September 186,
2009. The Company accomplished and submitted its Corporate Governance Scorecard Survey for
Publicly Listed Companies. In compliance, the Board of Directors and Key Management officers of the

Corporation have aftended Corporate Governance seminars and will continue to do so on an annual
basis.

To measure the extent of compliance with the Manual, the Company conducted self-assessment and
submitted its first Governance Seif Rating, which reported no significant deviation, to SEC and PSE
on July 25, 2003. The Company conducted a self-assessment in 2011 when it participated in the
Corporate Governance Scorecard for Publicly Listed Companies, which was administered by the
Institute of Corporate Directors, SEC and PSE. The Scorecard was submitted on November 25, 2011.
Additionally, the Company submitted its Corporate Governance Guidelines Disclosure Survey on
March 28, 2012 to the PSE. It has continued to accomplish and submit the same disclosure template
survey every year.

In July and December 2018, 8 Directors and 11 Key Officers of the Company attended a Corporate
Governance Training conducted by ROAM Inc.

The Company has also established an evaluation system to measure or determine the level of
compliance of the Board of Directors and top level management with its Revised Manual of Corporate
Governance ("Manual’) that included the continuous monitoring of the Board members’ attendance in
its board meetings and various committee meetings. The Cerification on the Attendance of the
individual members of the Board of Directors is submitted apnually to the SEC and the PSE.
Moreover, the attendance and participation of the members of the Board of Directors and the senior

management of the Company in seminars and trainings on Corporate Governance are also monitored
and submitted to the SEC and PSE.

The Board of Directors and Management, employees and shareholders, believe that corporate
governance is a necessary component of sound strategic business management and will therefore
undertake every effort necessary to continuously create awareness within the organization.

Board Committees
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To further comply with the leading practices on good Corporate Governance, the Company, through
its Board of Directors, adopted and approved its Charters of the Audit Committee, Nominations
Committee and Compensation Committee. . During the special meeting of the board of directors on
February 6, 2018, the Audit Committee was renamed as the Audit and Risk Oversight Committee,
while the Nominations and Compensation Committees have been joined together and renamed as the
Corporate Governance Committee. The establishment of the Related Party Transactions Commities
was also approved on even date .

The Corporate Govemnance Committee was constituted to accept and to pre-screen nominees for
election as independent directors conformably with the criteria prescribed under existing SEC rules
and the Company's Code of Corporate Govemnance; to prepare and to make available to the SEC and
the stockholders before the stockholders’ meeting a final list of candidates; to establish a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a policy on executive remuneration, and for fixing the
remuneration packages of corporate officers and directors.

Executive Committee
Chairman: George Edwin Y. Sycip
Members: Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr.

Raul Ma. F. Anonas
Winston A. Chan
Secretary: Atty. Stephen E. Cascolan

Audit and Risk Oversight Committee

Chairman: Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos {Independent Director)
Members: Ramon G. Santos (Independent Director)
Siso M. Lao
Victor Y. Lim
Corporate Governance Committee
Chairman; Ramon G. Santos (Independent Director)
Members: Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos (independent Director)
Victor Y. Lim

Related Party Transactions Committee
Chairman: Winston A, Chan
Members: Victor Y. Lim

Ramon A. Reclo

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Company has also adopted a Code of Ethics last September 16, 2009. Under this Code, the
Board of Diractors, officers, management and staff committed themselves to conduct business in
accordance with the highest ethical standards and shall discharge their duties with utmost
responsibility, integrity, transparency, competence, loyalty and will uphold corporate interest over

personal gains.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Premiere Leadership and Countryside Engagement Series (PLACE)

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation will be working with different partners in the fulfiliment of its

commitment to invigorate the countryside and improve the leadership potential of micro and small

entrepreneurs to make them more competitive in the ASEAN Economic Community integration
beginning 2015.

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation will sponsor and hold leadership training modules to SME
entrepreneurs thereby raising the capacity for leading and sustaining change in the countryside.
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The scope of the PLACE Program is nationwide and will be done on a quarterly basis.

Film Legacy Project

Premiere Horizon has ownership of thousands of original films, it will institute a Film Legacy Project in

partnership with the National Library and different private museums. Film showing projects will also be
done in'schools.
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IPREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES i
'CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS . b
(In Php000.00) e S .
e Unaudited | Audited
|
i March 31, {December
| 2018 31, 2017
L e ASSETS e
‘Current Assets o e | .
‘Cash 55,617 70,160
‘Receivables 1,629,259 | 1,424,673
'Real Estate Held for Sale R ) 825,560 824,985
'Unused supplies spare parls - I B 21,7931 13,004
QOther current assets 694,891 301,996
Total current assots 3,227,121 | 2,634,818
Noncurrent Assets . o ,, . e
:Noncurrent portion of mstallment contracts reoewable _____  220981% 220,981
‘Land and land deveiopmenl ) 584681, 578789
lnlang:ble assets ets L 143,710 143,710
_Property and equlpment [ - i 316085 330,386
Other noncurrent assets i 71,587 187,868
.Total Noncurrent assets | 1,337,024 | 1,461,734
'Total Assets i 4,564,145 | 4,096,553
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY _
‘Gurrant Liabilities _ o .
‘Trade anc_!_g_t_l_jer payables N 1,335,870 907, 372
Short-termgebt _ 217,523 | 209,100
‘Income tax payable 344 344
Current portion of long term debt: ~ i e |
Purchased land payable o o 126,990 148,905 |
_Loanspayable . | ..515382) 4077011
. Obligation under finance lease 19,957 26,121 ¢
“Total Current Liabilities 2,216,065 | 1,699,543
Noncurrent Liabllltl_ o ) . o _ o )
Pension Liabililies VT et 13483
‘Convertible loans ) . i 522921, 522,921
Noncurrent portion of long term debt: 1 f
Purchased land payable ] L 0367: 20367
_ Obligation under fi I L ) 8625 ; 8,625
_ Loans payable - - 566,756 566,756
‘Capital gains tax payable 26,940 26,940
‘Defemed tax liabilities-Net i 236,043 236,043
‘Total Noncurrent Liabilitles | 1,394,835 | 1,394,835
"Total Llabllities | 3,610,500 | 3,094,378
Stockholders' Equity L e
i
N
Equ[ty attributable to equity holders of the parent . B
|Caprlal_ stock N ~ 472,715 472,715
| id-in capital S - - 66074 ) 66,074
il _n_rga_h;sg_g ain on AFS financial assets _ - -
'Retained eammgs 139,871 186,719
{Parent Company shares heid by a subsidlary i {133,664)|  (133,664)
‘Equity attributable to Parent . o o ) 544996 | 591,845
Equily atiributable fo non-controlling interests 408,249 | 410331
:Total Equity 953,245 | 1,002,175
:Total Llabilities and Equity 4,564,145 | 4,096,553
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' PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

|Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

{(In Php000.00) R
% |

| For three months ended March 31

* 2018 | 2017
IREVENUES o o

‘Real estate sales 104,288 | 144,770

e

Mlnmg related services

! i 13,702 6,065

'Total revenue

117,991 | 150,834

Costs of real estate sold 1l

R o 64,543 | 81,010
Costs of services 25997 | 28,188
GROSS PROFIT 27,451 | 41,636
|OTHER COSTS AND EXPENSES B
: Professional and legal fees 9,264 | 10,296
.Personnel costs 9,181 11,845
| Advertsing 7,432 8,046
}Tams and licenses _ 3,297 8,981
Deprec:ahon and amortization {4,165 3,762
Rent and utilities and supplies E 2,320 2,998
Transportation and travel T 238 1538
Entertainment, amusement and recreatlon ; 11620 701
Repairs and maintenance - 1 786
Others ! . T79%, 5725

47,935 54,680

INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE OTHER

FI‘NCOME AND CHARGES |__(20,484), (13,043):

| | |

'OTHER INCOME(CHARGES) ’E

'Interestincome I D 1746 788

Other lncome-net 6 086 3,660

Interest expenses (36,278} (27,369)
(28,446)] (22,920)

INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

| (48,930); (35,964)

'PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX {BENEFITS) T - (3.073)

meonnE {LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD L

" (48,930 (32,89

wINCOMEFROM CONTINUING OPERATION

'Equity holders of the parent ;

(46,848)| (34,550).

:Non-controlling interest

(2,082) 1,660

|

(48,930)| (32,891)

'NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD

(48,930)| (32,891)
|

‘ ol
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'PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
'UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
i(In000) S o R o
For three months ended March 31
2018 2017
CAPITALSTOCK o . .
Issued and subscribed shares 472,715 472,715
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL ) 66,074 | 66,074
'UNREALIZED GAIN ON AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS - (335)
PARENT COMPANY SHARES HELD BY SUBSIDIARY | (133,664) (133,999)
'RETAINED EARNINGS oo B 5 |
'Beginning 186,719 | 150,958
| Net incom{loss) {46,848);  (34,550)
Balance at end of the period 139,871 116,408
' ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
‘Balance at beginning of the period 410,331 399,638
\Increase .
Total beginning balance of non-controling interest of subsidiary 410,331 | 399,638
‘Net income(loss) affributable to non-controlling interest {2,082) 1,660
Balance at end of the period 408,249 | 401,297
“TOTAL EQUITY 953,245 | 922,160
{

L
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| PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
'UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in Php000.00)

;
i

For thres months ended March 31

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES | |
Income {loss) before income tax (48,930); (35,964)
' Adiustments for:
1 Depreciation and Amortization ! 17,630 24,197
i Gain on change in FV of investment property I -
~ Gain on sale of investment in associates B

InterestExpenses . 36,278 | 27,369
¢ Interest Income (1,746) (788)
| Operating income (loss)before working capital changes 3,231 14,814
Decrease (increase) in;

Receivables {204,586)! (162,357)
 Unused supplies N o _ (8,789)] (209)
__Realestateheld forsale L TSN (7823)
. Othercurrentassets 1 (392895); (47.470)
‘Increase {decrease) in:

Trade payables 428,498 . 71,667
“Net cash flows from (used in) operation {175,116)! (131,377)
Interestreceied = L746 | 788
Interest paid o e L B6,278)) | (27,369)
‘Income fax paid - {9}
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities {209,648)5 {157,967)
‘CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES !

i Cash received from sales of investment in associates :

- Acquisition of property and equipment (3,309)]  (3,825)
Land and land developmentcosts ol (5892)) (1,878)
Increase (decrease} in other noncurrent assets 116,281 {16)
"Net cash (used in} provided by 107,080 | (5,719
:CASH FLOWS FROM FINACING ACTIVITIES !

.Proceeds from: ' ;

Short-term loans . i 8423 153,775

;. Loans payable e 1,107,681

. Comertibleloans i R S
. Subscripfonreceivables . 4 - 1800
. _Shares held by subsidiary -
Paymentof: . ) S
.. Purchased landpayable =~~~ . {219:15)

Obligations under finance lease . (6,184)] (21,176)

. Long-term loans S N .. 146,560)
‘Purchase of shares held by subsidiary - | 19,821
.Increase {decrease) in obligations under finance lease L (6,022)
'Cash flows from financing activities 88,024 . 101,437
iNET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

f EQUIVALENTS (14,543) (62,249)
'CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE S NS S
|BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 70,160 \[ 90,310
‘TOTAL CASH AT THE BEGINNING . 70,160 90,310
(CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE j
'END OF THE PERIOD 55,617 | 28,061

|
i
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In Php 000)

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (PHA or the Parent Company), was incorporated in the Philippines
on January 13, 1988 and listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on May 35, 1997. The Parent

Company’s primary purpose is to engage in business activities relating to entertainment, gaming, hotel and
leisure,

The Parent Company’s registered address is Metro Manila, Philippines. Currently, the Parent Company
acts as holding company to Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation and Subsidiaries (the Group).

On December 29, 2011, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the amended articles of
incorporation of the Parent Company which include the following:

a. change of name of the corporation from Premiere Entertainment Philippines, Inc. to Premiere Horizon
Alliance Corporation;

b. reduction in deficit amountingP1,236.44 million by decreasing the authorized capital stock from B
1,800.00 million to B563.56 million (sec Note 16); and

c. Amendment of secondary purpose clause to include the authority to engage in non-gaming business
such as mining and real estate.

On April 26, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application on the treatment of quasi-
reorganization in the consolidated financial statements.

On May 27, 2013 and September 30, 2014, the stockholders and Board of Directors (BOD), respectively,
approved the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation (AOI) of the Parent Company to change the
Parent Company”’s principal place of business to Unit E-1705, 17th Floor, East Tower, Philippine Stock

Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. On November 7, 2014, the SEC approved
the amendment to the AOI

Cash

This account consists of:

Unaudited
March 31, 2018 Audited 2017
Cash on hand B 1,456 B 1,456
Cash in banks 54,161 68,704
P 55,617 B 70,160

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.
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3.

Receivables - net

This account consists of;

Unaudited
March 31, 2018 Audited 2017
Contract receivables P 1,499,636 P 1,333,101
Trade receivables 60,930 42,533
Advances to officers and employees 61,833 50,388
Others 14,930 7,981
1,637,329 1,434,003
Less allowance for impairment losses 8,070 9,330
P 1,629,259 P 1424673
Aging of Receivables
Account Title Total 1-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90
1 | Contract receivables 1,499,636 152,349 564,413 550,398 234,476
2 | Trade 60,930 28,325 4,670 10,953 16,982
3 | Advances to 6.783 .
employees & officers 61,833 ’ 20,345 18,798
4 | Others 14,930 13,196 1,734 - 15,907
Total 1,637,329 200,653 591,162 580,149 265,365
4,  Other Current Assets
This account consists of
Unaudited
March 31, 2018 Audited 2017
Advances to suppliers and contractors B 271,832 P 271,832
Input Tax — Value Added Tax 19,039 15,608
Advances for projects 391,551 -
Tax Credits 9,699 11,288
Prepayments 836 787
Others 1,883 2,481
P 694,891 301,996
3. Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of:
Unaudited
March 31,2618 Audited 2017
Trade payables B 549,291 R 219,393
Advances from third parties 223,344 223,344
Accrued expenses 159,297 95,692
Customers® deposits and advances 124,097 89,449
Retention payable 83,289 82,942
Others 196,552 196,552
B 1,335,870 B 907,372
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Diretors:

ANNEX "A"

information required of Directors and Key Officers

Na
: fsgieeh e U 3
ugusto Antonio C.
Serafica. Jr. 56 | Filipino President & CEO January 2013 to
present
March 2011 to
present
Siso M. Lao Vice Chairman January 1, 2015
52 Filipino Director (Vice Chairman)
September 2012
to present
Raul F. Anonas 55 Filipino Director January 1, 2015
EVP & COO (EVP & COQ)
Ramon A. Recto December 2012
85 Filipino Director
. July 28, 2015
Vietor Y. Lim, Jr. 72 | Filipino Director to present
George Y. Sycip
61 American Director February 6, 2018
Winston A. Chan
61 Filipino Director February 6, 2018
Ramon G. Santos Independent
68 Filipino Director February 6, 2018
Arsenio Benjamin E. independent
Santos 70 Filipino Director February 6, 2018

Mr. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr. (President & CEO, Director)

Mr. Serafica (age 56) was elected as a Regular Director during the Board meeting on May
2010 and became Chairman in March 2011 to December 2014. Mr. Serafica is also the
current Managing Director of Asian Alliance Investment Corporation and Asian Alliance
Holdings & Development Corporation. He is also a Regular Director of Marventures
Holdings Inc. and Bright Kindle Resources Inc. Mr. Serafica is a veteran investment banker
with expertise in mergers and acquisitions, fundraising and placement and business
development. Industries that he is quite versed with are mining, real estate and technology.
Mr. Serafica is also the past Chairman of the AIM Alumni Association and is the current
National Treasurer of the Brotherhood of Christian Businessmen & Professionals. A CPA,
Mr. Serafica earned his BA in Accountancy in San Beda College and acquired his MA in
Business Management from the Asian Institute of Management.



Mr. Siso M. Lao (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lac (age 52) was elected as the Vice Chairman of the Board effective January 1, 2015,
He became a Director of Premiere Horizon in 2011. Mr. Lao is the President and CEO of
Milestone Garments Manufacturing and a director of One Megaworld Ventures, Skyfoods
Corp. and 3L Properties & Alpha Devt Corp. Mr. Lao is also the Vice President of
Blackstone Properties and Development Corp. and FirstCapitol Inc. Mr. Lao’s expertise in
real estate development is a perfect match to Premiere Horizon's plan of tourism and

property development. Mr. Lao graduated from Patts Coliege of Aeronautics with a degree
of Aeronautical Engineering.

Mr. Raul F. Anonas (Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer, Director)

Mr. Anonas (age 55) was elected as Regular Director of Premiere Horizon in September
2012. Mr. Anonas is the Chairman of Rosabaya Distributors Inc. and Humabon Distributors.
He is also the Vice Chairman of First Ardent Property Development Corporation and
President & CEQ of Rajawali Resources and Hoidings Inc. Mr. Anonas is a corporate
finance veteran with expertise in investment banking, mergers & acquisitions and project
financing. He also has extensive experience as an entrepreneur and has successfully
managed start-up companies. Mr. Anonas holds a B.S. Management Degree from the
Ateneo de Manila University and an MBA in Finance from Fordham University.

Ramon A. Recto (Regular Director)

Mr. Recto (85) was elected as Regular Director last December 18, 2012. He is the
Chairman & President of C.M.E. Technology Philippines, Inc., Director of Crown Equities,
Inc. and was President of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. He has been involved in several
business entities largely in the fieid of mining and exploration of iron, copper, gold and other -
minerals. A graduate of Master of Industrial Management and a holder of Bachelor of
Science in Mechanical Engineering and Electrical Engineering at the University of the
Philippines.

Mr. Victor Y. Lim (Regular Director)

Mr. Lim (age 72) was elected as Regular Director on July 28, 2015. He is currently the
Chairman of V2S Property Developers,Inc., President of Yuchengco Lim Development
Corporation, Chairman of National Affairs Committee of the Financial Executives Institute of
the Philippines (FINEX), Trustee of the Ateneo Scholarships Foundation, Secretary of the
International Association of the Financial Executives Istitute, Director of the Ateneo Alumni
Association and member of the Management Association of the Philippines. Mr. Lim holds a
Bachelor of Science in Economics degree from the Ateneo de Manila University and a
Masters in Business Management degree from the Asian Institute of Management.



George Y. Sycip (Regular Director)

Mr. SyCip (age 61) was elected as Regular Director on February 06, 2018. Mr. SyCip is the
President of Halanna Management Corporation and a Founder and Principal in Galaxaco
China Group LLC. Mr SyCip advises a variety of companies in their cross-border endeavors
between the US, Europe, Asia and Africa. Mr. SyCip had a career in banking, including
serving as Chief Financial Officer of United Savings Bank, a leading provider of banking
services to California’s Asian communities and a major originator of home mortgages in the
State during the 1980s. He now sits on several corporate boards including Alliance Select
Foods International, Inc., Asian Alliance Investment Corporation, Beneficial Life Insurance
Company, Bank of the Orient, and Paxys, Inc. He is also an Advisor to the Board of
Cityland Development Corporation. Mr. SyCip currently serves as a Trustee or Director of
several non-profit organizations, Including the International Institute of Rural
Reconstruction, Give2Asia, Global Heritage Fund, and the California Asia Business
Council. Mr SyCip received his A.B. in International Relations/Economics ‘With Distinction’
from Stanford University and his M.B.A. from Harvard Graduate School of Business
Administration. '

Winston A. Chan (Regular Director)

Mr. Chan (age 61) was elected as Regular Director on February 06, 2018. He is a retired
partner of SGV/EY and former managing partner of SGV/EY Advisory Service Line. Mr.
Chan has more than 28 years of management consulting experience. Mr. Chan is a
Certified Information Systems Manager (CISM), a Certified Information Systems Auditor
(CISA), and a Certified Public Accountant (CPA). He is a member of the Management
Association of the Philippines (MAP), and the board of directors of the Harvard Club of the
Philippines (HCP). He is the chairman of the ICT commitiee of the SGV Foundation. Mr.
Chan completed the Advanced Management Program (AMP) at the Harvard Business
School in Boston, MA, The Advanced Business Strategy Course at INSEAD Singapore, and
the Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management (AlM). He
has also attended numerous training programs of Andersen Continuing Education Center in
St. Charles, lllinois, both as participant and faculty. He obtained his Bachelor of Science
Degree in Accountancy at Colegio de San Juan de Letran.

Ramon G. Santos (independent Director)

Mr. Ramon G. Santos (age 68) was elected as Independent Director on February 06, 2018.
Mr. Santos served in the Philippine Army for 33 years and retired with a rank of Brigadier
General in 2005. He was appointed as Undersecretary in October 2005 with the Office of
Presidential Adviser for the Peace Process (OPAPP). Mr. Santos is a Professorial Lecturer
at the Institute of Graduate Studies of the Philippine State College of Aeronautics. He is
currently working as Senior Technical Consultant at the OPAPP. Mr. Santos is currently the
President of Green Power Panay Inc., CEO of Tirad Pass Consulting, Director of the
Education and Training Committee of One Eye Security Consuitancy and Senior Vice
President of the Professional Training Institute of Kali, Inc. Mr. Santos has a PhD and
Masters in Development Administration from the Philippine Christian University. He also
finished his Master in Strategic Studies at the US Army War College in the USA.



Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos (Independent Director)

Mr. Arsenio Benjamin E. Santos (age 70) was elected as Independent Director on February
06, 2018. He is currently the President and CEO of Southwest Maritime Group of
Companies. Mr. Santos is also the President of Chiba Marine Repair, Inc.. He is the
Director of Link Edge, Inc., islas Tankers Group, isias Tankers Holdings and Shuwa Kaiun
Kaisha, Ltd. He is also the Chairman of Nippon Kaiji Kyokai (NK). Mr. Santos is also a
member of American Bureau of Shipping and a Philippine Technical Committee member of
the Bureau Veritas. Mr. Santos was a Director of Batangay Bay Carriers, Inc., National
Marine Corporation and Filipino Shipowners Association. He used to be the Managing
Director in Westwind Shipping Corporation and Baliwag Navigation Inc.

Key Corporate Officers

Atty Roberto V. San Jose (Corporate Secretary)

Atty. San Jose has been the Corporate Secretary of the Company since 1996. He is a
member of the Philippine Bar and is a Partner of the Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon and San
Jose Law Offices. He is Chairman and Director of Mabuhay Holdings Corp., and Director
and/or Corporate Secretary of CP Group of Companies, CP Equities Corp., Atlas Resources
Management Group, and MAA Consultants, Inc. He is also currently the Corporate
Secretary of Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc., Solid Group, Inc., Philweb Corporation,
FMF Development Corp., and Anglo Philippines Holdings Corp. Afty. San Jose holds a Law
Degree from the University of the Philippines.

Atty. Ana Maria Katigbak- Lim (Asst. Corporate Secretary)

Atty. Katigbak assumed the position of Asst. Corporate Secretary since 1897. A member of
the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and a graduate of Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of
Arts in Comparative Literature (Cum Laude) at the University of the Philippines, she is
currently a partner at the Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon San Jose Law Offices. She is also a
Director or Officer of publiciy-listed companies and registered membership clubs such as:
Boulevard Holdings, Inc., Mabuhay Holdings, Inc., Solid Group, Inc., The Metropolitan Club,
Inc., AJO.net Holdings, Inc. and PhilWeb Corporation.

Atty. Stephen E. Cascolan (Asst. Corporate Secretary)

Atty. Cascolan assumed the position of Asst. Corporate Secretary last 2013. A member of
the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and a graduate of Bachelor of Arts in Philippine
Studies, Major in Journalism and Creative Writing at the University of the Philippines, he is
currently a managing partner at the Benipayo and Partners Law Firm.
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CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2 (C) THEREUNDER

1, Date of Report: 27 Apiil 2018
2. SEC identification number: 147584 3. BIR Tox Identification No.:

3. Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter:

B qmrmrme T N VW OF
S C 1
W:f:; Al I TRN

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization:

LR

6. Indusiry Classification Code: (SEC Use Only) Ca

-

7. Address of registrant's principal office: Postal Code
Unit 1705, 17™ Floor, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center/ Pasig City

1605
8. Registrant's telephone number, including orea code: 02 632-7715
9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, If changed since last report: NOT APPLICABLE

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 &12 of the Code, or Sections 4 & 8 of the RSA

Tite of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount
of debt outstanding
COMMON STOCK P | PAR VALUE

1,6468,592.000 Issued and Listed

11. Item number/s reported herein:

item 9. Other Events

We advise that the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (“the
Corporation”) will be held on June 21, 2018 at Valle Verde Country Club, Inc. Capt. Henry Javier Street, Pasig
City. The record date will be on May 15, 2018. The President of the Corporation was previously authorized by
ihe Board of Directors to finalize the date, time, venue and Agenda of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting as
well as the Record Date.

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
Issuer 27 April 2018

mm I?’ | Date

RAUL MA. F. ANOI
Corporate Information Officer
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SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, ANA MARIA A, KATIGBAK, of legal age, Filipino, with office
address at the 3 Floor, The Valero Tower, 122 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law, do
hereby depose and state that:

L I am the duly elected and qualified Asst. Corporate Secretary of
PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION (the “Corporation”), a
corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines
with principal office address at Unit 1705, East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Center Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605.

2. I hereby certify that none of the Corporation’s Regular Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers are appointed or employed in any
government agency.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate was signed and issued this
day of May 2018 at Makati City, Philippines.

ANA MARIZA. KATIGBAK

Assistant Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this MAY 7 & 2018 at
Makati City by affiant whose identity I have confirmed through her Passport
No. P1893381A issued on February 7, 2017 in Manila, bearing the affiant’s
photograph and signature. '

Doc. No. :? { j ; ANy

DAISY MARGARET V. DUCEPEC
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

1, ARSENIO BENJAMIN E. SANTOS., Filipino, of legal age, and i
Tower, Pacific Plaza Towers, Pacific Avenue, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City,

to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1.. 1 am an independent director of PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIA

adgmeesal wmm
pworn 1

nrAsem et Dl!lﬁn

llntro-le Recorda hin

éﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂl&

T
2. |am affiliated with the following companies or organizations: k P - D
ot st :. :’.f:i‘*“ v,
Company / Organizations Period of Service Position [/ Relatio
Southwest Maritime Group 1993 - Present President & CEﬂ
of Companies
Chiba Marine Repalr, Inc. 1988 - Present President
Link Edge, Inc. 2001 - Present Director
Istas Tankers Holdings 1980 - Present Director
Shuwa Kaiun Kaisha, Ltd. 1980 - Present Director
{Tokyo, Japan)
American Bureau of 1998- Present Member
Shipping
Nippon Kaiji Kyokai (NK) 1998 -- Present Chairman
Bureau Veritas 1996 - Present Member
Batangas Bay Carriers, Inc. 1991-1993 Director
National Marine Corp. 1988 — 1993 Director
Westwind Shipping Corp. 1980 — 1993 Managing Director
Filipino Shipowners Assoc 1980-1993 Director / Treasurer
Baliwag Navigation, Inc. 1970-1993 Managing Director
Victoria Shipping Lines, Inc. 1970 — 1972 Executive Assistant

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC

Issuances.

4. | am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of (covered company and
its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provide under Rule 38.2.3 of the
Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME

SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

OFDIRECTOR/OFFICER/

COMPANY

NATURE OF
RELATIONSHIP

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation proceeding/ | disclose that | am the subject of the following criminal/administrative
investigation or proceeding {as the case maybe)

OFFENSE CHARGED /
INVESTIGATED

TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY
INVOLVED

STATUS




oy W

6. (For those involved in government agency or GOCC) | have the required written permission or

consent from the head of the agency/department fo be an independent director in
, pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

7. 1shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent director
under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of
Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. |shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation of any changes
in the above mentioned information within five days from its occurrence.

Done this day of May, 2018 at Pasig City.

ARSENIO AMIN E. SANTOS

Affiant
' IASI

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me thid" XY 1 Tiagiiy 2018, at GO ot
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, RAMON G. SANTOS, Filipino, of legal age, and with address at 35 Evangelista Street
AFPOVAI, Taguig City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare

/I’

that:
‘ (OERShangs q

1. 1am an independent director of PREMIERE HORIZO %ﬁ_ﬁg’é‘é@m DRATION.

2. ] am affiliated with the following companies or orgamzftlm MAY 07 ma T
Company / Organizations Period of Service P sitiorship p
Philippine Military (ARMY) 1973-2005 Rl v

Office of the Presidential October 2005 ! '
Adviser for the Peace
Process (OPAPP)
DENR 2006-2007 Under Secretary for Social
Mobilization
DOE 2007-2010 Usec for Renewable Energy
Office of Civil Defense 2010-2014 ‘ Director
(NDRRMGC)
Office of Civil Defense 2010-2015 Executive Director
(ARMM)
Office of Senator Pia 2014-2017 Regent to State University as Senate
Cayetano Representative
Institute of Graduate 2016-2017 Professional Lecturer
Studies (Philippine State
College of Aeronautics
Office of the Presidential 2016-present Senior Technical Consultant
Adviser for the Peace
Process (OPAPP)

3. ! possess all the gualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC
Issuances.

4. | am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of {covered company and
its subsidiaries and affiliates} other than the relationship provide under Rule 38.2.3 of the
Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME OF COMPANY NATURE OF
DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ RELATIONSHIP
SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation proceeding / | disclose that | am the subject of the following
criminal/fadministrative investigation or proceeding. {as the case maybe)

OFFENSE CHARGED / TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS
INVESTIGATED INVOLVED




| 6. (For those involved in government agency or GOCC) | have the required written permission
or consent from the head of the agencv/department to be an independent director in
, pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

7. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independeﬁt
director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations,
Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation of any
changes in the above mentioned information within five days from its occurrence.

Done this day of May, 2018 at Pasig City.

éON G. SANTOS

Affiant
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

teeccusritiers anas
'" Exochange
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SEC FORM 17-A ¢l 13 lloceruhlccen!ulhngmnemvmn

MAY 09 2018
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTI N ﬁl

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION: e e
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILI S o duo comenis

J

v 50 =/

1. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.
2. SEC Identification Number 147584.
3. BIR Tax Identification Number 043-002-727-376.

4. Exact Name of Registrant as specified in its charter,

PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION.

5. Philippines 6. (SEC Use Only)
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of  Industry Classification Code
incorporation or organization

7. Unit 1705, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City 1605

Address of Principal Office Postal Code

8. (02) 632-7715
Registrant’s Telephone Number, including Area Code

9. N/A
Former Name, former Address, and Former Fiscal Year, if changed since last report

10. Securities Registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC,

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common ' 1,990,480,889 common shares

11. Are any of or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.
Yes [X] No []

If yes, state the name of such stbck exchange and the classes of securities listed
therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange Common shares



12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder or and Sections 26 and 141 of The Corporation Code of the
Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that

theregistrant was required to file such reports);
Yes [X] No []
(b} has been subject to such filing requirements for the 90 days.
Yes [] No [X]
13. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates:

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section

17 of the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court
or the Commission,

Yes [ ] No [] Not Applicable [X]

15. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and
identify the part of SEC Form 17-A into which the document is incomorated:
(a) Any annual report to security holders;
(b) Any proxy or information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20 and 17.1 (b);
(c) Any Prospectus filed pursuant to SRC Rule 8.1-1.

Not Applicable
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ftem 1. Description of Business

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (formerly Premiere Entertainment Philippines, Inc.)
(*PHA” or the “Company”) was incorporated on 13 January 1988 and was then known as
Premiere Films International, Inc. On 20 June 1996 the Corporation’s name was amended to
Premiere Entertainment Productions Inc.

On 5 May 1997, PHA was listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE") and thus, became
the first public company engaged in the production of motion pictures. The Company
envisioned a two-pronged thrust a major presence in the local and international
entertainment industry and an initial venture into gaming to round up its total entertainment
offer.

On 16 May 2008, the Company’s shareholders and board of directors approved the change
in the Company’'s name to “Premiere Entertainment Philippines, Inc.”, increase in authorized
capital stock, and the acquisition of Digiwave Solutions Inc. (“DSI"), a corporation engaged in
the development of gaming software and the operation of internet casino stations.

On December 29, 2011, the company's name was changed to Premiere Horizon Alliance
Corporation and added the business of mining, real estate, information technology and other
related business. The company also lowered the par value of its shares from P1.00 to P0.25,
thus decreasing its authorized capital stock from Php 1,800,000,000.00 to Php
563,556,000.00.

In April 24, 2012, the Company obtained the approval of the Board of Directors to acquire

66.9% of Redstone Construction and Development Corporation (RCDC). RCDC is engaged
in the business of providing hauling and other services for construction works for mining, real
estate development, environmental protection & remediation, dam, dikes, flood control and
reclamation including quarrying, hauling, earthmoving and heavy equipment. The
acquisition is implemented through subscription of 25.8 million shares of RCDC's
outstanding capital stock at Php 1.50 per share.

On December 18, 2012, the Company obtained the approval of the Board of Directors to
invest in 40% of the equity of First Ardent Development Corporation (FADC), a company
engaged in real estate development. As of December 31, 2012, the Company owns 25.6
million shares for a total cost of Php 32.0 million.

On May 22, 2014 the Palawan property was transferred in the name of PHA.
Year 2015

On February 9, 2015, PHA completed the 51% acquisition of Concepts Unplugged Business
Environment Solutions, inc. (CUBES) amounting to Php 40.0 million.

In February 24, 2015, the PHA Board of Directors approved the increase of its ownership in
RCDC from 66.9% to 80.0%. At the same time the Board approved the 2015 capital
expenditure budget of RCDC amounting to Php 366.55 million for the acquisition of
additional 44 trucks and 36 heavy equipment. These will be used for its new mining contract
with Cagdianao Mining Corporation (CMC), Benguet Nickel Mining Corp. (BNMI) and



Marcventures Mining & Development Corp. (MMDC) to service the additional volume
(WMT).

On May 11, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved PHA's
application for conversion of 133,511,111 at Php 0.36 per share or Php 48.064 million
corresponding to PHA's convertible loan agreements issued on 2012.

In June 04, 2015, PHA bought 55% of Goshen Land Capital Inc. (GLCI) for Php 440.0
million, Php 140.0 million secondary and Php 300.0 million primary. GLCI is a premier real
estate development company in Northern Luzon based in Baguio City. GLCI was
incorporated in April, 2007 with an authorized capital stock of Php 250.0 million broken down
into Php 100.0 million common shares and Php 150.0 million of preferred shares. An
increase in authorized capital stock has already been filed with the SEC.

On June 24, 2015, PHA Board of Directors approved the issuance of Exchangeable Notes
via private placement consisting of Php 350.0 million (Main Tranche for on going expansion
plans and an Optional Tranche of Php 250.0 milion to accelerate certain strategic
development in the existing businesses as well as new acquisitions.

In July 29, 2015, the Board of Directors of PHA approved the stock rights offering with
accompanying nil-paid detachable warrants. The proceeds will be used mainly for capital
expenditures of CUBES and development expenses for the Palawan property. Each
shareholder shall be entitled to one (1) right share for every ten (10) common shares held as
of record date at offer price of Php 0.45 per share. The detachable warrants shall entitle the
holder to subscribe to one (1) share at an exercise price of Php 1.20 per share exerciseable
from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018. In addition to the stock rights offer, the Board
also approved an additional 150 million warrants to be offered to existing investors in
connection with the option to increase the offering of the Exchangeable Notes by Php 250.0
million or a top-up offering of up to same amount. It will have the same terms and conditions
as the warrants issued from the stock rights offer.

On October 5, 2015, the placement of Php 400.0 million Exchangeable Notes was
completed which included an oversubscription of Php 50.0 million on the Php 350.0 million
Main Tranche. The excess of Php 50.0 million triggered the Optional Tranche and the
proceeds will be used for the initial development initiative of its Palawan property.

In October 20, 2015, PHA announced the Stock Rights Offering tentatively scheduled for
October has been moved to a later date pending approval by the SEC.

On December 11, 2015, the Board approved the increase in authorized capital stock from
Php 564.556 million consisting of 2,254.224 million common shares with a par value of Php
0.25 per share to Php 750.00 million consisting of 3,000 million common shares at Php 0.25
per share to be implemented by way of stock rights offering previously approved.

In December 14, 2015, SEC approved the request for exemption from registration
requirements of the 199,048,088 unclassified common shares with a par value of Php 0.25
per share to be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock by way of a stock rights
offering as previously approved.
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Year 2016

In March 16, 2016, the Company sold its shareholdings in First Ardent Development
Corporation (FADC) for Php 45.0 million.

" On August 9, 2016 the Company established a 100% subsidiary West Palawan Premiere

Development Corp. (WPPDC) to subsidiarize the land holdings PHA owned. WPPDC has
an authorized capital stock of Php 700.0 million, subscribed capital of Php 175.0 million and
a paid-up capital of Php 43.75 million. The primary purpose of WPPDC is a real estate
development company initially focused on Puerto Princesa Palawan.

Year 2017

In January, 2017, WPPDC acquired an additional 5-hectare beachfront property in Nagtabon
to complement its landmark beachfront development attraction. On August 3, 2018, in line
with its planned development in Nagtabon, WPPDC has signed a Memorandum of
Agreement with the Dusit Group for potential participation and partnership for the
development of the tourism estate project.

PHA has the following subsidiaries and affiliates:

a) Redstone Construction and Development Corporation (RCDC) -~ primarily
engaged in the business of construction works for mining, real estate
development, environmental protection & remediation, dam, dikes, flood control
and reclamation including quarrying, hauling, earthmoving and heavy equipment
rentals and all other earthmoving works.

b) West Palawan Premiere Development Corp (WPPDC) — its primary purpose is to
acquire by purchase, lease, donation, or otherwise and own, use, improve,
develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease, develop and hold for
investment or otherwise real estate of all kinds, whether improve, mange or
otherwise dispose of buildings, houses, equipment, and other structures of
whatever kind, together with their maintenances.

¢) Goshen Land Capital Inc. (GLCI) — GLCl is engaged in real estate development
in Northern Luzon based in Baguio City. Incorporated in 2007, Goshen focused
initially on residential subdivisions in prime locations all over the city. To further
provide affordable yet quality homes for the ordinary Filipino, Goshen added
master planned condominium communities in its home offerings. These
maximized land use and better living for residents because Goshen's master-
planned communities provide security, commercial convenience access and
property management.

d) Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) - CUBES is
engaged in the business of providing refrigeration to established cold storage
facilities through a patented ThermoChiller system deveioped in the United
States, The technology will be deployed as off-grid installations that will utilize
alternative fue! sources, specifically biomass, thereby contributing to

environmental sustainability by diminishing the dependence on fossil fuels and
the electricity grid.



e) Digiwave Solutions Inc.- DS (formerly Digigames Inc.-DSI) — primarily engaged
in information technology which includes production, development, wholesale and
distribution of computer software intended for gaming and production,
importation, or exportation for sale on wholesale basis of computer parts,
peripherals, other external devices, and communication devices.

f) PH Big Bounty Entertainment, Inc., Premiere Horizon Business Services, Inc.
(Formerly La Prima Hotel Imperiale, Inc.), PH Agriforest Corporation, PH Mining
and Development Corporation— the foregoing subsidiaries are still in their pre-
operating stages.

g) Premiere e-Teleservices — This subsidiary is in the process of liquidation.

The Group revenues in 2017 came from the activities of the subsidiaries Redstone
Construction and Development Corporation, Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI), and
Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBEs) and West Palawan
Premiere Development Corp. The Group revenue breakdown are follows:;

2017
Revenues (In Php Millions) Percent %
Sale of Real Estate 479.48 65.80%
Hauling and Mineral Extraction 247.14 33.92%
Service Income 1.65 0.23%
Film Rights 0.38 0.05%
Total Revenues 728.65 100%

Competitive Situation in 2017

PHA continued to pursue its vision and mission of invigorating the countryside in 2017 by
strategically focusing on infrastructure and tourism.

its subsidiary West Palawan Premiere Development Corp. (WPPDC) completed the final
planning stages for an integrated township development that brings together serene
nountaiside and beachfront resorts and residential projects. It has also acquired a five (5)
hectare beachfront property in Nagtabon, Puerto Princesa and is finalizing a comprehensive
beachfront development plan.

RCDC continued its extraction and hauling contracts with the two (2) clients, Cagdianao
Mining Corp. (CMC), and Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. (MMDC)..

Goshen Land Capital Inc. (GLCI} expects to complete four of its biggest vertical projects.

PHA is likewise looking at new projects in renewables and infrastructure that is aligned with
the Build Build Build thrust of the government.



Risk Factors

The price of securities can and does fluctuate and any individual security may experience
upward or downward movements, and may even become valueless. There is an inherent
risk that losses rather than profit may be incurred as a result of buying and selling securities.
Past performance is not a guide to future performance. There is an extra risk of losing
money when securities are bought from smaller companies. There may be a big difference
between the buying and selling price of these securities. An investor deals in a range of
investments each of which may carry a different level of risk.
Prior to making an investment decision, interested stockholders may carefully consider,
along with other matters set out in this report, the following investment considerations or risk
factors listed in order of importance, and which are not intended to be exclusive.

The risks of the Company’s businesses are the following:

Hauling and Mining

The prospects of the hauling and mining business of RCDC remain very profitable. The
weather in Surigao continues to be the primary concern of RCDC operation in CMC and
MMDC sites in the aforementioned province. However with the El Nino, RCDC was able to
start its operations in Surigao in latter part of March 2016. Although there is a big decrease
in Nickel prices in the world market, this does not directly affect RCDC because it is a
service firm and gets paid for the hauling services. The same rate applies.

Real Estafe

The 17 projects will be completed based on the revised schedule dates. In 2017, 5 projects
will be completed and another 7 projects by 2018. The ability to match the funding
requirements to complete the projects is crucial as well as the ability of the contractors to
deliver the stage of completion of each project based on projected completion fargets.

Cold Storage/ThermoChiller

The technology significantly reduces operating costs arising from high electricity bills and
recurring equipment repair expenses. This modular system is scalable, easily replicable and
has been deployed in numerous sites in the US for the past 15 years.

The technology will be deployed as off-grid installations that will utilize alternative fuel
sources, specifically biomass, thereby contributing to environmental sustainability by
diminishing the dependenca on fossil fuels and the electricity grid. Inherent risk for this

business is if electricity cost suddenly dives down. But with the current electricity supply in
the country, this is still a far-fetched possibility.

Inherent Business Risk

The Company’s revenue from the hauling business is dependent on its client's ability to
continuously maintain substantial stockpile for shipment to their buyers. This is largely
dependent on the weather conditions on the site.

On the real estate business, the ability to sell and deliver the units to its buyers is a big factor

in generating its revenues. The company’s objective is to complete its existing 17 projects
and look at the expansion to new projects in 2017.



The thermo chiller/cold storage business revenue is subject to fluctuation in the cost of
electricity since the revenue is based on the savings the client generates in relation to is cost
of electricity on a monthly basis. But in addition to the electricity savings, the client will also
save in monthly maintenance cost as well as in the MCR equipment maintenance and
replacement. ‘

Political and Economic Conditions

In general, the profitability of the Company depends on a large extent on the overall level of
business and economic activity in the country, which in turn, is affected by political and
economic factors. Any political or economic instability in the future may have a negative
effect on the industries served by the Company.

' Taxation

Laws may be enacted increasing existing tax rates or creating new taxes that would affect
the Company. On the other hand, laws may also be enacted decreasing existing tax rates or
rendering certain taxes inapplicable to the Company.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

Future changes in the value of the peso against the US dollar or other currencies will affect
the foreign currency equivalent of the value of the shares of the Company and any
dividends. Such fluctuations will also affect the amount in foreign currency received upon
conversion of cash dividends or other distributions paid in pesos by the Company on, and
the peso proceeds received from any sales of, the shares.

Any potential restrictions which may be imposed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (“BSP™),
with the approval of the President of the Philippines, on the availability of foreign exchange
may unduly affect the trading of the Company’s shares and any dividend distribution. As a
result, although foreign investors will be able to sell their shares on the PSE, the repatriation
of proceeds of sale or dividends, if coursed through the Philippine banking system, cannot
be effected until registration with the BSP has been implemented. The Company is not
responsible for the registration with the BSP or custodian banks of such non-residents’
subscriptions or purchases of Shares.

Development in other enierging market countries may adversely affect the Philippine
economy and the market price of the Shares

In the past, the Philippine economy and the securities of companies in the country, in
different degress, have been influenced by the economic and other relevant events in other
emerging markets, particularly countries in Southeast Asia. Although economic conditions
vary from country to country, the reactions of investors to adverse global developments may
have a negative impact on the market price of securities in other countries, including stocks
listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE").

Most of the Company’s sharehoiders are Filipinos and to the best of the Company's
knowledge, no foreign institutional funds have invested in its shares. Thus, the Company’s

share price is not expected to be sensitive to capita! flight by foreign institutional investors in
case of an economic crisis abroad.



Indirect Foreign Ownership Limitations

The percentage of forsign-owned voting stocks in a corporation is determined by the
citizenship of its stockholders. The citizenship of corporation that is a stockholder in a
corporation follows the citizenship of the controlling stockholders of the corporation
irespective of its place of incorporation. Under the present rulings of the SEC, shares
belonging to corporations or parinerships at least sixty percent (60%) of the capital of which
is owned by Filipino citizens shall be considered as a Philippine nationality, but if the
percentage of Filipino ownership in the corporation or partnership is less than sixty percent

(60%), only the number of shares corresponding to such percentage shall be counted as
Phiiippine nationality.

Accordingly, the Company cannot allow the issuance or the transfer of shares, and cannot
record any issuance or transfers in the books of the Company, if such issuance or transfer
would result in the Company breaching applicable foreign ownership restrictions. it must be

noted, however, that the Company is currently not subject to any foreign ownership
restrictions. :

With all these inherent and business risks, the Company maintains a strong internal control
environment, to mitigate, if not eliminate, some of the risks. It is the end goal of the
management to minimize these risks and achieve operating profitability.

Transactions with and/or dependence on related parties

Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

1.) On December 15, 2011 the majority of the board of directors authorized the
subscription by three (3) of its regular directors to one hundred seventy five million
(175,000,000) of the Company’s unissued common shares at a subscription price of
Php 0.30 per share or at Php 0.05 premium above the proposed reduced par value of
Php 0.25.. The three (3) subscribing regular directors are: Mr. Augusto Antonio C.
Serafica, Jr., Mr. Siso M. Lao and Mr. Teofilo A. Henson. The subscribing directors

did not vote during the meeting when their offer to subscribe to the unissued shares
was discussed.

2.) On February 24, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a fund raising program via
Convertible Loan amounting to Php 100.0 million at 8% interest with a term of three
(3) years. Lender shall have the option to convert at Php 0.36/share with a
detachable warrant of one (1) share for every four (4) Converted Share at an
exercise price of Php 0.38/share. By end of 2012, total Convertible Loan outstanding
amounted to Php 78.0 million. The fund raising program was to support the E-
Games expansion among others.

3.) Other transactions with related parties pertain to non-interest bearing advances from
related parties.

Patents, Trademarks, Copyrights, Licenses, Franchises, Concessions and Royalty
Agreements

The Company has copyrighted sixty-five (65) of its titles with the National Library. The

- Certificate of Copyright Registration shall remain in force for fifty (50) years from publication,

and if unpublished, from the date of making of the work. The Company receives royalties
from the exhibition of its films.



The Company has no registered patent or trademark.

Development activities and Future Prospects

“Invigorating the Countryside”

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation is an investment holding company that maximizes
corporate value by seeking to focus on projects that invigorate countryside development in
preparation for the ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) integration beginning 2015.

The Philippines, being composed of more than 7,000 islands, presents major obstacles to

the development of the country as a whole. The countryside is left behind with much
inefficiencies and gaps.

“Where there are gaps, there are opportunities.”

Addressing these unfilled requirements through profitable, recurring, replicable and scalable
businesses will not only help the locals in a sustainable way, but will also facilitate in the
development of the nation as a whole while driving up PHA shareholder value.

On the tourism and infrastructure side, WPPDC shall embark on the development of its
beachfront property and tourism estate while on the infrastructure side, it shall invest in 85%
of two MPSA companies covering 10,384 hectares of commercial quantity limestone for
cement production. On the hauling and extraction business, RCDC will continue to excel
and provide high quality service.

Employees

As of December 31, 2017, PHA has 9 employees while RCDC has 40 regular employees,
RCDC empioys contractual or project personnel during the mining season.

Item 2, Description of Property

PHA purchased its present office headquarters at Unit 1705 East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City on August 14, 2014.

The Company has accumulated a total of four hundred thirty-eight (438) titles in its Film

Library since December 31, 2003, with a total production and acquisition cost of Php235.8
million.

On May 22, 2014, PHA completed the transfer of the foreclosed 500 hectare property in
Brgy. Bacungan, Puerto Princesa, Palawan in its name. The land is currently valued at Php
399.95million. The land in Palawan are carried at fair value. The Company through its

subsidiary WPPDC has acquired a 5-hectare beachfront property in Nagtabon Puerto
Princesa.

As of December 2017, the hauling and mineral extraction operation of RCDC has 39 heavy
equipmen_t, 89 dump trucks and 6 service vehicles.



item 3. Legal Proceedings

Digiwave Solutions Inc. is currently involved in two (2) cases pending before the courts,
these are:,

1) Digiwave Solutions Inc. is the defendant in a civil case for damages filed by E-MPA Fires
docketed as E-MPA Fires vs. DSI, Q-10-68354, QC RTC 88

a. The defense is scheduied to present its next witness, Atty. Stephen E. Cascolan, on the
next hearing date.

2) Digiwave Solutions Inc. is the defendant in a civil case before Pasig MTC Branch 68
docketed as Lipana vs. DSI. civil case no. 19315,

a. The proceedings before the MTC has been suspended due to the filing of a Petition for
Review before the RTC of Pasig City.

b. The Petition for Review questions the Court's order disallowing DSI to present its
witnesses because of its failure to file the Judicial Affidavits of its witnesses.

c. The respondents have repeatedly failed to file their comment/answer to the Petition.
d. At the last hearing on 19 April 2018, the respondent, again, failed to appear.
€. The next scheduled hearing is on 07 June 2018.

Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this Report to
a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

PART Il - OPERATION AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters

(1) Market Information

The common shares of the Company are traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE")

under the symbol “PHA". The Company’s price information as of December 29, 2017 is Php
0.365.

The following table indicates the quarterly high and low sale price of the Company’s common
shares as reported on the PSE for the years 2015-2017.

HIGH Low
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
1% Quarter 0.44 044 060 0.43 0.42 058
2™ Quarter 040 043 065 . 039 042 057
3" Quarter 039 042 069 039 041 056
4" Quarter 0.36 0.47 058 0.35 044 046



(2) Holders

As of 31 December 2017, there were 123 sharehoiders of record of PHA's common shares
and listed below are the top twenty (20) common shareholders, including their nationalities,

number of shares held, and the approximate percentages of their respective sharenholdings
to PHA's total outstanding common stocks:

SHAREHOLDERS' NAME NATIONALITY HOLDINGS RANK
PCD Nominee Corporation ' Filipino 1,481,036,689 74.41%
PCD Nominee Corporation (non-Filipino)  Foreign 123,464,101 6.20%
Siso M. Lao Filipino 71,666,666 3.60%
Augusto C. Serafica, Jr. Filipino 70,000.001 3.52%
Teofilo Henson Filipino 50,000,000 2.51%
TLC Manna Consulting Inc, Filipino 40,000,000 2.01%
S CAPITAL CORP. Filipino 36,000,000 1.81%
ASIAN ALLIANCE INVESTMENT CORP Filipino 34,722,223 1.74%
MYKA ADVISORY AND CONS. SERV. INC. Filipino 27,500,000 1.38%
RAUL MA F. ANONAS Filipino 21,250,000 1.07%
ALFREDO LOZANO, JR. Filipino 16,666,666 0.84%
RAFAEL YAPTINCHAY Filipino 8,333,334 0.42%
KENNETH KEE YAO SEE Filipino 1,750,000 0.09%
ANTONIO ONG Filipino 1,500,000 0.08%
RENATOQ Y. CHUA Filipino 1,050,000 0.05%
ERNESTO B. LiM Filipino 1,000,000 0.05%
RAUL A. ALON Filipino 500,000 0.03%
LILY ROSE DE LEON Filipino 475,000 0.03%
SHIRLEY Y. SEE Filipino 300,000 0.02%
PHILIP Z. DABAO : Filipino 200,000 0.01%
TOTAL TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS 1,987,414,680 99.85%
TOTAL OUTSTANDING SHARES 1,990,480,889
(3) Dividends

PHA has not declared any cash dividends for the past three (3) years and any subsequent
interim period. -

Under the By-Laws of the Company, dividends shali be declared only from surplus profits
and shall be payable at such time and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall
determine as they deem proper: Provided, however, that no stock dividends shall be issued
without the approval of the stockholders representing not less than two-thirds (2/3) of all
stock then outstanding and entitled to vote at a general meeting of the Company or at a
special meeting called for the purpose. No dividends shall be declared that impair the capital
of the Company. Other than the aforesaid, there are no other restrictions that would limit or

would likely to limit in the future the ability of the company to pay dividends on common
equity.

10



(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

Conversion of Notes

On May 11, 2015, the SEC approved the application of PHA for the issuance of
133,511,111 common shares with a value of Php 0.36 per share by way of

conversion of loans amounting to Php 48.064 million as exempt from the registration
requirements of SEC.

Stock Rights

In December 14, 2015, the SEC Markets and Securities Regulation Department
approved the request of PHA for exemption from registration of the 199,048,088
shares unclassified common shares with a par value of Php 0.25 per share. This will

be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock by way of stock rights
offering.

Subscription by Regular Directors

On December 15, 2011 the majority of the board of directors authorized the
subscription by three (3) of its regular directors to one hundred seventy five million
(175,000,000} of the Company's unissued common shares at a subscription price of

'P0.30 per share or at P0.05 above par value. The three (3) subscribing directors are:

Mr. Augusto Serafica, Jr., Mr. Siso M. Lao and Mr. Teofilc A. Henson. The

subscribing directors did not vote during the meeting when their offer to subscribe to
the unissued shares was approved.
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Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation
MANAGEMENT REPORT

(A) Management's Discussion and Analysis and Plan of Operation

Our discussions in the foregoing sections of this report may contain forward-looking
statements that reflect our current views with respect to the Group’s future plans, events,
operational performance, and desired results. These statements, by their very nature,

contain substantial elements of risks and uncertainties. Actual results may be different from
our forecasts.

Furthermore, the information contained herein should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statements and related notes. OQur financial
statements, and the financial discussions below, have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Plan of Operations for Year 2018
West Palawan Premiere Development Corp. (WPPDC)

WPPDC was incorporated in August 9, 2016 as a 100% owned subsidiary of PHA. It shall
own the 500 hectares in Brgy. Bacungan Puerto Princesa plus the other properties

transferred by the other subsidiaries. In 2018, WPPDC will embark on the development of its
5-hectare Nagtabon property

Redstone Construction and Development Corporation (RCDC).

RCDC will continue to service its two (2) principal clients in Surigao. It shall maintain its

existing fleet of 39 heavy equipment, 89 dump trucks and about 15 service vehicles to
service the requirement of its clients.

~ Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES)

The 51% investment in CUBES was completed in January 2015. The projected volume of

business for 2016 is around 720 tons of refrigeration (TR) in Nine (9) sites around the
country..

Other Developmental Business Activities/ Subsequent Events.

In March 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved the equity investment
in 2 Mineral Production Sharing Agreements (MPSAs) companies in Palawan covering
approximately 10,384 hectars of probable commercial quality limestone deposits.

The Group continues to identify other businesses that will generate more revenues. It is now
iooking at various business opportunities in energy and other tourism-reiated industries.
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Discussion and analysis of the Group and its majority-owned subsidiaries’ top five (5)
key performance indicators, including the manner by which the Group calculates or
identify the indicators on a comparative basis.

The Group, with its subsidiaries, uses the following key performance indicators:

1) Revenues

2) Net Income (Loss) From Continuing Operation
3) Debt- to- Equity Ratio

4) Current Ratio

5} Return on Assets

Using the Debt-to-Equity Ratio as indicator, the Group computes the following in the manner
presented below:

Debt-to-Equity = iabiliti
Total Stockholders’ Equity

Using Cumrent Ratio as indicator, the Group computes the following in the manner presented
below:

Current Ratio =
Total Current Liabilities

Using Return on Investments as indicator, the Group computes the following in the manner
presented beiow:

Return on Assets = Net Income
Book Value of Assets

Presented below is the comparative tabile of the Group's performance for the years 2016 and
2015, 2014, respectively.

5""'""""""""'"'"'"""'"""""'EI"ZZI_'ZI_'I’fiéﬁééﬁrnii@éfﬁ?ﬂ':::"':_"Iis' """"""""""""" ;
e | Audited 2017 |~ Auditeq 2§} YOY Change |
i1iRevenues T TTTTTTTTTUoB6h3 7671 911,139,516 ; (182,485,759) !
:2:Netlncome {.....39,163,499: 47,360,874 (8,197,375) |
: 3| Debt -to- Equity Ratio 1T 309:1: 2991 010
;4 CurrentRato A 11> 73 I S 1.374: ... 018:
{5iRetumOnAssets e 001 : 0010 -
.'"'"'""""""""""""'"""'"""'"ﬁﬁﬁiﬁifiﬁIiﬁiﬁt_iééieﬁh}ﬁtiérif:*}f[ﬁﬁiﬁﬁf:ﬁiﬁfi} """""""""""""
S Audited 2016 | " Audiled 2615 | YOY Change :
i1iRevenues U 91_1_._1.?59_-_5_16_5,_______§§.2.A6§-_7_23_,i__--__2.6.,§_7_2.._7_953._§
i 2! Net Income 47,360,875 | 71,584,170 | (24,223,295) !
Eﬁ?iﬁa'_!?ﬁéftzt_-_tﬁéE_ZEZq'iiiftSEEéﬁéfﬁﬁﬁffIIfﬁﬁ[-ﬁ-Iﬁﬁ_.f.ﬁﬁa_é?o'_ifiiﬁfﬁfiiIﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁéiééiiiﬁ.ﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁﬁéﬁf
i4CurrentRatio T 1874 0811 048
9 :RetumOnAssets =~ 0.0%:1: ___..0021 T (.01)

13



l. Revenues

The Group revenues in 2017 amounted to Php 728.65 million which is Php 182.49
miliion or 20.03% lower than the 2016 Group revenue of P 911.14 million.

The Group revenues in 2016 amounted to P 911.14 million which is Php 28.67 million or
3.25% higher than the 2015 Group revenue of 882.47 million.

. NetlIncome

The Group net income in 2017 amounted to Php 39.16 million which is Php 8.20 million
or 17.31% lower than the 2016 Group net income of 47.36 million.

The Group net income in 2016 amounted to Php 47.36 million which is Php 24.22 million
or 33.84% lower than the 2015 Group net income of 71.58 million.

{ll.  Debt to Equity Ratio

The Group debt to equity ratio in 2017, 2016, and 2015 amounted to 3.09:1, 2.99:1, and
2.99:1, respectively.

IV. Current Ratio

The Group current ratio in 2017, 2016, and 2015 amounted to 1.55:1, 1.37:1, and 0.91:1,
respectively.

V. Return on Assets (ROA)

The Group return on assets for 2017, 2016, and 2015 amounted to 0.01:1, 0.01:1, and
0.02:1, respectively.

Results of Operations for the last three (3) years
2017

During the years 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Group recorded a net income of Php 39.16
million, Php 47.36 million, and Php 71.58 miliion, respectively. Presented in the subsequent
sections are the details of the Company’s income statement accounts:

¢ The Group real estate sales in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 479.48 million and
Php 605.42 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 125.94 million or
20.80%. In 2017, there was a slowdown in GLCl's real estate constructions which
resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

* The Group mining service revenue in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 247.14 million
and Php 297.83 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 50.69 million or
17.02%. In 2017, there was a slowdown in RCDC's mining operations which resulted in
the aforesaid decrease.

* The Group service income in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 1.65 miliion and Php 7.88
miilion, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 6.23 million or 79.08%. In 2017, the
operations of CUBES were suspended which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.
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The Group film rights in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 0.39 million and -nil-,
respectively. In 2017, the Company sold one of its film rights which resulted in the
aforesaid revenue. There were no film rights sold for 2016.

The Group cost of real estate sales in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 289.05 million
and Php 380.42 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php ©1.37 million or
24.02%. As previously stated, there was a slowdown in GLCI's real estate constructions
which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

The Group costs of services in 2017 and 2016 amounted Php 221.33 million and Php
259.88 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 38.55 million or 14.84%. As
previously stated, there was a slowdown in RCDC's operations and a suspension of
CUBES' operations which resulted in the aforesaid decrease.

The Group depreciation and amortization in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 85.11
million and Php 112.47 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 27.36
million or 24.33%. The decrease primarily came from the change in useful life of certain
depreciable assets. The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as
follows: Cost of Services — Php 57.52 million, and General and Administrative Expense —
Php 27.59 million.

The Group personnel costs in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 108.64 million and
Php 112.73 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 4.09 million or 3.63%.
The decrease primarily came from the suspension of operations CUBES. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services —
Php 57.00 million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 51.64 million.

The Group fuel and oil in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 37.75 milion and
Php 50.65 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 12.90 million or 25.47%.
The decrease primarily came from the slowdown in RCDC’s operations. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 under Cost of Services.

The Group repairs and maintenance in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 37.09 million
and Php 33.36 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 3.73 million or
11.18%. The increase primarily came from the extensive repairs and maintenance
performed during the year. The said account is presented in the financial statements for
2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 36.59 miliion, and General and Administrative
Expense — Php 0.50 million.

The Group taxes and licenses in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 16.75 million and
Php 12.38 miliion, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 4.37 million or 35.30%.
The increase primarily came from the higher taxable base and bracket used to compute
taxes and licenses for the year 2017. The said account is presented in the financial
statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 10.98 million, and General and
Administrative Expense — Php 5.77 million.

The Group transportation and travel in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 6.51 million and
Php 14.87 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 8.36 million or 56,22%.
The decrease primarily came from the reduced transportation and travel requirements for

the year 2017. The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as
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follows: Cost of Services — Php 1.71 million, and General and Administrative Expense —
Php 4.80 million.

The Group professional and legal fees in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 25.16 million
and Php 43.29 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 18.13 million or
41.88%. The decrease primarily came from the reduced services availed from
professionals for the year 2017. The said account is presented in the financial
statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services — Php 4.50 million, and General and
Administrative Expense - Php 20.66 million.

The Group rentals and utilities in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 12.28 million and Php
19.32 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 7.04 million or 36.44%. The
decrease primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services —
Php 3.83 million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 8.45 million.

The Group entertainment, amusement, and recreation in 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 3.07 million and Php 6.68 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 3.61
million or 54.04%. The decrease primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of
operations. The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows:
Cost of Services — Php 2.47 million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 0.60
million.

The Group Commissions in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 27.24 million and
Php 37.50 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 10.26 million or 27.36%.
The decrease primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 under General and
Administrative Expenses.

The Group outside services in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 2.10 million and
Php 3.25 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 1.15 million or 35.38%.
The decrease primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 under General and
Administrative Expenses.

The Group supplies and materials in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 2.06 million and
Php 0.67 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 1.39 million or 207.46%.
The increase primarily came from the increased operational requirements. The said.
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 under General and
Administrative Expenses.

The Group advertising and promotions in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 1.77 million
and Php 4.77 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 3.00 million or
62.89%. The decrease primarily came from the slowdown and suspension of operations.
The said account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 under Genera! and
Administrative Expenses. '

The Group freight and handling in 20-17 and 2016 amounted to Php 1.69 million and
Php 0.88 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 0.81 million or 92.05%.
The increase primarily came from the increased operational requirements. The said
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account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 under General and
Administrative Expenses.

* The Group other expenses in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 32.80 million and
Php 16.68 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 16.12 million or 96.64%.
The increase primarily came from the increased operational requirements. The said
account is presented in the financial statements for 2017 as follows: Cost of Services —
Php 11.10 million, and General and Administrative Expense — Php 21.70 million.

* The Group interest income in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 7.16 million and
Php 13.94 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 6.78 million or 48.64%.
The decrease primarily came from the reduced cash in bank balances. The said account
under Other Income (Charges).

¢ The Group change in fair vaiue of investment property in 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php —nil- and Php 158.94 million, respectively. There were no changes in fair value of

investment property in 2017. The said account is presented under Other Income
(Charges).

* The Group sale of asset held for sale in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php ~nil- and Php
10.26 million, respectively. There were no sale of asset held for sale in 2017, The said
account is presented under Other Income (Charges).

¢ The Group impairment losses in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 0.58 million and
Php 3.48 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 2.90 million or 83.33%.
There were fewer and lower assessments for impaired assets in 2017. The said account
is presented under Other Income (Charges).

* The Group interest expense in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 95.66 million and
Php 129.79 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 34.13 million or
26.30%. The decrease primarily came from the increased capitalization of borrowing
costs in 2017. The said account is presented under Other Income (Charges).

» The Group other income in 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 26.78 million and
Php 6.88 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 19.90 million or 289.24%.
The increase primarily came from additional income earned from other sources. The said
account is presented under Other Income (Charges).

2016

Redstone Construction And Development Corporation (RCDC), a mining service subsidiary,
gave 12-month-revenues in 2016 as well as in 2015. Concepts Unplugged Business
Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) gave twelve (12) and three {3) months revenues to the
group in years 2016 and 2015, respectively. Goshen Land Capital, Inc (GLCI), a real estate

~ subsidiary, gave twelve (12) and seven (7) months revenue to the group in 2016 and 2015,

respectively. In 2016, West Palawan Premiere Development Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary, gave five (5) months revenue to the Group. The Group posted a net income of
Php47.36million in 2016 from Php71.58million of 2015 showing a 51%. The following were
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the major changes in the Company's income statements accounts from continuing
operations:

The Group mining service revenue in 2016 amounted to Php297.83million. This posted
Php8.12million increase from 289.71million of 2015 or 2% increment. There was no
material change in the Group 2016 mining service revenue compared to last year.

The Group real estate sales in 2016 amounted to Php605.42million. This posted
Php15.05million increase from Php590.37million in 2015 or 3% increment. There was
no material change in the Group 2016 real estate sales compared to last year.

The Group costs of services in 2016 amounted Php380.42million. This posted
Php10.50miflion increase from Php369.92million costs of services in 2015 or 3%
increment. There was no material movement in the costs of services.

The Group personnel costs in 2016 amounted to Php53.29million. This posted
'Php13.39million increase from Php39.90mitlion in 2015 or a 33.56% increase. The
increase was mainly due to the salaries and wages of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. which
the Group charged 12 months and 7 months salaries and wages in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

The Group professional fees in 2016 amounted to Php36.50million. This posted
Php9.70million decrease from Php46.20million in 2015 or 20% decrease. The decrease
was mainly due to charging to land rights the professional fees incurred thereto,

The Group depreciation and amortization in 2016 amounted to Php107.96million. This
posted Php41.70million increase from Php66.26million in 2015 or 63% increase. The
increase was mainly due to Php10.53million impairment of exclusive rights and the
depreciation of heavy equipment acquired in the second half of 2015.

The Group transportation and travel in 2016 amounted to Php5.13million. This posted
Php1.08million increase from Php4.05million of 2015 or 27% increase. The increase was
mainly due additional transportation and travel requirements of the Group in 2016.

The Group rentals and utiliies in 2016 amounted to Php11.81million. This posted
Php3.10million increase from Php8.81million of 2015 or 35% increase. The increase was
mainly due to the rental and utiliies of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. which the Group
charged 12 months and 7 months rentals and utilities expenses in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

The Group taxes and licenses in 2016 amounted to Php6.23million. This posted Php8.64
decrease from Php14.87 of 2015 or a 58% increase. The decrease was mainly due to

documentary stamp tax which the Group incurred more in 2015 on its promissory notes
as compared to this year.

The Group supplies and materials in 2016 amounted to Php.67million. There was no

material change in the Group supplies and materials of this year compared to the
previous year. '

The Group entertainment, .amusement and recreation in 2016 amounted to
Php3.85million. This posted of Php2.64million decrease from Php6.49million of 2015 or
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a 59% decrease. The decrease was mainly due to the decline in the Group requirement
of entertainment, amusement and recreation in 2016 as compared to 2015.

The Group did not have equity in net earnings on investment in associate in 2016
because the investment in associate was classified by the management into Assets Held
for Sale as of December 31, 2015. In 2015, the Group equity in the net earnings on the
investment in associate amounted to Php1.18million.

The Group interest income from bank deposits amounted to Php2.08million. This posted
an increase of Php1.61million from Php.47million of 2015 or a 247% increase. The
increase was mainly due to huge amount of bank deposits in the 1 half of 2016.

The Group impairment losses in 2016 amounted to Php3.48million. This posted a
decrease of Php3.42million from Php6.90million of 2015 or a 98% decrease. The
decrease was due to the lesser amount assets to be impaired found by the management
in 2016 as compared to last year.

The Group interest expenses in 2016 amounted to Php129.79million. This posted an
increase of Php72.75million increase from Php57.34 of 2015 or a 44% increase. The
increase was due o the increase in interest on the loans which the Group availed more
in the middle second half of 2015.

2015

Redstone Construction And Development Corp. (RCDC), a mining service subsidiary, gave
12-month-revenues in 2015 as well as in 2014. Concepts Unplugged Business Environment
Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) gave three (3) months revenue to the group. Goshen Land Capital,
Inc (GLCI), a real estate subsidiary, contributed a seven (7) months from June to December
2015, The Group posted a net income of Php100.92mitlion in 2015 from Php147.49million in
2014 showing a 46% decrease. The following were the major changes in the Company's
income statement accounts from continuing operations:

The Group mining service revenue in 2015 amounted to Php289.71milfion. This posted a
Php142.73million increase from Php146.98million of 2014 or a 97.11% increase. The

increase was due to the increase in the production service of the Group mining service
subsidiary.

TH

The Group real estate sales in 2015 amounted to Php590.37million. This is a 100%
increase in the Group real estate sales in 2015 as the subsidiary formed part of the
Group in the second half of 2015. :

The Group costs of mining services amounted to Php199.91million. This posted
Php100.84million increase from Php199.17million of 2014 or a 102% increase. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in depreciation as the new equipment were

acquired in 2015 and the additional requirement of the service production costs from
2014, ' '
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The Group personnel costs in 2015 amounted to Php39.90million. This posted an
increase of Php34.10million from Php5.80million of 2014 or 588% increase. The
increase was mainly due to the inclusion of salaries and wages of subsidiaries Goshen
Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI) and Concepts: Unplugged Business Environment Solutions,
Inc. {CUBES) which formed part of the Group in 2015.The Group professional fees in
2015 amounted to Php46.20million. This posted an increase of Php27.02million from
Php29.18million of 2014 or a 141% increase. The increase was mainly due to the Group
support for the expanding operation.

The Group depreciation and amortization in 2015 amounted to Php66.26million. This
posted Php48.63million increase from Php17.63milion of 2014 or a 276% increase. The
increase was mainly due to the acquisition of heavy equipment of the mining service
subsidiary RCDC and the inclusion of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI)), which formed
part of the Group beginning May of 2015 and Concepts:Unplugged Business
Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) which came into a group in February of 2015,

The Group transportation and travel in 2015 amounted to Php4.05million. This posted a
Php2.13million increase from Php1.92million of 2014 or a 110% increase. The increase
was mainly due to the inclusion of transportation and travel of subsidiaries Goshen Land

Capital, Inc. and Concepts: Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc. (CUBEs) which just
came into the Group in 2015.

The Group rent and utilities expenses in 2015 amounted to Php881million. This posted
Php7.28million increase from Php1.53million of 2015 or a 476% increase. The increase
was mainly due to the inciusion of rent and utilities of subsidiaries Goshen Land Capital,
Inc. and Concepts: Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc. (CUBEs) which just came into
the Group in 2015 and the transfer of the Parent head office to Tektite from Maybunga,
Pasig.

The Group taxes and licenses in 2015 amounted to Php14.687million. This posted
Php9.61milion increase from Php5.26million of 2014 or 183% increase. The increase
was mainly due to the inclusion of taxes and licenses of subsidiaries Goshen Land
Capital, Inc. and Concepts: Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc. (CUBEs) which just
came into the Group in 2015 and the increase in documentary stamp tax on the
borrowing that the Group incurred more in 2015.

The Group supplies and materials in 2015 amounted to Php.65million. This posted
Php.38milion increase from Php.27million of 2014 or a 139% increase. The increase

~ was mainly due to the inclusion of supplies and materials of subsidiaries Goshen Land

Capital, Inc. and Concepts: Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc. (CUBEs) which just
came into the Group in 2015

The Group entertainment, amusement and recreation in 2015 amounted to
Php6.49million. This posted an increase of Php4.67million from Php1.82million of 2014
or a 257% increase. The increase was mainly due to the inclusion of entertainment,
amusement and recreation of subsidiaries Goshen Land Capital, Inc. and Concepts:
Unplugged Business Solutions, inc. {CUBESs) which just came into the Group in 2015
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¢ The Group equity in the net earnings on the investment in associate in 2015 amounted to
Php1.82million. This posted an increase of Php.92million from Php.90miilion of 2014 or a
64% increass. The increase was due to improvement of the FirstArdent Development
Corporation in which the investment in associated is invested.

* The Group interest income from bank deposits in 2015 amounted to Php.45million. This
posted a Php.05million decrease from .50million of 2015 or a 10% decrease. The

decrease was due to the decrease in cash deposits with the bank during the year 2015
as compared to 2014./

¢ The Group impairment losses in 2015 amounted to Php6.90million. This posted a
Php.60million decrease from Php7.50million of 2015 or a 8% decrease. The decrease

was due to the management assessment of lesser impairment of assets as compared to
the 2014.

» The Group interest expense in 2015 amounted to Php57.53million. This posted a
Php48.19million increase from Php9.34million of 2014 or 516% increase. The increase
was mainly due to the inclusion of interest expense of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI)
which formed part of the Group in May of 2015.

FINANCIAL POSITION

2017

The Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 4,096.55
million and Php 3,723.64 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 372.90
million or 10.01%. The Company’s total liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 3,094.38 million and Php 2,790.00 million, respectively, which shows an
increase of Php 304.38 million or 10.91%. The Company’s equity as of December 31, 2017
and 2016 amounted to Php 591.84 million and Php 533.99 million, respectively, which shows
an increase of Php 57.85 million or 10.83%. The Company’'s equity attributable to non-
controlling interests as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 410.33 million and

~ Php 399.64 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 10.69 million or 2.67%.

The following are the balance sheet items with changes amounting to five percent (5%) from
the previous year:

* Cash as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted fo Php 70.16 million and
Php 90.31 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 20.15 million or
22.31%. Cash used in operations amounted to Php 71.65 million; cash used in
investing activities amounted to Php 163.56 million; while cash provided by financing

activities amounted to Php 215.07 million; the sum of which represents the
aforementioned decrease.

* Receivables - net as of December 31, 2017.and 2016 amounted to Php 1,424.67
million and Php 1,145.32 million, respectively, which shows an increase of
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Php 279.35 million or 24.39%. The increase primarily came from the uncollected
contract receivables.

Real estate held for sale as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 824.99 million and Php 723.28 million, respectively, which shows an increase of
Php 101.71 million or 14.06%. The increase primarily came from the additional
construction and development costs of the Company’s real estate assets.

Inventories as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 13.00 million and
Php 12.20 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 0.80 million or
6.56%. The increase primarily came from the additional costs of inventories.

Other current assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 302.00
million and Php 205.50 miilion, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 96.50
million or 46.96%. The increase primarily came from additional advances made to
suppliers and contractors; and input VAT claimed during the year.

Non-current portion of contracts receivable as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 220.98 million and Php 387.19 million, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 166.21 million or 42.93%. The decrease came from reclassification
of non-current to current contract receivables.

Goodwill and intangible assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 143.71 million and Php 159.33 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 15.62 million or 9.80%. The decrease primarily came from the amortization of
intangible assets.

Property and equipment - net as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 330.39 million and Php 393.09 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 62.70 million or 15.95%. The decrease primarily came from the depreciation
during the year.

Land and land development as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 578.79 million and Php 123.28 miillion, respectively, which shows an increase of
Php 455.51 million or 369.49%. The increase primarily came from the reclassification
of investment property which was sold by PHA to WPP during the year.

Investment property as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php -nil-
million and Php 399.95 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 399.95
million or 100%. The decrease primarily came from the reclassification of investment
property which was sold by PHA to WPP during the year.

Other noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 187.86 million and Php 84.19 million, respectively, which shows an increase of
Php 103.67 million or 123.14%. The increase primarily came from the input VAT
claimed during the year.

Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 907.37 million and Php 644.03 million, respectively, which shows an increase of
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Php 263.34 million or 40.89%. The increase primarily came from the payables made
to third parties and advances during the year.

Short-term loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 209.10 million

. and Php 211.05 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 1.95 million or

0.92%. There were no significant changes during the previous year.

Income tax payable as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 0.34
million and Php 0.88 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 0.54
million or 61.36%. The decrease primarily came from the decreased taxable income
during the year.

Purchased land payable — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 148.90 million and Php 240.37 million, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 91.47 miliion or 38.05%. The decrease primarily came from the
payments made during the year.

Loans payable — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 407.70 million and Php 421.27 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 13.57 million or 3.22%. The decrease primarily came from higher payments
made during the year. ‘

Obligations under finance lease — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 26.12 million and Php 47.25 million, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 21.13 million or 44.72%. The decrease primarily came from
payments made during the year.

instaliment payable — current portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted
to Php —nil- million and Php 27.99 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 27.99 million or 100%. The decrease primarily came from payments made
during the year.

Pension liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 13.18 million
and Php 19.12 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 5.94 million or
31.07%. The decrease primarily came from suspension of operations of CUBES
which resuited in the termination of its employees.

Convertible loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 522.92
million and Php 423.41 million, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 99.51
million or 23.50%. The increase primarily came from the additional convertible loans
during the year.

Purchased land payable — noncurrent portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to Php 20.37 million and Php 11.94 million, respectively, which shows an
increase of Php 8.43 million or 70.60%. The increase primarily came from the
reclassification of non-current to current.

Loans payable — noncurrent portion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
Php 566.76 million and Php 405.52 million, respectively, which shows an increase of
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Php 161.17 miillion or 39.74%. The increase primarily came from the additional loans
during the year.

* Obligations under finance lease — noncurrent portion as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 amounted to Php 8.62 million and Php 9.84 million, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 1.22 million or 12.40%. The decrease primarily came from the
reclassification of non-current to current obligations under finance lease.

» Deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to Php 262.98
million and Php 327.25 million, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 64.27

million or 19.64%. The decrease primarily came from the reversal of certain deferred
tax liabilities during the year.

2016

At the end of 2016, the Company's total assets were valued at Php3.68billion from
Php3.38bilion of 2015 or 9% growth from last 2015: total liabilites were valued at
Php2.75billion from Php2.53billion of 2015 or 9% increase from 2015; and total equity was
valued at Php933.71million from Php861.19million of 2015 or 8% higher than 2015, The
equity attributable to non-controlling interest was valued at Php534.03million in 2016 from
Php500.81million of 2015 or a 6% growth from last year.

The following are the causes for the material changes, i.e. those amounting to five percent
(5%) of the relevant accounts:

Cash — Cash decreased to Php90.31million in 2016 from Php143.78million of 2015
showing 4% decrement from 2015. The cash provided by financing activities amounted
to Php23.61million in 2016. While, the cash used in the operating and investing activities
amounted to Php56.46million and Php20.63million, respectively, in 2016.

Receivables - As at December 2016, the Group receivables amounted to Php1.53billion
from Php1.31billion of 2015. The majority of which came from the sale of the real estate
of Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI) a subsidiary engaged in real estate business. The
balance of the receivables as at December 31, 2016 was 18% higher than that of 2015.

Real Estate Held For Sale — As of December 31, 2016, the Group real estate held for
sale had a carrying amount of Php723.28million from Php673.39million of 2015 or 7%
growth.

Other current assets — As of December 31, 2016, the Group other current assets had a

carrying amount of Php206.23million or a 5% growth from 2015 with balance of
Php196.36miliion.

Intangible assets — As at December 31, 2016, the Group intangible assets had a carrying
amount of Php159.33million from Php175.17million of 2015. There was 9% or
Php15.84million decrease in intangible assets. The decrease was due to the impairment
of exclusive rights to distribute of Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions,
Inc. (CUBES) engaged in refrigeration business and the film rights of the Group.
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Investment property —~ As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the investments property had
carrying value of Php399.95million and Php273.00million, respectively or an increase of
Php126.75million or 46% higher than that of 2015, The increase in carrying value were
from the appraisal increase of the land amounted to Php158.94million or 58% increase
from.2015. Investment in properly were carried at fair market value of the investment
property as at reporting date.

Property and equipment - As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group Property and
Equipment had carrying amount of Php391.10million and Php479.06million, respectively.
There was no major addition to the property and equipment, and the decrease in value
were from the depreciation recognized in 2016.

Trade and other payables — As at December 31, 2016, the Group trade and payables
amounted to Php1.09billion or 17% higher than that of 2015. The increase were mainly
due to the increase in accrued expenses of the Group.

Short-term loans — As at December 31, 2016, the Group short-term loans amounted to
Php211.05million or 16% higher than that of 2015. In 2016 the Company availed of
short-term loans amounted to Php29.52million due to the financing requirements of the
Group for additional working capital requirements of subsidiaries.

Income tax payable — The Group recorded Php.88million corporate income tax payable
of 2016 a 196% higher than that of 2015.

Obligations under finance lease — As at December 31, 20186, the Group finance lease
obiigations had a carrying amount of Php57.09million an increase of Php57.09million or
100% higher than that of 2015. The increase was due to the availment of the Group of
the loans through the finance lease.

Installment payable — As of December 31, 20186, the Group installment payable had
carrying amount of Php28.00million from Php179.00million or 84% decrease. The
decrease due to amortization payment of the loan in 2016.

Loans payable - As at December 31, 2016 the Group loan payable amounted to
Php631.45million a 99% higher than 2015. The increase was due to the availment of
additional loan.

Pension liabilites — As at December 31, 2016 and 2015 the balance of the pension
liabilities was Php19.12million and Php15.44million, respectively, or an increase of
Php3.68million or 24% higher from the 2015. The increase was due to re-measurement
of pension costs.

2015

At the end of 2015, the Company’s audited total assets were valued at Php3.35billion from
Php748.17million in 2014 or 348%; total liabilities were valued at Php2.51billion from
Php314.55million in 2014 or 698%: and total equity was valued at Php837.55million from
Php433.62million in 2015 or 93% higher than 2014. The equity attributable to non-controlling
interest was valued at Php352.02million in 2015 from Php22.79million in 2014.
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The following are the causes for the material changes, i.e. those amounting to five percent
(5%) of the relevant accounts:

Cash - Cash decreased to Php143.78million in 2015 from Php190.32million in 2013
showing 32% decrement in 2015. The operating and financing activities provided
Php633.12milfion in 2014 and Php101.22million in 2014. While, the investing activities
provided Php680.66million in 2015 and provided Php163.23million in 2014. '

Receivables - As at December 2015, the balance of receivables were Php1.44billion,
Php1.23billion of which were from the sale of the real estate of Goshen Land Capital,
Inc. (GLC!) a subsidiary engaged in real estate business. The balance of the receivables
as at December 31, 2015 is 1,378% higher than that of 2014.

Real Estate Held For Sale — As of December 31, 2015, the Group real estate held for
sale had carrying amount of Php673.39million. This posted a 100% increase since the
Group real estate subsidiary just came in starting May of 2015.

Other current assets — The balance of the other current assets as at December 31, 2015
is Php70.09million or 231% higher than 2014 with balance of Php21.16million.

Intangible assets — As at December 31, 2015, the Group intangible assets had carrying
amount of Php175.17million as compared to Php16.64million of 2014. There was
Php158.53million or a 853% growth. The increase were due to the recognition of the
exclusive right to distribute for the Concepts: Unplugged Business Solutions, Inc.
(CUBEs) and the resulting goodwill in the acquisition of the majority shares of Goshen
Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI).

Investment property — As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group investments
property had carrying value of Php279.90million and Php159.98million, respectively or
an increase of Php119.92million or 75% higher than that of 2014. The increase in
carrying value were from the appraisal increase of the land amounted to
Php102.42million and additional acquisition of land classified as investment property and
the additional costs incurred in the amount of Php17.50million or 75% increase from
2014. Investment in property were carried at fair market value of the investment property
as at reporting date.

Investment in associate - In the 1 quarter of 2015, the Parent Company put an
additional investment in Concepts: Unplugged Business Environment System (CUBEs),
Inc. amounted to Php40.00milliongiving the company control to classify the same as
subsidiary. This gave 119% decremental in 2015 from 2014 investments in associated
amounted to Php73.44million.

Property and equipment — As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group property and
equipment had carrying amount of Php479.06million and P163.89million, respectively.
During the year 2015 there were additions to property and equipment amounted to

Php454.08million. Heavy equipment acquired in 2015 amounted to Php399million or
about 88% of the total additions made.
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» Trade and other payables — As at December 31, 2015, of the Group trade and other
payables had carrying amount of Php927.83million or 585% higher than that of 2014.
The significant increase in the trade and other payables were from the inclusion of
Goshen Land Capital, Inc. Trade and other payables.

* Short-term loans — As at December 31, 2015, the Group short-term loans had carrying
amount of Php182.23million or 130% higher than that of 2014. In 2015 the Company
availed of short-term loans amounted to Php182.23million due to the financing
requirements of the Group for the acquisition of heavy equipment and for additional
working capital requirements of subsidiaries.

» Income tax payable — The Group recorded Php.40million corporate income tax payable
in 2015 a 855% lower than that of 2014. Though the current provision for income tax is
higher than 2014 by 291% or Php3.39million income tax payable is still lower because
the group were able to pay more than half of the provision for current income tax due in
the group quarterly income tax returns.

* Loans payable ~ As at December 31, 2015 the Group loan payable amounted to
Php793.71million a 3,982% higher than 2014. The increase was mainly due to the
inclusion of the Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI) loan a new subsidiary joined in the
group in 2015, The GLCI loan as at December 31, 2015 was Php582.21 representing
73% of the total loans payable.

» Pension liabilities — As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group pension liabilities had
carrying amount of Php15.44million and Php3.46million, respectively, or an increase of
Php11.98million or 346% higher from the 2014. The increase was due to re-
measurement of pension costs.

item 7. Financial Statements

The Company’s consolidated Financial Statements containing 79 pages are duly filed and
annexed as part of this Annual Report.

Item 8. Information on Independent Auditor and Other Related Matters

(1) External Auditor’s Fees and Services

a) Audit Fees

The Company has engaged SGV & Company as its external auditor for the last three
(3) fiscal years. SGV has conducted the financial audit of the group including the
parent company and its various operating subsidiaries. For this service, the total
biling of SGV (VAT exclusive) were Php 1,770,000.00 Php 1,541,000.00 and
Php770,000.00, for 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectively.
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b) Tax Fees

Aside from the aforementioned activities, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has
not engaged SGV for any other services.

c) All Other Fees

Aside from the audit fees disclosed under letter (a) above, the Company has
engaged the services of SGV for the Due Diligence Audit of Goshen Land Capital
Inc. for it acquisition of 55% in the company in about April to May 2015.

(2) Changes in and Disagreements with Independent Auditors on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

During the course of the audit, the Company and SGV did not have any material

disagreements on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.



Item 9.

PART lll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

(1} Directors:

Directors and Officers

i |ino

rain

C

man

alr

January 1, 2015

Augusto Antonio C.

Serafica. Jr. 56 Filipino President & CEO January 2013 to
present
March 2011 to
present
Siso M. Lao Vice Chairman January 1, 2015
52 Filipino Director {Vice Chairman)
September 2012
to present
Raul F. Anonas 55 Filipino Director January 1, 2015
EVP & COO (EVP & CO0)
Ignatius F. Yenko June 2012 to
65 Filipino Independent present
Director
Ramon A. Recto December 2012
85 Filipino Director
Samuel O. Occefia, Jr. Independent June 2012 to
' 54 Filipino Director present
July 28, 2015
Victor Y. Lim, Jr. 72 Filipino Director to present
1996 to present
Roberto V. San Jose 76 Filipino Corporate Secretary

Mr. Teofilo A. Henson (Chairman)

Mr. Henson has been elected as Chairman of the Board beginning January 1, 2015. Mr.
Henson has been a Director of Premiere Horizon for 17 years. He has held the position
of President (until December 2014) of Puregold Realty Leasing and Management, Inc.,
a COSCO Capital company where he supervised the operations, acquisition and
development of the group’s commercial malls business. He has aiso held the position of
President and Chief Executive Officer of Gem Communications Holdings Corp. and
Southern Broadcasting Network Inc. which operated the first UHF-frequency television
station in Metro Manila. Mr. Henson graduated with a degree in AB General Engineering
from the Ateneo de Manila University and holds a Master's Degree in Business
Management from the Asian Institute of Management.
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Mr. Siso M. Lao (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lao was elected as the Vice Chairman of the Board effective January 1, 2015. He
became a Director of Premiere Horizon in 2011, Mr. Lao is the President and CEO of
Milestone Garments Manufacturing and a director of One Megaworld Ventures,
Skyfoods Corp. and 3L Properties & Alpha Devt Corp. Mr. Lao is also the Vice President
of Blacksione Properties and Development Corp. and FirstCapitol Inc. Mr. Lao's
expertise in real estate development is a perfect match to Premiere Horizon's plan of
tourism and property development. Mr. Lao graduated from Patts College of Aeronautics
with a degree of Aeronautical Engineering.

Mr. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr. (President & CEO, Director)

Mr. Serafica was elected as a Regular Director during the Board meeting on May 2010
and became Chairman in March 2011 to December 2014. Mr. Serafica is also the
current Managing Director of Asian Alliance Investment Corporation and Asian Alliance
Holdings & Development Corporation. He is also a Regular Director of Marventures
Holdings Inc. and Bright Kindle Resources Inc. Mr. Serafica is a veteran investment
banker with expertise in mergers and acquisitions, fundraising and placement and
business development. industries that he is quite versed with are mining, real estate and
technology. Mr. Serafica is also the past Chairman of the AIM Alumni Association and is
the current National Treasurer of the Brotherhood of Christian Businessmen &
Professionals. A CPA, Mr. Serafica earned his BA in Accountancy in San Beda College
and acquired his MA in Business Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

Mr. Raul F. Anonas (Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer, Director)

Mr. Anonas was elected as Regular Director of Premiere Horizon in September 2012.
Mr. Anonas is the Chairman of Rosabaya Distributors Inc. and Humabon Distributors.
He is also the Vice Chairman of First Ardent Property Development Corporation and
President & CEO of Rajawali Resources and Holdings Inc. Mr. Anonas is a corporate
finance veteran with expertise in investment banking, mergers & acquisitions and project
financing. He also has extensive experience as an entrepreneur and has successfully
managed start-up companies. Mr. Anonas holds a B.S. Management Degree from the
Ateneo de Manila University and an MBA in Finance from Fordham University.

Mr. Victor Y. Lim, Jr. (Regular Director)

Mr. Lim was elected as Regular Director on July 28, 2015. He is currently the Chairman
of V28 Property Developers,inc., President of Yuchengco Lim Development
Corporation, Chairman of National Affairs Commiltee of the Financial Executives
institute of the Philippines (FINEX), Trustee of the Ateneo Scholarships Foundation,
Secretary of the International Association of the Financial Executives Istitute, Director of
the Ateneo Alumni Association and member of the Management Association of the
Philippines. Mr. Lim holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics degree from the Ateneo
de Manila University and a Masters in Business Management degree from the Asian
Institute of Management.

Ramon A. Recto (Regular Director)

Mr. Recto was elected as Regular Director last December 18, 2012. He is the Chairman
& President of C.M.E. Technology Philippines, Inc., Director of Crown Equities, inc. and

was President of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. He has been involved in several business
entities largely in the field of mining and exploration of iron, copper, gold and other
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minerals. A graduate of Master of Industrial Management and a holder of Bachelor of
Science in Mechanical Engineering and Electrical Engineering at the University of the
Philippines.

Atty. Roberto San Jose (Director and Corporate Secretary)

Atty. San Jose was elected as Director on May 27, 2015 and has been the Corporate
Secretary of the Company since 1996. He is a member of the Philippine Bar and is a
Partner of the Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon and San Jose Law Offices. He is Chairman
and Director of Mabuhay Holdings Corp., and Director and/or Corporate Secretary of CP
Group of Companies, CP Equities Corp., Atlas Resources Management Group and MAA
Consultants, Inc. He is also currently the Corporate Secretary of Alsons Consolidated
Resources, Inc., Solid Group, Inc., Philweb Corporation, FMF Development Corp. and
Anglo Philippines Holdings Corp. Atty. San Jose holds a Law Degree from the University
of the Philippines.

Ignatius F. Yenko (Independent Director)

Mr. Yenko was elected as Independent Director last June 2012. He is currently Vice
Chairman of TKC Steel Corporation, Director of Sterling Bank of Asia and Management
Consultant for Cyan Management Corp. A holder of Masters in Business Management
at the Asian Institute of Management and a degree holder of Bachelor of Arts Major in
Economics from the Ateneo de Manila University.

Samuel O. Occeiia, Jr. (Independent Director)

Mr. Occeifia, Jr. was elected as Independent Director last June 2012. He is a financial
consultant for various companies and has acquired his MA in Business
Management from the Asian Institute of Management (AIM)

Key COrpbrate Officers

Atty. Ana Maria Katigbak- Lim (Asst. Corporate Secretary)

Atty. Katigbak assumed the position of Asst. Corporate Secretary since 1997. A member
of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and a graduate of Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor
of Arts in Comparative Literature (Cum Laude) at the University of the Philippines, she is
currently a partner at the Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon San Jose Law Offices. She is
aiso a Director or Officer of publicly-listed companies and registered membership clubs
such as: Boulevard Holdings, Inc., Mabuhay Holdings, Inc., Solid Group, Inc., The
Metropolitan Club, Inc., AJO.net Holdings, Inc. and PhilWeb Corporation.

Atty. Stephen E. Cascolan (Asst. Corporate Secretary)
Atty. Cascolan assumed the position of asst. Corporate Secretary last 2013. A member
of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines and a graduate of Bachelor of Arts in Philippine

Studies, Major in Journalism and Creative Writing at the University of the Philippines, he
Is currentiy a managing partner at the Benipayo and Partners Law Firm.
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(2) EXECUTIVE OFFICERS and SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

The officers of the company are as follows:

1. Augusto Antonio C. Serafica, Jr. - President & CEQ
2. Raul Ma. F. Anonas - Executive Vice President & COO
3. Ricardo S. Consunji lli - Senior Vice President - Operations
4. Andres A. del Rosario - Senior Vice President & Treasurer
5. Manolo B. Tuason - Senior Vice President & CFO

- 6. Stephen E. Cascolan - Vice President & CLO
7. Ana Liza G. Aquino - Vice President
8. Joseph Jeeben R. Segui - Assistant Vice President

(3) Family Relationship

There is no family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or
affinity among directors, executive officers or persons nominated or chosen to become
directors or executive officers of the Company.

{4) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of: (1} any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any
business of which a director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer,
promoter, or control person of the Company was a general partner or executive officer
either at the time of bankruptcy or within two (2) years prior that time; (2) any conviction
by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding fraffic violations and other

promoter, or control person; (3) any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently
reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or
foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting
the involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities a
director, person nominated to become a director, executive officer, promoter or control
person of the Company; and (4) judgment against a director, person nominated to

Item 10. Executive Compensation

The following table is a summary of all plan and non-plan compensation awarded to, earned
by, paid to, or estimated to be paid to, directly or indirectly, the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ"), the three (3) most highly compensated executive officers other than the CEQO who
served as executive officers, and all officers and directors as a Group as of 31 December
2017 (including the preceding two fiscal years, and current fiscal year — estimated only):
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Name / Principal

Position Year Salary Other Annual
Compensation
Teofilo A. Henson 2015 2,470,000.00
Chairman 2016 2,660,000.00
2017 2,660,000.00
Augusto C. Serafica 2015 4,810,000.00
President & CEQ 2016 5,180,000.00
2017 5,180,000.00
Raul Ma. F. Anonas 2016 3,510,000.00
EVP & COO 2017 3,600,000.00
Manolo B. Tuason 2018 2,470,000.00
SVP & CFO 2017 2,500,000.00
Andres A. del Rosario 2016 2,470,000.00
SVP & Treasurer 2017 2,500,000.00
Ana Liza G. Aquino 2016 1,560,000.00
Vice President 2017 1,600,000.00
Executive Officers 2016 4,992,000.00
Aggregate amount 2017 5,542,000.00
(Unnamed)
Directors 2015 1,350,000.00
2016 1,350,000.00
2017 599,998.00
item 11, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiai Owners and Management

(2) Security Ownership of Management

The following are the security ownership of the directors and executive officers of the
Corporation as of 31 December 2017:

aofilo A. Henson;

50,050,000(D)
Chairman

,050,000 2.51%




T e = r——

Common

Augusto  Antonio C.
Serafica, Jr.,

Director, President &
CEQ

70,000,001 (D)
44,070,000(1)

Filipino

114,070,001

5.73%

| Common

Siso M, Lao
Vice Chairman

71,666,667(D);
106,721,807()

Filipino

178,388,474

8.96%

Commeon

Victor Y. Lim, Jr.
Director

83,000 (D)

Filipino

83,000

0.00%

Common

Raul Ma. F, Anonas,
Diractor

21,250,001(D)

Filipino

21,250,001

Common

Ramon A. Recto
Director

(D)

Filipino

1.06%

1

0.00%

Common

lgnatius  F.  Yenko
Independent Diractor

1(D)

Filiping

1

0.00%

Common

Samuel O. Occedia, Jr.
Independent Director

1(D)

Filipino

1

0.00%

Common

Roherto V. San Jose
Director / Corporate
Secretary

1(D)

Filipino

0.00%

(3} Voting trust Holders of 5% or More

There are no persons holdin

similar arrangement.

(4) Changes in Control

On March 15, 2012, and Janua
parties. Gain on said sale of s

Item 12,

In the ordinary course of busine
subsidiaries and other relate

On December 15, 2011, the board

directors to subscribe to onhe hundr

subscription price P0.05 above par

On February 24, 2012,
Convertible Loan amounti
years. Lender shall have
raising program was to su

Aside from the foregoing,

or stockholder owning ten p
of their immediate family ha

the Board of Directors approv
ng to Php 100.0 million at 8%

the option to convert at Php 0.36
four (4) Converted Share at an
vertible Loan outstanding amoun
pport the E-Games expansion a

there had been no material trans
years involving the Company or any of its subsidiaries in wh
ercent (10%) or more of total oy
d or is to have a direct or indirect

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

mong others.

g five percent (5%) or more of a class under a voting trust or

ry 2013, DSI was able to sell 15 million shares to third
hares was recorded at Php1.2 million in 2012.

of directors approved a resolution allowing three regular
ed seventy five million unissued
or at P0.30 per share.

shares of the Company a

ed a fund raising program via
interest with a term of three (3)
/share with a detachable warrant

action during the past two (2)
ich a director, executive officer
tstanding shares and members
material interest.




item 13 - The Inte
on May 31, 2018,

PART IV. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

grated Annual Corporate Governance Report (“I-ACGR”) will be submitted
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

(a) Exhibits: Exhibit A. 2017 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C,

The Company filed reports with the following dates under SEC Form 17-C within the
calendar year ending December 31, 2017.

DATE REPORT ITEMS REPORTED
Premiere Horizon to Raise PhP1B to Anchor Its
January 10, 2017 Infrastructure and Tourism Focus
March 21, 2017 Premiere Horizon to raise up to PhP500M for Tourism
Subsidiary, West Palawan Premiere
March 29, 2017 Approval of the Proposed Preferred Shares Offering of

Woest Palawan Premiere Development Corp. (WPP)
Premiere Horizon and Dusit Group to Jointly Explore

August 3, 2017 Partnership Arrangements for PHA's West Palawan
Project

August 15, 2017 Board Approvals

August 16, 2017 Notice of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting

October 26, 2017 Egz;gﬁ ?\fl ’Er; cl;ngﬁfésrgg:olders' Meeting of Premiere

November 13, 2017 g::grr)nee::rtys l:ogzdzzg? 8on Current Businesses of PHA and
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'The management of Premiere Hotizon Alliance Corpotation (the Group) are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation of financial statefents that are free
from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepating the consolidated financial statements, management is tesponsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

"The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV), the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, have
audited the financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standatds on Auditing,
and in their report to the stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation
upon completion gff such audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
Unit E-1708, 17th Floor, East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Center
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the Group) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 3 1,2017 and
2016, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in
equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2017, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

_ In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2017, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities Jor the dudit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the consolidated financiai
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financia] statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audijt
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements,

Recognition of revenue and cost from real estate

The Group applies the percentage of completion (POC) method in determining real estate revenue and
costs. The POC is based on the proportion of cost incurred to date over tota] estimated cost of the real
estate project. The cost of sales is determined on the basis of the total estimated costs applied with the
POC of the project. The Group’s real estate revenue and costs accounts for 65.8% of total consolidated
revenues and 41.9% of the total consolidated costs and expenses, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The estimation of the total cost of the real estate project requires technical inputs by
project development engineers. In addition, the Group requires a certain percentage of buyer’s payments
of total selling price (buyer’s equity) to be collected as one of the criteria in order to initiate revenue

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s processes for determining the POC, including the cost
accumulation process, and for determining and updating of total estimated costs, and performed tests of
the relevant controls on these processes. We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
project development engineers by reference to their qualifications, experience and reporting

threshold. We traced the analysis to supporting documents such as POC worksheet, Buyer’s statement of
Account, and Contract to sell.
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Impairment testing of goodwill and exclusive distri bution right

As of December 31, 2017, the Group’s goodwill and exclusive distribution right attributable to the
acquisition of Concepts Unplugged: Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) which is considered
significant to the consolidated financial statements amounted to P2.61 million and R120.40 million,
respectively. Under PFRS, the Group is required to annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment
while the exclusive distribution right is required to be tested for impairment if there are indicators of
impairment. CUBES started its operation on November 3, 2015. In May 2017, due to operational issues,
CUBES’ operation was put on hold but is expected to continue in 2018. Accordingly, management
performed an impairment test on its goodwill and exclusive distribution right. This matter is significant
to our audit because management’s assessment process requires significant judgment and is based on
assumptions, specifically revenue growth assumptions and discount rate, among others,

The Group’s disclosures about goodwill and exclusive distribution right are included in Note 11 g the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit Response

We involved our internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and the assumptions used. These
assumptions include revenue growth assumptions and discount rate, among others. We compared the key
assumptions used, such as revenue growth rate against the historical performance of the CGU and other
relevant external data. We tested the parameters used in the determination of the discount rate against
market data. We also reviewed the Group’s disclosures about those assumptions to which the outcome of
the impairment test is most sensitive; specifically those that have the most significant effect on the
determination of the recoverable amount of the goodwill and the exclusive distribution right,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2017, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual
Report for the year ended December 31, 2017 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audits or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’'s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
andit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

TR0 GO
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We comrﬁunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. ' ‘

L T
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial staternents of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza 11,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

A Bxa/mm C. W

Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza I1I

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 109217

SEC Accreditation No. 1627-A (Group A),
April 4, 2017, valid until April 3, 2020

Tax Identification No. 246-663-780

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001 998-129-2017,
February 9, 2017, valid until February 8, 2020

PTR No. 6621351, January 9, 2018, Makati City

April 6, 2018

' A

A membar firn of Enist & Young Gilobal Limited
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JULIE ANN PONESTO BALAGAT

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

CERTIFICATE ON THE COMPILATION SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

| hereby certify that | am the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) who performed the
compilation services related to the preparation and presentation of financial information of an entity
in accordance with an applicable financial reporting framework and reports as required by

accounting and auditing standards for Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation and Subsidiaries for

the period ended December 31, 2017.

In discharging this responsibiflity, | hereby declare that | am the Accounting_Manager of
Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation which includes the following subsidiaries:
Digiwave Solutions, Inc.

Goshen Land Capital, Inc.

Redstone Construction and Development Corporation
West Palawan Premiere Development Carp.

PH Mining and Development Corporation

PH Agriforest Corporation

PH Big Bounty Entertainment, Inc.

Premiere Horizon Business Services, Inc.

Concepts Unplugged Business Environment Solutions, inc.

Furthermore, in my compilation services for the preparation of Financial Statements and Notes
to the Financial Statements, | was not assisted by or did not avail of the services of SGV & Co.,
who/which is the external auditor who rendered the audit opinion of the Financial Statements and

Notes to the Financial Statements of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation,

| hereby declare, under penalties of perjury and violation of Republic Act No. 9298, that my
-statements are Jyue and correct. |
JULIE ANN PONEBYO BALAGAT

PROFESSIONAL IDENTIFICATION CARD NO. 0158363
VALID UNTIL JANUARY 14, 2020

BOA ACCREDITATION NO. 1987

. VALD UNTIL JANUARY 14, 2019

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to me before this /(H , the affiant personally appeared and
exhibited to me her PRC ID issued on October 27, 2044, at Manila, Philippines.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Page No. 2
Boaok No.
Series of 2018
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ASSETS g
Current Assets
Cash (Note 4) _ £70,160,469 P90,309,534
Receivables - net (Note 5 1,424,672,541 1,145,321,795
Real estate held for sale (Note 6) 824,985,181 723,281,589
Inventories - at cost 13,004,016 12,197,951
Other current assets (Note 7) 301,996,492 205,495,512
Total Current Assets 2,634,818,699  2,176,606,381
Noncurrent Assets
Noncurrent portion of contracts receivable (Note 5) 220,981,250 387,192,861
Goodwill and intangible assets (Note 11) 143,710,343 159,328,777
Property and equipment - net (Note 12) 330,386,097 393,090,904
Land and land development (Notes 6 and 13) _ 578,788,797 123,275,017
Investment properties (Notes 6 and 13) - 399,952,700
Other noncurrent assets - net (Note 14) 187,867,508 84,189,650
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,461,733,995  1,547,029,909
TOTAL ASSETS £4,096,552,694 B3,723,636,290
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 15) $907,372,359 P644,034,234
Short-term loans (Note 17) 209,100,000 211,050,000
Income tax payable 343,953 883,526
Current portion of:

Purchased land payable (Note 16) 148,904,822 240,372,651

Loans payable (Note 18) 407,701,184 421,272,408

Obligations under finance lease (Note 19) : 26,121,235 47,249,409

Installment payable (Note 19) — 27,992,410
Total Current Liabilities 1,699,543,553 1,592,854,638
Noncurrent Liabilities
Pension liabilities (Note 22) 13,183,317 19,124,656
Convertible loans (Note 20) 522,920,562 423,409,346
Noncutrent portion of:

Purchased land payable (Note 16) 20,366,614 11,940,180

Loans payable (Note 18) 566,755,607 405,585,375

Obligations under finance lease (Note 19) 8,624,968 9,842,435
Capital gains tax payable (Note 28) : 26,940,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 28) 236,042,655 327,249,523
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,394,833,723 1,197,151,515
{Forward)
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December 31

2017 2016

Equity (Note 23)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets (Note 9
Retained earnings
Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary

P472,715222 B471,115222
66,073,918 66,073,918

- (334,699)
186,719,419 150,957,917
(133,663,988) (153,81 9,786)

Equity attributable to non-controlling interests

591,844,571 533,992,572
410,330,847 399,637,565

Total Equity

1,002,175,418 933,630,137

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P4,096,552,694  P3,723,636,200

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2017 2016 - 2015
REVENUES (Notes 31 and 35)
Real estate sales £479,475,389 P605,423,264 R590,369,661

Mining related services 247,142,428 297,833,328 289,714,919
Service income 1,648,727 7,882,924 2,025,000
Sale of film rights 387,213 — 357,143
728,653,757 911,139,516 882,466,723
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of real estate sales (Note 6) 289,052,737 380,423,106 369,922,905
Cost of services (Note 24) 221,326,617 259,883,181 223,216,450
General and administrative (Note 25) 178,694,344 209,617,384 175,369,423
689,073,698 849,923 671 768,508,778
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest income (Notes 4 and 5) 7,157,849 13,944,932 8,726,159
Gain on:
Change in fair value of investment properties (Note 13) - 158,937,240 95,522,590
Sale of asset held for sale (Note 8) - 10,257,441 -
Impairment losses (Note 27) (578,803) (3.483,521)  (6,903,244)
Equity in net earnings of an associate (Note 8) - — 1,180,072
Interest expense (Note 29) (95,662,982) (129,786,216) (57.535,131)
Other income (charges) — net {(Notes 5 and 15) 26,781,592 6,879,288 (7,285,854)
(62,302,344) 56,749,164 33,704,592
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (22,722,285) 117,965,009 147,662,537
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT F ROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 28) (61,885,784) 70,604,135 76,078,367
NET INCOME 39,163,499 47,360,874 71,584,170
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Item to be reclassified to income or loss in subsequent
periods:
Unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets {Note 9) - 43,000 (470,000)
Realized Ioss on AFS financial assets transferred to
profit or loss 334,699 — -~
334,699 43,000 (470,000)
Item rot to be reclassified to income or loss in subsequent :
periods:
Remeasurement gain (loss) on defined benefit
obligation (Note 22) 7,291,285 (196,246) 3,181,215
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 7,625,984 (153,246) 2,711,215
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 246,789,483 B47.207,628 R74,295,385

(Forward)

HE L RS R



Years Ended December 31
: 2017 2016 2015
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent B31,675,928 £35,334,467 P42,768,102

Non-controlling interests 7,487,571 12,026,407 28,816,068
B39,163,499 47,360,874 P71,584,170
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent P36,096,201 £34,953,664 P44,110,928
Non-controlling interests 10,693,282 12,253,964 30,184,457
£46,789,483  P47,207,628 P74,295,385
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT COMPANY (Note 30)
- Basic and diluted earnings per share 80.0180 £0.0205 B0.0255

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Aftributable to Equity Holders of the Parent

Additional Unrealized Parent
Additional Paid-in Total Gain (Loss) on Company Adttributable to
Capital Paid-in Capital on Additional Retained  AFS Financial Shares held Non-controlling
Stock Capital Conversion Paid-in Earnings Assets bya Intcrests
(Note 23) {APIC) {Note 20) Capital (Note 23) (Note 9) Subsidiary Total (Note 23) Total Equity
Balances as at December 31, 2016 8471,115,222 P47383,824 R18.690.094 66,073 918 150,957 917 (P334,699)  (R153,819,736) B533 992 572 R399 637 565 R933 630,137
Net income for the year - - - - 31,675,928 - - 31,675,928 7,487,571 39,163,499
Remeasurement gein on defined benefit obligation - - - - 4,085,574 - - 4,085,574 3,205,711 7,291,285
Realized loss on AFS fi ial assets - - — - - 334,699 - 334,699 - 324,699
Total omprohensive income - - - - 35.761,502 334,699 - 36,096,201 10,653,282 46,789 483
Collection of subscription recaivables 1,600,000 - - — — - - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Parent C, shares beld by a subsidi - - - - - - 20,155,798 20,155,798 - 20,155,798
Balances as at December 31, 2017 % $47333,824 18,690,094 B66,073.918  RI186,719.419 P- _(RI33,663988)  R591,844,57] B4l EMM_
Balances as at December 31, 2015 B471,115,222 P47,383 824 B18,043 685 B65427,509 P116,047,253 (P377,699) _ (RISI,405,856)  PS500,806,429 P360,383,601 P861,190.030
Net income for the year - - - - 35,334,467 - - 35,334,467 12,026,407 47,360,874
Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets - - - - .- 43,000 - 43,000 - 43,000
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligation ~ - - — (423,803) - - {423,803) 227,557 (196,246)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 34,910,664 43,000 - 34,953,664 12,253 964 47,207 623
Issuance of convertible Joans - - 646,409 646,409 - - - 646,400 - 646,409
Subscription of shares - - - - - - - - 27,000,000 27,000,000
Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary - - - — - - (2,413,930) (2,413,930} - (2,413.930)
Balances as at December 31, 2016 P471,115,2227 B47,383 824 B18,690,094 Pe6 073918  PI50.957.917 (#334,699) (P153,819,786) _B533,092 572 B399.637,565 P933,630,137
[Balances as at December 31, 2014 P411,273,000 P25.797,775 P2 560,716 P28 358,491 P67,686,368 R92,301 (B96,585,549) 410,824 611 822,790,884 P433 615,495
Net income for the year - - - - 42,768,102 - - 42,763,102 28,816,068 71,584,170
Unrealized loss on AFS financial assets - - - - - (470,000) - (470,000} - (470,000)
*~Remeesurement gain on defined benefit obligation - - - - 1,812,826 - - 1,812,826 1,368,389 3,181,215
Total comprehensive income : - - - — 44,580,928 (470,000) - 44,110,928 30,184,457 74,295,385
Conversion of convertible loans payable 33,377,778 17,246,938 (2,560,716) 14,686,222 - - - 48,064,000 - 48,064,000
Subscription of share warrants 8,344,444 4,339,111 - 4,339,111 - - - 12,683,555 - 12,683,555
Coil=ction of subscription receivable 18,120,000 - - - - - - 18,120,000 - 18,120,000
Issuance of convertible foans - - 18,043 685 18,043,685 - - - 18,043,685 - 18,043,685
Agquisitions of:
Non-contrelling interest - - - - 3,779,957 - - 3,779,957 (9.019.957) (5,240,000}
Agsociate and subsidiary - - - - - - - - 316,428,217 316,428217
Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary - - - - - - (54,820,307) (54,820.307) - - (54,820 307)
Balances as at December 31, 2015 B471.115222 £47,383 824 P18,043 685 P65,427,509  P116,047253 (R377,699) (R151405856)  R500,806,429 F360,383 601 P861,190,030

See accompanying Notes to Consolidateq Financial Statements.
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax (B22,722,285) P117,965009 P147,662,537
Adjustments for:
Interest expense (Note 29) 95,662,982 129,786,216 57,535,131
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 11 and 12) 88,119,085 112,479,751 66,266,308
~ Loss (gain) on:
Pilferage of spare parts inventory 780,241 - -
Change in fair value of investment properties
(Note 13) - (158,937,240) (95,522,590)
Sale of investment in associate (Note 8) - (10,257,441) -
Disposal of property and equipment 66,683 - (14,931)
Impairment losses (Note 27 578,803 3,483,521 6,903,244
Realized loss on sale of AFS financial assets 334,699 - -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - {223) (48,367)
Remeasurement loss on investment in associate
{Note 10) - - 2,607,117
Equity in net earnings of associates - - (1,180,072)
Recovery of impairment of film rights (Note 11) (13,309) - -
Interest income (Notes 4 and 5) (7,157,849) {13,944,932) (8,726,159)
Operating income before working capital changes 155,649,050 180,574,661 175,482,718
Decrease (increase) in;
Receivables (113,145,135)  (226,044,375) (74,070,259)
Real estate held for sale (101,763,592) (49,889,555) (94,472,087)
Inventories (1,586,306) 2,544,505 (6,753,608)
Other current assets (99,524,790) {4.093,386)  (154,035,578)
Increase {decrease) in:
Trade and other payables 260,579,788 113,391,890 126,375,643
Purchased land payable (83,041,395) 70,890,689 97,223,809
Pension liabilities 4,286,024 4,252,408 15,156,365
Net cash flows from operations 21,513,644 01,626,837 84,907,003
Interest received 7,157,849 13,944,932 8,726,159
Interest paid (91,393,429)  (118,994,293)  (53,728,118)
Income tax paid (5,856,734) (14,513,161) (11,610,388)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (68,578,670) (27,935,685) 28,294,656

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:
Property and equipment P86,313 P298,000 P100,000
Film rights 26,096 - -
Assets held for sale (Note 8) - 45,000,000 -
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment (Note 12) (7,510,621) (14,808,455) (355,33 6,827)
Land and land development (Note 6) (55,561,080) (20,027,017) -
Associates and subsidiaries - net of cash
acquired (Note 10) - = (279,244,661)
Investment properties (Note 13) - - (17,494 870)
Non-controlling interest (Note 23) - - (5.240,000)
Increase in other noncwurrent assets (103,677,858) (31,089,792) (46,542,510)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (166,637,150) (20,627,264) (703,758,868)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Loans payable 730,863,200 452,276,311 3,049,654
Convertible loans (Note 20) 100,000,000 26,000,000 408,000,000
Short-term loans (Note 17) 68,140,000 211,050,000 189,350,000
Sale of Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary 20,155,798 - -
Share subscriptions (Note 23) 1,600,000 - 18,120,000
Issuance of detachable warrants - - 12,683,556
Payment of:
Short-term loans (70,090,000) (1 82,225,000) (86,475,000)
Loans payable (583,264,192)  (415,678,341) (8,333,334)
Convertible loans (Note 20) (2,000,000) - -
Purchase of Parent Company shares held bya
subsidiary - (2,413,930) (54,820,307
Increase (decrease) in:
Obligations under finance lease (22,345,641) 57,091,844 _ -
Installment payable (27,992,410)  (151,007,933) 147,303,491
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 215,066,755 {4,907,049) 628,878,060
NET DECREASE IN CASH (20,149,065) (53,469,998) (46,586,152)
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE ' - 223 48,367
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 90,309,534 143,779,309 190,317,094
CASH AT END OF YEAR (Note 4) R70,160,469 £90,309,534  R143,779,309

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (PHA or the Parent Company), was registered in the
Philippines Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on January 13, 1988 and listed the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on May 5, 1997. The Parent Company’s primary purpose is to
engage in business activities relating to entertainment, gaming, hotel and leisure. In 2011, the SEC
approved the change in the Parent Company’s secondary purpose and authorized the Parent Company
to expand to mining and real estate industries,

On April 7, 2016 and May 26, 2016, the Board of Directors (BOD) and Stockholders, respectively,
approved the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation of the Parent Company to change its
primary purpose to that of an investment holding company, and to relegate the primary purpose to the
secondary purposes and the renumbering thereof. The amendments to the Articles of Incorporation
were approved by the SEC on August 10, 2016.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “the Group™) is involved in
mining and real estate activities. The Group was involved in gaming activities in 2014,

The Parent Company’s registered and principal place of business is at Unit E-1 705, 17th Floor,
East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

The accompanying consolidated firancial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
and for each of the three-year ended December 3 1, 2017, were authorized for issue by the BOD on
April 6,2018,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Financial Reporting Practices

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost
basis, except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and investment properties that have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the
functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. All amounts are
rounded off to the nearest peso unit unless otherwise indicated,

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs),

Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

. with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

LA
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*  Exposure, or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
*  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns,

Consolidation of subsidiaries ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent
Company and the following companies that it controls:

Percentage of Ownership
Country of
Incorporation 2017 2016 2015

West Palawan Premiere Development

Corp. (WPP) Philippines - 100 100 -
Redstone Construction & Development

Corporation (RCDC) Philippines 80 80 80
Goshen Land Capital, Inc. (GLCI) Philippines 55 55 55
Concepts Unplugged: Business

Environment Solutions (CUBES), Inc. Philippines 51 51 51
Premiere Horizon Business Services, Inc,

(formerly La Prima Hotel Imperiale,

Inc.) (PHBSD** Philippines 100 100 100
PH Mining and Development Corporation

(PHMDC)** Philippines 100 100 100
Premiere e-Teleservices, Inc. (PeTh)* Philippines 100 100 100
PH Agriforest Corporation (PHAC)** Philippines 140 100 100
PH Big Bounty Entertainment, Inc.

(PBBEI])** Philippines 100 100 100
Digiwave Solutions Incorporated (DSI)*+ Philippines 100 100 100

*separate financial statements are prepared under the liguidation basis
**non-operating subsidiaries

WPP

WPP is incorporated for the purpose of acquiring by purchase, lease, donation, or otherwise and own,
use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease, develop, and hold for investment
or otherwise real cstate of all kinds.

RCDC

RCDC is primarily engaged into mining related services e.g, hauling and excavation for mining
companies. In February 2015, the Parent Company acquired additional 5.24 million shares equivalent
to 13.1% non-controlling interest in RCDC for a total consideration of B5.24 million or 1.0 per
share, increasing its ownership interest to 80.0%.

GLCT

In June 2015, PHA acquired 550,000 shares of GLC] representing 55% ownership interest for a total
consideration of B275.0 million or 2500 per share, GLCI is a real estate developer based in Baguio
City and develops innovative master planned communities of low to mid rise residential and
commercial condominiums including student dormitories (see Note 10).

CUBES

CUBES is primarily engaged in providing management, investment, and/or technical solutions to
commercial, industrial, and other types of enterprises. In February 2015, PHA acquired additional’
5.20 million shares in CUBES for a total consideration of 40.0 million increasing its ownership
interest to 51.0%. In 2015, the transaction was accounted for as acquisition achieved in stages under
PFRS 3, Business Combination,
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DSI previously operated e-Games stations with its primary purpose to carry out information
technology and other related businesses,

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances, All significant intercompany balances and
transactions, including intercompany income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full,

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest represents interest in a subsidiary that is not owned, directly or indirectly by
the Parent Company. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (loss) are
attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total
comprehensive income (loss) is attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the
non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to the Group.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; :
derecognizes the related other comprehensive income recorded in equity and recycles the
same to profit or loss or retained eamnings; .

. recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; and

recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
the Group has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2017,
Adoption of these pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.

* Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate (or a portion of its interest in a Joint venture or an associate) that is classified
(or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale,

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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* Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes
(such as foreign exchange gains or losses).

Adoption of these amendments will result in additional disclosures in the 2017 consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The Group has provided the required information in

Note 33 of the consolidated financial statements, As allowed under the transaction provisions of
the standard, the Group did not present comparative information for the year ended

December 31, 2016.

* Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets Jor Unrealized Losses
Republic Act (RA) No. 10963 or the Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion Act (TRAIN)
was signed into law on December 19, 2017, and took effect January 1, 2018 making the new tax
law enacted as of the reporting date. Although the TRAIN changes existing tax law and includes
several provisions that will generally affect businesses on a prospective basis, the management
assessed that the same will not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statement balances as of the reporting date,

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not vet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when
they become effective. : ‘

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018

* PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment fransaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted,

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group,

* PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financiql
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. Retrospective application is required, but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions.
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The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with PERS 4
(Amendments)

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from
applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting
periods beginning on or after J anuary 1, 2018. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it

- first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on

transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting the overlay approach
if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when applying PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group has no activities that ar
predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts. :

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue, '

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

The Group is engaged in selling activities of real estate projects while construction is still in
progress or even before it has started. The standard is expected to impact the revenue recognition
of on these pre-completed real estate sales whether revenue will be recognized at a point-in-time
or over time, If there will be a change in revenue recognition, this will also impact the
corresponding costs, and the related trade receivables, deferred tax liabilities and retained
earnings account.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual Improvements to
PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle) (Amendments)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investmen -by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or Jjoint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
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(a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first
becomes a parent.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.

PAS 40, Investment Property, T ransfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary. liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. ‘

Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may
apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are
initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the consolidated financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation,

The interpretation is not expected to have any impact on the Group.,

Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2019

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment
features to be measured at amortized cost or fajr value through other comprehensive income.
An entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted,

The standard is not expected to have any impact on the Group.

PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of

leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees - leases of "low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term
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representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (ie., the right-of-use
asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those Payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
PAS 17,

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15. When adopting
PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs,

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shall
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after J anuary 1, 2019,
Earlier application is permitted,

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments,

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

* The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities '

* How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

*  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments, The approach that better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed.

The Group is currently assessihg the impact of IFRIC 23.
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* PERS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments)
The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The

-amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint

venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards
Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may
result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting
for associates and joint ventures.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash
Cash include cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks eam interest at the prevailing bank deposit
rates, '

Financial Assets and Financijal Liabilities
Lananclal ASsets and Financial Iiabilities

Date of recognition

Initial recognition of financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initiaily at fair value. Except for financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of
financial assets includes transaction costs.

Financial assets are further classified into the following categories: Financial assets at FVPL, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, and AFS financial assets. Financial liabilities
are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities, The classification

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument ora
component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of
financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to retained earnings net of any related
income tax benefits.

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are of the nature of loans and receivables, AFS

financial assets and other financial liabilities. The Group does not have financial assets at FVPL,
HTM investments and liabilities at FVPL as at December 3 1,2017 and 2016.
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Amortized Cost

HTM investments and loan and receivables are measured at amortized cost. This is computed using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes into
account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transactlon costs and fees that are
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Day 1 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the fransaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset or liability.

In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference
amount.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their
classifications as follows:

Loans and receivables _ _

. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered into with the intention
of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as HTM investments, AFS financial assets
or financial assets at FVPL.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost less allowance for
impairment. Amortized cost is calculated through the EIR method taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
amortization is included in interest income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The losses arising from impairment of such loans and receivables are recognized in the ‘Impairment
losses’ account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve (12) months from the
financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

This accounting policy applies primarily to the consolidated balance sheet captions ‘Receivables’ and
‘Receivable from PAGCOR’, and ‘Security deposits’ under ‘Other noncurrent assets’.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are those nonderivative investments which are designated as such or do not
qualify to be classified or designated as financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity investments or
loans and receivables. They are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to
liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.
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After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valnation of AFS
financial assets are excluded, net of tax, from reported earnings and are reported under the
‘Other comprehensive income’ section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Interest earned on holding AFS
financial assets are reported as interest income using the EIR method.- Where the Group holds more
than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in, first-out
basis.

Dividends earned on holding AFS financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, when the right to receive payment has been established. The losses arising
from impairment of such investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income,

The Group’s AFS financial assets are classified as noncurrent asset unless the intention is to dispose
such asset within twelve (12) months from the financial reporting date.

AFS financial assets held by the Group consists of equity securities (see Note 9).

Other financial liabilities (including interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Other financial liabilities pertain to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or not designated
as FVPL upon inception of the liability, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in
the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to
settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or ancther financial asset
for a fixed amount of own equity shares. These include liabilities arising from operations (e.g, trade
and other payables, short-term loans, etc.).

Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at
amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the EIR method of amortization and
accretion for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction cost.

Other liabilities are included in current liabilities if the maturity is within twelve (12) months from the
financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as non-current liabilities,

This accounting policy applies primarily to the Group’s “Trade and other payables’, ‘Short-term
loans’, ‘Loans payable’, ‘Installment payables’, ‘Convertible loans’, ‘Obligations under finance lease’
and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other accounting
standards, such as income tax payable and pension liabilities).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets)
is derecognized when:

» the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

o the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third-party under a pass-through arrangement; or
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¢ the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (i) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (ii) has neither transferred nor
retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control over the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a
cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the
case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or

group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incwred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and receivables

For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that bave not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is charged to “Impairment losses™ in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be recognized based on the
original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans and receivables, together with the associated
allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
in profit and loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed what would have been its amortized cost at the reversal
date had there been no impairment,

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
such credit risk characteristics as customer type, payment history, past-due status and term.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for financial assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

AFS financial assets -
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded under interest income
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases, and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
impairment loss is reversed through in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. |

For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. The determination
of what is significant and prolonged is subject to judgment. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income - is removed from equity and recognized in the profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments are
not reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Increases in fair value
after impairment are recognized directly as part of the other comprehensive income.
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated

balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.

Real Estate Held for Sale

Property acquired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than to be
held for rental or capital appreciation, is held as real estate held for sale and is measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

Cost includes:

» Land acquisition cost and expenses directly related to acquisition

» Amounts paid to contractors for the development and construction

s Borrowing costs, planning and design costs, cost of site preparation, professional fees, property
transfer taxes, construction overhead and other related costs.

NRYV is the estimated sélling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices at
the reporting date less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs of sale.

. Inventories

Inventories represent spare parts and supplies used for the day to day repairs and maintenance of the
Group’s property and equipment. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or NRV. NRYV for
inveéntories represents the related replacement costs.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result of past events. They
are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

Other assets that are expected to be realized for no more than twelve {12) months after the end of
reporting period are classified as current assets; otherwise, these are noncurrent assets.

Land and Land Development
Land and land development consists of properties for the future development that are carried at the

Iower of cost or NRV. The cost of land and land development include the following: (a) land
acquisition cost, (b) costs incurred relative to the acquisition and transfer of land title in the name of
the group such as transfer taxes and registration fees, (¢) costs incurred on initial development of raw
land in preparation of future projects, and (d) borrowing costs, They are transferred to “Real estate
held for sale” account when the project plans, development and construction estimates are completed
and the necessary permits are secured.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use including capitalized borrowing costs incurred during the construction period.
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Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged to operations in the period in which the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as
an additional cost of property and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization commences once the property and equipment are available for use and
are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment as
follows:

Years
Office space building and office space improvements 5-10
Heavy equipment 10 (8 in 2016)
Office and other equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 5
Transportation equipment 5

In 2017, the Group reassessed the estimated useful life of the heavy equipment from 8 years to 10
years to reflect the estimated period during which the assets are expected to remain in service.
Depreciation expense for the year should be B55.83 million had the change in useful life did not take
place. Annual depreciation will be lower by £5.93 million to 12.14 million in two (2) to seven (7)
years. The aggregate net book value of the group’s property and equipment (excluding construction in
progress) amounted to £329.69 million and £392.39 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively (see Note 12).

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the asset of five (5) years, whichever is shorter.

The estimated residual values, useful life and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the period and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use.
When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if any, are removed
from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against current operations.

Investment Properties
Foreclosed properties of land or building and purchased land are classified under investment
properties from foreclosure date and acquisition date, respectively.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. An investment
property acquired through an exchange transaction is measured at the fair value of the asset acquired
unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be measured in which case the investment property
acquired is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up. Foreclosed properties are recorded
as ‘Investment properties’ upon: (a) entry of judgment in case of judicial foreclosure; (b) execution of
the Sheriff’s Certificate of Sale in case of extra-judicial foreclosure; or (c) notarization of the Deed of
Dacion in case of dation in payment (dacion en pago).
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Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair values, which have
determined annually based on the latest appraisal performed by an independent firm or appraiser, an
industry specialist in valuing these types of properties. Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Expenditures incurred after the
investment properties have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are
normally charged to income in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced
by ending of owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
construction or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when,
there is a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sale.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from
their disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment properties are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income under *Gain on sale of assets’ in
the year of retirement or disposal.

Investment in Associates

An associate is an entlty over which the GToup has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating pohcy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control is similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, investment in associate is carried in the consolidated balance sheets at cost plus
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share in net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to an
associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized. The consolidated
statement of comprehensive income reflects the share on the financial performance of an associate.
When Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Where there has been a change recognized
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share in any changes and discloses
this, when applicable, in the statements of changes in equity.

The reporting date of the associate and the Group is identical and the associates’ accounting policies
conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar ¢circumstances.
Unrealized intercompany profits arising from the transactions with the associate are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate.

Intangible Assets .
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, éxcluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in the income or loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are tested as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as the expense category that is consistent with the
function of the intangible assets,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually of at the cash-generating unit (CGU) level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Film rights

Film rights include the unamortized cost of completed theatrical films and television projects and film
rights acquired, Film rights principally consist of direct production costs, production overhead,
development and pre-production costs and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment in value. Amortization of film and television production costs starts when a film is
released and revenues on that film are recognized. Amortization is made in proportion to the actual
income earned during the year as against total estimated income. The total estimated income is
subject to periodic evaluation by management based on actual income generated from those films.

Exclusive distribution right _

Exclusive distribution right pertains to the exclusive right to distribute the Thermo Chiller system
which was acquired as a result of business combination. Exclusive distribution right is amortized on
a straight line basis over its estimated useful life of ten (10) years.

Fair Value Measurements

The Group measures financial instruments and non-financial assets at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
~ measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities, on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above. :

- Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and financial liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. It is then considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized in accordance with PAS 39 either in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, or as a change in other comprehensive income, If
the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured until it is finally settled within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for NCI and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
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identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an
excess of fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain
is recognized in profit or loss.

Afer initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those
units,

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the CGU retained.

Joint Operation
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement

have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognizes in relation to its interest in a joint opcratlon

its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Borrowing Costs

Interest and other related financing charges on borrowed funds used to finance the construction of a
qualifying asset (included under real estate held for sale), are capitalized to the appropriate asset
accounts, Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the expenditures and borrowing costs
are being incurred during the construction and related activities necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. It is suspended during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted and ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are complete. The capitalization is based on the weighted average borrowing cost.

The borrowing costs capitalized as part of real estate held for sale are expensed when the related
assets are sold.

Assets Held for Sale

The Group classifies assets as held for sale (disposal group) when their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly probable. For the sale to
be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset
and an active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated. Furthermore,
the asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair
value. In addition, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification. Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses are recognized for any initial or
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subsequent write-down of the assets held for sale to the extent that these have not been previously
recognized at initial recognition. Reversals of impairment losses for any subsequent increases in fair
value less cost to sell of the assets held for sale are recognized as a gain, but not in excess of the
cumulative impairment loss that has been previously recognized.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that its nonfinancial assets
(e.g., property and equipment, investment property, exclusive distribution right, and film rights) may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the camrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and
loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase. After such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs to which the goodwill
relates, Where the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs is less than the carrying amount
of the CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The Group performs its impairment test of goodwill
annually every December 31.

Investment in associate

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any
additional impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate. The Group
determines at each financial reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as being the difference between the recoverable amount of investment in associate and the carrying
value and recognizes the amount in the statements of comprehensive income.
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Convertible Loans Payable
Convertible loans payable are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of

the contract.

On issuance of the convertible loans payable, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the market rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan. This amount is classified as a financial
liability measured at amortized cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognized and included in
equity as part of additional-paid in capital. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of -
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible loan
payable based onthe allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are initially recognized.

When the convertible loans payable is extinguished before maturity, through an early redemptions or
repurchase in which the original conversion privileges are unchanged an allocation is made for the
consideration paid and any transaction costs for the repurchase or redemption to the liability and
equity components of the instrument at the date of transaction. The method of allocating the
consideration paid and the transaction costs to the separate component is consistent with that used in
the original allocation to the separate components or the proceeds received by the entity when the
convertible loan payables were issued.

Equity
The Group considers the underlying substance and economic reality of its own equity instruments and
not merely its legal form in determining its proper classification,

Capital stock
Ordinary or common shares are classified as equity. The proceeds from the issuance of ordinary or
common shares are presented in equity as capital stock to the extent of the par value issued shares.

Subscriptions receivable
Subscriptions receivable pertains to the uncollected portion of the subscribed shares.

Additional paid-in capital

When the shares are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds at the par value is credited
to “Additional paid-in capital” account. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance are
chargeable to ‘Additional paid-in capital’ account. If additional paid-in capital is not sufficient, the
excess is charged against retained earnings. Equity component of convertible instruments are also
included in “APIC” account.

Retained earnings

Retained eamings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income/loss, dividend
distributions, prior period adjustments and effect of changes in accounting policy, equity reserves,

and capital ad_]ustment Equity reserve transactions are recognized directly into equity as part of
retained eammgs or deficit. Equity reserves include the difference between the consideration paid and
the carrying value of the non-controlling interest acquired or thé difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying value of non-controiling interest sold that do not result in loss of control. When
the retained earnings account has a debit balance, it is called “deficit”.
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Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary

If an entity reacquires its own equity instruments, those instruments “treasury shares” shall be
deducted from equity. No gain or loss shall be recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or canceliation of an entity’s own equity instruments. Such treasury shares may be acquired and held
by the entity or by other members of the consolidated group. Any difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in *Additional paid-in capital’.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue can be measured reliably. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or an agent. The following
specific revenue recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized;

Real estate sales

Revenue from sales of completed real estate projects is accounted for using the full accrual method.
In accordance with Philippine Interpretations Committee, Q&A 2006-01, the percentage of
completion method is used to recognize income from real estate sales when the Group has material
obligations under the sales contract to complete the project after the property is sold, the equitable
interest has been transferred to the buyer, construction is beyond preliminary stage, and the costs
incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. Under this method, revenue is recognized as the
related obligations are fulfilled, measured principally on the basis of the actual costs incurred to date
over the estimated total costs of the project.

If any of the criteria under the percentage of completion is not met, the deposit method is applied

until all the conditions for recording a sale are met, Pending recognition of sale, cash received from
buyers are presented under the “Customers’ deposits and advances” account which is shown as part
of the “Trade and other payables™ account in the liabilities section of the consolidated balance sheet.

For income tax purposes, full recognition is applied when more than 25% of the selling price has been
collected in the year of sale. Otherwise, the Installment method is applied.

Mining related services

Mining related services represents earnings from the operation of the Group’s hauling services and
equipment rental. Mining related services and equipment rental are recognized when the related
hauling services has been rendered.

Service income
Service income is recognized when services have been rendered.

Income from forfeited deposits

Deposits for reservation fee are generally non-refundable and forfeited upon cancellation of sale of
condominium units or those under reservation. The amount of deposits is recognized as income
when the contracts to sell (CTS) or reservation agreement between the buyer and the Group are
terminated. This is recognized by the Group as part of “Other income™ account in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,

Penalty
Penalty pertains to income from surcharges for buyers’ default and late payments. Income is
recognized when buyers have defaulted in paying their dues and the collectability is reasonably

assessed. This is recognized by the Group as part of “Other income” account in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. ‘
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Interest income
Interest is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method.

Costs and Expenses

Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or occurrences of liabilities that result decreases in equity, other than those relating to
distributions to equity participants. Costs and expenses are generally recognized when good or
services are used or the expense arises while interest expenses are accrued in the appropriate financial
reporting period.

Cost of real estate sales

Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applied. Cost of
subdivision lots and housing units and condominium units sold before the completion of the
development is determined on the basis of the acquisition cost of the land and its full development
costs, which include estimated costs for future development works, as determined by the Group’s in-
house technical team.

The cost of inventory recognized in profit or loss on sale is determined with reference to the specific
costs incurred on the property, allocated to saleable area based on relative size and takes into account
the percentage of completion used for revenue recognition purposes.

Costs of services
Costs of services are incurred in the normal course of business and are recognized when services are
delivered.

General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are expenses that are incurred in the course of the ordinary
operations of the Group. General and administrative expenses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when decrease in future economic benefit related to a decrease in
an asset or an increase in a Hability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Commission expense .

The Group recognizes commission expense when services are rendered by the broker and agent. The
commission expense is recognized upon receipt of down payment from the buyer comprising a
substantial portion of the contract price and the capacity to pay and credit worthiness of buyers have
been reasonably established for sales under the deferred cash payment arrangement. This is
recognized by the Group as part of “General and administrative” account in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Other income (charges)

Other income (charges) includes interest income on contract receivables, other income and expenses
which are incidental to the Group’s business operations and are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Pension liability

Defined Benefit Obligation

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present vaiue of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the

present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.
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The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the

_projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e Service cost

e Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
* Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. :

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Taxes !

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax :

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences with certain exceptions.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of MCIT and unexpired NOLCO can be utilized.

Defetred tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss,
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Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on nontaxable temporary differences associated with
investments in domestic subsidiaries, associates and interests in jointly controlled entities. With
respect to investments in foreign subsidiaries, associates and interests in jointly controlled entities,
deferred tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow al} or part
of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income
will allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be recovered. The Group does not recognize
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that will reverse during the income tax holiday (ITH).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted as of the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Value-Added Tax (VAT) S
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized; net of the amount of VAT except:

* where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

* where receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

Output VAT is presented net of input VAT and the resulting payable is included as part of “Trade and
other payables” accounts to be remitted to applicable taxation authorities. When the resulting
outcome is net input VAT, it is included as part of “Other current assets™ account, which can be
recovered as tax credit against future tax liability of the Group.

Deferred input VAT represents input VAT on purchase of capital goods exceeding one (1) million
pesos. The related input VAT is recognized over five (5) years or the useful life of the capital goods
whichever is shorter. Input VAT is stated at its estimated realizable value,

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets,
even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangements,

The Group as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially ali the risks and benefits of the ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The Group as lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Sale and Leaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset and the leasing back of the same asset.
The lease payment and the sale price are usually interdependent because they are negotiated as a
package. The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction depends upon the type of lease
involved or whether it includes a repurchase agreement or option,

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the
carrying amount should not be recognized immediately as income by the seller-lessee. Instead, the
excess is deferred and amortized over the lease term. The asset will be restated to its fair value

(or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower) in exactly the same way as any other
asset acquired under a finance lease.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction is
established at fair value, any profit or loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income by the seller-lessee. If the sale price is below fair value, any profit or loss is
recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless the loss is
compensated by future lease payments at below market price, in which case it should be deferred and
amortized in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to be
used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value should be deferred and amortized
over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

If a sale and leaseback transaction includes a repurchase agreement or a repurchase option whose
exercise is almost certain, the seller-Iessee should consider whether the arrangement conveys a right
of use. If it is determined that the arrangement does not convey a right of use, the transaction is
outside the scope of PAS 17, thus, the sale and leaseback accounting should not be applied and the
transaction should be accounted as a financing arrangement,

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to common stockholders by
the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, adjusted for
any subsequent stock dividends declared.

EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the consolidated net income attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

_during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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Segment Reporting

The Group’s operating businesses arc organized and managed separately according to the nature of
the services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
services and serves different markets. Financial information on business segments is presented in
Note 31

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries’ functional and presentation currency. Each entity within the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured
using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. All differences are taken to consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the period of retranslation.

Provisiong

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The Group’s estimate of the probable cost is developed in consultation with its legal counsels and is
based upon an analysis of potential results. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement,
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Contingencies .
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed

unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) comprise items of income and expense that are not recognized in
the profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year in accordance
with PFRS.

Events aﬁer the Reporting Period

Post year-end events up to the date the consolidated financia] statements are authorized for issue that
provide additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when material,
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Group
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events
may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects
of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as
they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following

Jjudgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Among the significant accounting
judgments made by the Group are as follows:

Determination of the Functional Currency

The Parent Company and most of its local subsidiaries based on the relevant economic substance of
the underlying circumstances, have determined their functional currency to be the Philippine peso. It
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company and most of its
local subsidiaries primarily operates.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group exercises judgment in classifying financial instruments in accordance with PAS 39. The
Group classifies a financial instrument, or its components, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument, The
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the Group’s
consolidated statements of financial position.

Operating leases - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into operating leases on its heavy equipment. These leases do not provide for
an option to purchase or transfer ownership of the property at the end of the lease and the related
lease terms do not approximate the EUL of the assets being leased. The Group has determined that it
retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Operating leases - Group as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Fixed lease payments are recognized on a straight-line basis while the
variable rent is recognized as an expense based on the terms of the lease contract.

Sales and leaseback with repurchase option

In 2017 and 2016, the Group has entered into a sale and leaseback with repurchase option agreement
for its heavy equipment and transportation equipment. The Group is certain to exercise the repurchase
option and the sale and leaseback agreement is treated as a financing arrangement. Obligations under
finance lease for the sale and leaseback transaction amounted to #34.75 million and £57.09 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The net book values of heavy equipment and
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transportation equipment in sale and leaseback transaction amounted to £13.63 million and
£7.34 million as at December 31, 2017 (see Note 19).

Classification of assets held for sale

The Group classifies a subsidiary or investment as disposal group or asset held for sale if it meets the
following:

* The entity or investment is available for immediate sale and can be sold in its current condition;
* Anactive program to locate a buyer and complete the plan sale has been initiated; and
¢  The entity or investment is to be genuinely sold, not abandoned.

In July 2015, the BOD approved the decision to dispose PHA s interest in First Ardent Development
Corporation (FADC), therefore, classified it as assets held for sale. In March 201 6, the Group sold its
investment in equity shares, amounting to B34.74 million for a total consideration of 45.00 million
(see Note 8).

Revenue and cost recognition on real estate sales
The Group’s revenue recognition and cost policies require management to make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and costs. The Group’s revenue from

real estate is recognized based on the proportion of cost incurred to date over total estimated cost of
the real estate project.

The assessment process for the POC and the estimated project development costs requires technical
determination by management’s specialists (project engineers). In addition, the Group requires a
certain percentage of buyer’s payments of total selling price (buyer’s equity), to be collected as one of
the criteria in order to initiate revenue recognition. Reaching this level of collection is an indication
of buyet’s continuing commitment and the probability that economic benefits will flow to the Group.

Distinction between real estate held for sale, land and land development, investment property, and
property and equipment '

The Group determines whether a property will be classified as real estate held for sale, or land and
land development, investment property, and property and equipment. In making this judgment, the
Group considers whether the property will be sold in the normal operating cycle (real estate held for
sale), or used in business for use in the supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes
(property and equipment) or whether it will be retained as part of the Group’s strategic land banking
activities for development or sale in the medium or long-term (land and land development), or for
whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of other assets and is held primarily
for capital appreciation (investment property). The aggregate carrying values of real estate held for
sale, land and land development, investment properties and property and equipment amounted to
£1,734.16 million and £1,639.60 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively

(see Notes 6, 12, and 13).

In 2017, the Group changed its intention over the use of its property in Falawan, from property held
for capital appreciation to a property to be developed and sold in the future, As a result of the change
of intention, the Group reclassified the carrying value of the land amounting to 399.95 million from
investment property to land and land development (see Note 6).

The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment,

Determining control over subsidiaries and significant influence over associates
The Group determined that it has control over its subsidiaries as the Group has the power to direct
their relevant activities.
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The Group also determined that it has significant influence over its associates. Management assessed
that it has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investes, but
does not have control or joint control over those policies. Accordingly, FADC is considered an
associate in 2015.

Property acquisition and business combination

The Group acquires subsidiaries which own real estate properties. At the time of acquisition, the
Group considers whether the acquisition represents an acquisition of a business or a group of assets
and liabilities. The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination if it acquires an
integrated set of business processes in addition to the real estate properties.

When the acquisition of a subsidiary does not constitute a business, it is accounted for as an
acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities. The purchase price is allocated to the assets and
liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values at the date of acquisition and no goodwill or
deferred tax is recognized.

Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Real estate revenue and cost recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies require management to make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and costs. The Group’s revenue from
real estate is recognized based on the percentage of completion measured principally on the basis of
the estimated completion by reference to the actual costs incurred to date over the estimated total cost
of the project. The estimation of the total cost of the real estate project requires technical inputs by
project development engineers. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, real estate
sales amounted to £479.48 million, P605.42 million and R590.37 million, while cost of real estate
sales amounted to P289.05 million, P380.42 million and B369.92, respectively (see Note 6). .

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group erigaged an independent appraiser to determine the fair value of its investment

properties. In 2016, fair value of investment property was based on the valuation perforrned in

April 2016, respectively. The fair values of investment properties were determined using the Market
Data Approach. Market Data Approach involves the comparison of the land to those that are more or
less located within the vicinity of the appraised property and are subject of recent sales and

offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by considering the location, size,
shape, utility, desirability and time element. '

Fair value changes in 2016 and 2015, which were recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income amounted to P158.94 million and £95.92 million, respectively. Carrying
values of investment properties amounted to nil and £399.95 million as of December 3 1,2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 13),

Estimating allowance for impairment losses on receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level based on the results of the
individual and collective assessment under PAS 39. Under the individual assessment, the Group is
required to obtain the present value of estimated cash flows using the receivable’s original effective
interest rate. Impairment loss is determined as the difference between the receivables’ carrying
balance and the computed present value. The collective assessment would require the Group to group
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its receivables based on the credit risk characteristics (customer type, payment history, past-due status
and term) of the customers. Impairment loss is then determined based on historical loss experience of
the receivables grouped per credit risk profile. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on
which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not exist currently. The methodology and assumptions used for the individual and
collective assessments are based on management’s judgment and estimate. Therefore, the amount
and timing of recorded expense for any period would differ depending on the judgments and
estimates made for the year.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of receivables, net of allowance for
impairment losses, amounted to B1,645.65 million and B1,532.51 million, respectively. The carrying
values of noncurrent portion of installment contract receivables amounted to 220.98 million and
P387.19 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 5),

Determining net realizable value of real estate held for sale and land and land development

The Group’s estimates of net realizable value of real estate held for sale are based on the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estimates are made, or the amount that the real estate held for sale
are expected to be realized. These estimates consider the market conditions and prices existing at the
reporting date determined by the Group in the light of recent market transactions. The Group’s real
estate held for sale and land and land development as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
£1,403.77 million and P846.56 million, respectively (see Note 6),

Estimating net realizable value of inventories

The Group carries inventories at net realizable value when such value is lower than cost due to
damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The carrying -
amounts of inventories carried at cost as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to £13.00 million
and P12.20 million, respectively,

Evaluating impairment of nonfinancial assets (excluding goodwill)

The Group reviews film rights, exclusive distribution right, property and equipment, and investment
properties for impairment of value. This includes considering certain indicators of impairment such
as significant changes in asset usage, significant decline in the assets’ market value, obsolescence or
physical damage of an asset, significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected
future operating results and significant negative industry or economic trends. If such indications are
present and where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In May 2017, due to operational issues, CUBES’ operation was put on hold but is expected to continue
in 2018. As a result of this impairment indicator, management performed an impairment assessment.

As described in the accounting policy, the Group estimates the recoverable amount as the hi gher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value in use. In determining the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make
estimates and assumptions that may affect film rights, exclusive distribution right, property and
equipment, investment properties and investment in associate. o

. No provision for impairment in value was recognized in 2017 and 2016.
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The following table summarizes the carrying values of the assets subject to impairment testing:

: 2017 2016
Film rights (Note 11) £5,006,190 B5,575,220
Exclusive distribution right (Note 11) 120,395,233 135,444,637
Property and equipment (Note 12) 330,386,097 393,090,904
[nvestment properties (Note 13) - 399,952,700

Evaluating impairment of goodwill

The Group is required to annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections covering a five-year period based on long-range plans approved by management.
Estimating the value-in-use require the Company to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Management believes that a five-year cash flow projection would reflect the long
term strategy of the Company for the acquisition of such CGUs.

Management used an appropriate discount rate for cash flows equal to the prevailing rates of return
for a Company having substantially the same risks and characteristics. Current and historical
transactions have been used as indicators of future transactions.

No provision for impairment in value was recognized in 2017 and 2016.

The Group’s disclosures about goodwill is included in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. Management believes that any reasonable change in any of the above key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based on would not cause the carrying value of the goodwill to
materially exceed its recoverable amount.

Pension and other retirement benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans as well as the present value of the pension obligation is
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions.
These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its
long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions,
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the market yields on Philippine government bonds with terms consistent with
the expected employée benefit pay out as at end of the reporting periods. The mortality rate is based
on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is modified accordingly with
estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the Philippines. ‘

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, pension liabilities amounted to 213.18 million and

B19.12 million, respectively. Remeasurement gain in defined benefit obligation recognized in other
comprehensive income amounted to 7.29 million and £3.18 million in 2017 and 201 3, respectively,
while in 2016, the remeasurement loss recognized in other comprehensive income amounted to

B0.20 million. Pension costs reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
continuing operations amounted to 4,67 million, #4.25 million, and £4.94 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively (see Note 22),
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Deferred tax assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its deferred taxes at each reporting date and reduces
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group looks at its projected
performance in assessing the sufficiency of future taxable income. As at December 3 1,2017 and
2016, deferred tax assets recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position amounted to
P21.28 million and B17.20 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, no deferred tax assets were recognized for deductible temporary
differences amounting to 2415.20 million and R382.17 million, respectively (see Note 28).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance
sheets cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows (DCF) model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
Judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk, and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments (see Note 32).

Cash
2017 2016
Cash on hand £1,456,628 £1,224,531
Cash in banks 68,703,841 89,085,003

£70,160,469 £90,309,534

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Total interest income earned from
cash in banks amounted to R0.13 million, #2.08 million, and £0.47 million in 2017, 2016, and 201 5,
respectively.

5. Receivables

: 2017 2016

Contract receivables P1,554,082,015 P1,462,169,936
Trade receivables 42,532,605 44,461,944
Advances to officers and employees (Note 21) 50,388,020 33,261,322
Others 7,980,760 1,945,063
1,654,983,400 1,541,838,265

Less noncurrent portion of contract receivables 220,981,250 387,192,861
1,434,002,150 1,154,645,404

Less allowance for impairment losses 9,329,609 9,323,609

P1,424,672,541 B1,145321,795
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Contract receivables

Contract receivables arise from sale of real estate properties. These receivables are collectible in
monthly instalment over a period of 1 to 10 years and bear annual effective interest rates ranging
from 8.00% to 16.00%. Titles to real estate properties are not transferred to the buyers until full
payment is made. Interest income, income on contracts receivable in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income amounted to £7.03 million, B11.86 million, and #8.26 million in 2017, 2016,
and 2015, respectively. Income on forfeited deposits and penalties on contracts receivable included
in the “other income (charges) - net” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
amounted to £18.88 million, 18.38 million, and 83.20 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The following table presents the breakdown of contracts receivable by maturity dates:

2017 2016
Due within one year P1,333,100,765 £1,074,977,075
Due after one year 220,981,250 387,192,861

$1,554,082,015 PB1,462,169,936

The total contract price from the sale of real estate properties as of December 31,2017 and 2016
amounted to £4,612.30 million and P3,691.62 million, respectively, which will be recognized as
revenue in the future based on the percentage of completion and acerual method used to account for
the Group’s projects.

Contract receivables amounting to B181.11 million and P195.41 million as of December 31,2017 and
2016, respectively were assigned with recourse to Maybank, Malayan Bank, BPI Family Savings
Bank, Inc., Security Bank Savings and other non-bank financing institutions (see Note 18). These
receivables were not derecognized as the Group retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the receivables. '

Trade receivables :
Trade receivables include short-term non-interest bearing receivable arising from hauling services
operations and services related to cold storage facility of the Group.

Advances to officers and employees

Advances to officers and employees represent unsecured, non-interest bearing cash advances for
business-related expenditures that are liquidated thirty (30) days from the date the cash advances are
made.

Movement in the allowance for impairment losses on receivables follows:

2017 2016
Balances at the beginning of the year $9,323,609 £7,298,609
Provision for impairment losses (Note 27) 6,000 2,025,000
Balances at end of the year 19,329,609 £9 323,609
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6. Real Estate Held for Sale and Land and Land Development

2017 2016
Real estate under development $689,105,375 B582,259,392
Subdivided lots held for sale 135,879,806 141,022,197
Real estate held for sale B824,985,181 B723,281,580
Land and land development B578,788,797 £123,275,017

A summary of the movement in real estate held for sale is set out below:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P723,281,589  B673,392,034
Construction development costs incurred 365,643,280 289,410,874
Capitalized borrowing cost (Note 18) 25,113,049 15,901,787
Land transferred from land and land development - 125,000,000
Cost of real estate sales (289,052,737)  (380,423,106)
Balance at end of year _ P824,085,181  B723,281,589

A summary of the movement in land and land development is set out below:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year £123,275,017 271,265,000
Land acquired and development cost 52,834,691 145,027,017
Reclassification from investment property (Note 13) 399,952,700 31,983,000
Capitalized borrowing costs 2,726,389 -
Land costs transferred to real estate held for sale - (125,000,000)
Balance at end of year P578,788,797 P123,275,017

Real estate under development and subdivided lots held for sale include on-going residential projects

of the Group. The estimated cost to complete the projects amounted to #1,116.00 million and
$1,375.55 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In 2017, the Group changed its intention over the use of its property in Palawan, from property held
for capital appreciation to a property to be developed and sold in the future. As a result 6f the change
of intention, the Group reclassified the carrying value of the land amounting to £399.95 million from
investment property to land and land development (see Note 13).

The Group partially finances its project development through availment of loans. Capitalized
borrowing costs to real estate held for sale amounted to P25.11 million and 215.90 million in 2017
and 2016, respectively.

Capitalized borrowing costs to land development amounted to 2.73 million and nil in 2017 and
2016, respectively, at a capitalization rate ranging from 5.00% to 8.00% for 2017 and 2016.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group is committed to pay the outstanding balance of purchased land
payable, which pertains to land acquisitions, amounting to £169.27 million and 252,31 million in
2017 and 2016, respectively. There are no other purchase commitments as of December 31, 2017,

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, certain lots and units with carrying value of 129,00 million and
£163.90 million, respectively are held as collateral for the Group’s bank loans (see Note 18).
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7. Other Current Assets

2017 2016

Advances to suppliers and contractors P271,831,670 162,057,501
Input VAT - net 15,607,831 35,296,821
Tax credits 11,288,880 3,859,149
Prepayments 787,036 2,350,624
 Others 2,481,075 1,931,417

£301,996,492  R205,495,512

Advances to suppliers and contractors

Advances to suppliers and contractors represent down payments for development and construction
contracts. The initial down payments will eventually be recouped or deducted from the amount
payable of the Group either in a pro-rated basis or in full once billed by the suppliers and contractors.

Input VAT

The current portion of input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Group by its suppliers and
contractors for the acquisition of goods and services required under Philippine taxation laws and
regulations, which is expected to be recovered against output VAT, twelve (12) months after the end
of the reporting period. The current portion amounting to 15.61 million and 35.30 million as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is expected to be recovered in 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The remaining balance which are presented under the “Other noncurrent assets’ account
in the consolidated balance sheets amounting to $6.62 million and £29.67 million, as of

December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively, are recoverable in future periods after year 2018 and 2017,
respectively (see Note 14).

Details of input VAT as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 follow:

2017 2016
Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Current (Note 14) (Note 14)
Input VAT ®17,273,815 $8,946,521 $36,946,245 R32,002,103
Less allowance for
impairment losses 1,665,984 2,331,392 1,649,424 2,331,392

P15,607,831 P6,615,129  R35,296,821  P£29,670,711

Movement in the allowance for impairment losses on input VAT follows:

2017 2016
Current Noncurrent . Current Noncurrent
Beginning balances £1,649,424 P2,331,392 B1,649,424 21,669,331
Provision of impairment losses :
_during the year (Note 27) 16,560 - — 662,061
‘ P1,665,984 $2.331,392 R1,649,424 B2,331,392
Tax credits

Tax credits amounting to #11.29 million and #3.86 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, are available for offset against income tax payable in future periods.
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Prepayments

Prepayments include prepaid insurance and rent which will be amortized within three {3) to twelve (12)
months at the end of the financial reporting date.

Asset Classified as Held for Sale

On November 28, 2012, the Group and Ardent Property Development Corporation incorporated
First Ardent Development Corporation (FADC), primarily to engage in real estate development. The
Group owns 25.6 million shares for a total cost of 32.0 million representing 32% ownership interest.

The investment was initially classified and accounted for as “Investments in associates™ in the
Group’s consolidated balance sheets.

In July 2015, the Group’s BOD authorized the sale of the investment in FADC as part of the Group’s
strategy as it focuses on its core businesses geared towards countryside development, As at
December 31, 2015, the.investment in FADC was accounted for under PFRS 5, Non-current Assels
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and the carrying amount of the investment was presented
under “Asset classified as held for sale” in the current asset section in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet due to management’s commitment to sell the investment in the following year, The
Group measures its investment in FADC at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell

as of year-end. As at December 31, 2015, the carrying amount of investment in FADC amounted to
P34.74 million.

Prior to the reclassification of the investment in FADC as asset held for sale in 2015, the share in

equity in net earnings of associates recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income related for the investments amounted to ®1.18 million in 2015.

The summarized financial information related to statement of comprehensive income of FADC in
2015 follows: '

2015
Income - B19,164,089
Cost and expenses 13,897,702
Income before income tax ' 5,266,387
Income tax expense 1,578,661
Net income . R3,687,726
Group’s share of income 1,180,072

In March 2016, the Group sold its investment in FADC for a total consideration of £45.00 million
resulting to gain amounting #10.26 million.

AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets are included under “other noncurrent assets” (see Note 14). The fair market
value of these listed shares is based on their bid prices as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. The fair
value of the Group’s AFS financial assets amounted to nil and £0.24 million as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. In 2017 and 2016, unrealized gain from changes in fair value of the quoted
equity securities amounted to nil and £0.04 million, respectively. '
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Movement in the net unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets follows:

2017 2016
Balances at beginning of year (#334,699) (R377,699)
Fair value changes during the period - 43,000
Disposal 334,699 —
P- (R334,699)

10. Business Combination

Acquisition of GLCI

In June 2015, the Group acquired 556,000 shares of GLCI representing 55% ownership interest for a
total consideration of #275.0 million or R500 per share. GLCI is a real estate developer based in
Baguio City and develops innovative master planned communities of low to mid-rise residential and
commercial condominiums including student dormitories. '

The transaction was accounted for as a business combination using acquisition method. The Group

elected to measure non-controlling interest at the proportionate share of non-controlling interest in the
identifiable net assets of GLCI.

As permitted under the standards, the Gi'oup finalized its purchase price allocation of GLCI to
consider additional information in 2016. The final purchase price allocation was retroactively

adjusted in the 2016 financial statements. The effects of the retrospective adjustment is detailed
below:

Increase in real estate held for sale by B171.19 million;
Decrease in land and land development by 29.38 million;
Increase in net deferred tax liabilities of B43.62 million;
Increase in NCI by B46.97 million; and

Decrease in retained earnings by £11.49 million.

The above adjustments resulted in the net decrease in goodwill by 862.27 million. Accordingly, the
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2015 have been restated to reflect the results of the final purchase price allacation.

The Group sought and independent valuation for the land and land development owned by GLCI
which was done by an independent appraiser accredited by the SEC. The Group also prepared an
internal valuation of the acquired real estate held for sale. The fair value of the land and land
development was based on sales comparison approach while the fair value of the rea) estate held for
sale was based on discounted free cash flow of the GLCL. The significant assumption for the fair
value of land and land development pertains to the sales price per square meter while the significant

assumption for the real estate held for sale pertains to the discount rate used and the projected cash
flow of GLCI.
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The final allocation of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GLCI as of acquisition date are as
follows:

Assets
Cash P15,523,964
Receivables , 1,133,799,114
Real estate held for sale 578,919,947
Land and land development 71,265,000
Property and equipment 5,500,136
Other assets 21,183,047
Total assets 1,826,191,208
Liabilities
Accounts and other payables 231,092,090
Loans payable 783,053,052
Customer’s advances and deposits 120,895,756
Deferred tax liabilities - net 141,000,089
QOther liabilities 61,469,261
Total liabilities 1,337,510,248
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 488,680,960
Non-controlling interest (45% of net assets) (219,906,432)
Goodwill arising on the acquisition 6,225,472
Purchase consideration transferred ' B275,000,000

The goodwill arising from acquisition consists largely of the synergies expected from having GLCI
within the Group. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of GLCI is allocated entirely to the
operations of GLCIL. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, GLCI contributed R590.37 million of revenue and 121.91 million to
profit before tax of the Group. Had the acquisition of GLCI accounted at the beginning of the year,

the Group’s revenue and net income for the year ended December 31, 2015 would have increased by
$146.62 million and £6.61 million, respectively.

Cash flow on acquisition follows:

Cash consideration transferred on the acquisition B275,000,000
Less cash acquired from business combination 15,523,964
Net cash outflows on acquisitions £259,476,036

Acquisition of CUBES
In October 2014, the Group signed a MOA with CUBES and LIMC for the acquisition of up to 51.0%

ownership interest with CUBES. CUBES is engaged in the business of providing refrigeration to
established cold storage facilities through a patented Thermo Chiller system developed in the
United States.

In November 2014, the Group initially subscribed 5.20 million shares in CUBES representing 25.5%
ownership interest for a total consideration of B40.0 million. The transaction was accounted for
under PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and the Group measured the investment
in CUBES using equity method. Subsequently, in February 2015, the Group acquired additional
5.20 million shares in CUBES for a total consideration of 40.0 million increasing its ownership
interest to 51.0%. In 2015, the transaction was accounted for as acquisition achieved in stages under
PERS 3, Business Combinations, The Group elected to measure non-controlling interest at the
proportionate share of non-controlling interest in the identifiable net assets of CUBES.

: T
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As permitted under the standards, the Group finalized its purchase price allocation of CUBES to
consider additional information in 2016. The final purchase price allocation was retroactively
adjusted in the 2016 consolidated financial statements.

The effect of the retrospective adjustment increased the value of the intangible asset - exclusive
distribution right by £34.92 million and deferred tax liability by £45.15 million and a decrease in NCI
by B5.01 million. The adjustment resulted in the net increase in goodwill by B2.61 million.
Accordingly, the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2015 have been restated to reflect the results of the final purchase price
allocation. Remeasurement loss of previously held interest amounted to B2.61 million in 2015.

The final allocation of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CUBES as of acquisition date are as
follows: '

Assets
Cash 20,231,375
Receivables : 25,000
Amounts owed by a related party 1,187,500
Property and equipment 20,882,757
Intangible asset - exclusive distribution right 150,494,041
Other assets . 198,372
Total assets 193,019,045
Liabilities . _ I
Accounts and other payables (1,232,074)
Deferred tax liability {45,148,212)
Total ligbilities (46,380,286)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 146,638,759
Non-controlling interest (49% of net assets) (71,852,992)
Goodwill arising on acquisition 2,607,117
Consideration transferred (including fair value of
the initial investment in November 2014) B77,392,884

The goodwill arising from acquisition consists largely of the synergies expected from having CUBES
within the Group. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of CUBES is allocated entirely to the
operations of CUBES. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The analysis of cash flows on acquisitions follows:

Cash consideration transferred on the acquisition 240,000,000
Less cash acquired from business combination 20,231,375
Net cash outflows on acquisitions 219,768,625

IR
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11. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

2017
Exclusive
Distribution Film
Right Rights Goodwill Total
Cost: :
Balances at beginning of year £150,494,041 P£89,667,576 P556,123,930 B766,285,547
Disposal - (26,096) - {26,096}
Balance at the end of the year 150,494,041 59,641,480 556,123,930 766,259,451
Accumulated Amortization and
Impairment Losses:
Balances at beginning of the year 15,049,404 54,092,356 537,815,010 606,956,770
Amortization (Note 25) 15,049,404 - - 15,049,404
Impairment losses (Note 27) - 556,243 - 556,243
Recovery - {13,309) - (13,.309)
Balances at end of year 30,098,808 54,635,290 537,815,010 622,549,108
Net Book Values’ B120,395,233 #5,006,190 P18,308,920 P143,710,343
2016
Exclusive
Distribution Film

: Right Rights Goodwill Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of year £150,494,041 59,667,576 R556,123,930 B766,285,547
Accumulated Amortization and

Impairment Losses:

Balances at beginning of the year - 53,295,896 537,815,010 591,110,906
Amortization (Note 25) 15,049,404 - - 15,049,404
Impairment losses (Note 27) — 796,460 - 796,460
Balances at end of year 15,049,404 54,092,356 537,815,010 606,956,770
Net Book Values PB135,444,637 £5,575,220 18,308,920 $159,328,777

Goodwill and exclusive distribution rights
The Group’s goodwill pertains to: (a) the acquisition of RCDC in April 2012 amounting to

£9.48 million, (b) the acquisition of additional interest in CUBES in February 2015 amounting to
P2.61 million, net of impairment loss, and (c¢) the acquisition of GLCI in June 2015 amounting to
P6.23 million. The exclusive distribution right asset relates to CUBES’s exclusive right to distribute
specific types of thermochillers in the Philippines.

The Group’s goodwill and exclusive distribution right attributable to CUBES amounted to

P2.61 million and £120.40 million as of December 31, 2017, Under PFRS, the Group is required to
annually test the amount of goodwill and the exclusive right to distribute if there are indicators of
impairment. CUBES started its commercial operations on November 3, 2015. In May 2017, due to
operational issues, CUBES operation was put on hold but is expected to continue in 2018. The Group
performed its impairment test on its goodwill and exclusive distribution right as of

December 31, 2017, The recoverable amount was determined based on value in use calculations
using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management and BOD
covering a five-year period. The following assumptions were also used in computing value in use:

Growth rate estimates - growth rates were based on experiences and strategies developed for the

various subsidiaries. The prospect for the industry was also considered in estimating the growth rate
0f 4.00% in 2017 and 2016. . '
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Discount rates - discount rates were estimated based on the industry weighted average cost of capital,

which includes the cost of equity and debt after considering the gearing ratio. Discount rates used in
2017 and 2016 ranged from 11.70% to 15.00%.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions - Management believes that no reasonably possible change in
any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying values to materially exceed its
recoverable amounts,

Film rights :
In 2017, the Group sold its film rights to the movie *Minsa’y Isang Gamu-Gamo” to ABS-CBN for a

total consideration of 0.43 million which resulted to a recovery of periodically recognized
impairment loss of 13,309,

In 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Group recognized impairment loss on film rights amounting to

£0.56 million, 0.80 million, and B0.8C million, respectively (see Note 27). The Group used the
income approach— discounted cash flow method in the valuation of its film rights. This method
assumes that the going rate per film of 20.75 million declines by 10.00% per year as observed in the
price rends from 1998 up to the current year.
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12. Property and Equipment - net

2017
Office Space
Building and Furniture Office
Office Space Heavy Leaschold and Transportation and Other Construction in
Improvementy Equipment  Improvements Fixstures Equipment Equipment progress Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of year 820384323  R451271,429 7,435,472 2,694,529 P58,448,028 £61,084,803 £696,221 R602,014,805
Additions - 1,100,000 233,467 499,313 4,853,679 824,162 - 7,510,621
Disposal - - © (301,588) - - (2,858,658) - (3,160,246)
Reclassification - - (368,552} 368,552 - uad h s
Balances at end of year 20,384,323 452,371,429 6,998,799 3,562,394 63,301,707 59,050,307 696,221 606,365,180
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 5,929,331 156,249,094 2,959,939 1,810,404 - 25,348,338 16,626,795 - 208,923,901
Depreciation and amortization for the year
(Notes 24 and 25) 2,677,246 47,177,579 1,083,765 410,594 10,937,747 7,775,500 - 70,062,431
Disposal - - {113,695) (99,056) = (2,794,498) - (3,007,249)
Balances at end of year 8,606,577 203,426,673 3,930,009 2,121,942 36,286,085 21,607,797 - 275,979,083
Net Book Values P11,771,746  #248944,756 *#3,068,790 £1,440,451 B27,015,622 137,442,510 696,221  ¥330,386,097
2016
Office Space
Building and Furniture Office o
Office Space Heavy Leaschold and  Transportation and Other  Construction in al
Improvements Equipment _ Improvements Fixtures Equipment Equipment progress_ To
Cost:
inni 4 #7,986,568 654,081 £092,941,917 P52,891,913 B £594,700,231
ﬁm‘?ﬁf beginning of year ¥20'384’323 RAITSAL 23 27:285 i 40,448 5851111 8,192,890 696,221 14,808,455
Disposal - - (578,881) - (425,000) - - (1,003,881)
Reclassification - 33,430,000 - — (39,920,000} — - (6,490,000)
Balances at end of year 20,384,323 451,271,429 7,435,472 2,694,529 58,448,028 61,084,803 696,221 602,014,805
Accumulated ciation and Amortization:
Balances a?l::;nning of year 3,240,665 82,657,132 2,903,491 1,042,128 15,958,118 7,849,150 - 113,650,684
Depreciation and amortization for the year _ 97.430,347
{Notes 24 and 25) 2,688,666 75,043,211 935,296 468,309 9,517,220 8,777,645 e
Disposal - - (578,881) - (127,000) - - 1(451’249i
Reclassification — (1,451,249) (299,967) 299,967 - - - (1451, 2
Baiances at end of year 5,929,331 156,245,094 2,959,939 1,810,404 25,348,338 16,626,795 - 208,923,9
Net Book Values R14,454992  P295,022,335 £4,475,533 PBB4,125 £33,099,690 P44,458,008 £696,221 R393,090,904

i
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. The breakdown of consolidated depreciation and amortization of property and equipment follows:

2017 2016 2015

Cost of services (Note 24) P57,522,090 82,334,950 857,203,778
General and administrative :

(Note 25) ] 12,540,341 15,095,397 9,063,030

‘ 170,062,431 $97,430,347 P66,266,808

Net book values of heavy equipment and transportation equipment under finance lease amounted to B
13.63 miilion and £7.34 million, respectively as at December 31, 2017.

The Group’s mortgage loans are collateralized bf the Company’s transportation equipment with a -
carrying amount of ®5.20 million and 25,00 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Group continues to utilize fully depreciated property and equipment with an aggregate
acquisition cost amounting to 24,78 million and ®5.26 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

13.

Investment Properties

In November 2011, the Group applied for foreclosure sale during which it was the highest bidder for
the amount of the promissory note totaling 275.00 million. The certificate of sale was awarded to the
Group on December 26, 2011. The land was classified as investment property and was recognized at
purchase price plus transaction costs totaling to P95.39 million.

In 2017, the Group changed its intention over the use of its property in Palawan, from property held
for capital appreciation to a property to be developed and sold in the future. As a result of the change
of intention, the Group reclassified the carrying value of the land amounting to

B399.95 million from investment property to land and land development (see Note 6).

The following table summarizes movements which have occurred during the current reporting period,
on the carrying amount of the investment property:

2017 2016

Balances at the beginning of year 399,952,700 P272,998.,460
Reclassification to land and land : C

development (Note 6) (399,952,700) (31,983,000)
Change in fair values - 158,937,240
Balances at the end of year £399,952,700

The fair value as of December 31, 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at
these dates by Asian Appraisal Company, Inc. (AACI), an independent valuation specialist not related

to the Group. AACI is an industry specialist in valuing these types of investment properties as
accredited by the Philippine SEC.

* The value of land was arrived at using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the value of the

land was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity, The
technique of this approach requires the adjustments of comparable property by reducing reasonable

‘comparative sales and listing to & common denominator. This was done by adjusting the differences

between the subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable. The
properties used as bases of comparison are situated within the same immediate vicinity of the

property and were premised on the factors of location, size and shape of the lot, time, element and
others.

LT
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14. Other Noncurrent Assets - net

2017 2016
Advances for projects £126,366,554 B
Advances to supplier 50,932,519 50,932,519
Input VAT - net (Note 7) 6,615,129 29,670,711
Receivable from PAGCOR 3,042,702 3,042,702
Security deposits 884,604 274,718
AFS financial assets (Note 9) - 243,000
Others 26,000 26,000

187,867,508 $84,189,650

The Group recognized provision for impairment loss on input VAT amounting to 16,560,
®0.66 million, and P0.21 million which is recorded under “Impairment losses” in the Group

consolidated statements of comprehensive income in 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively
(see Note 27).

Advances for projects

Advances for projects relate to payments made to third parties for mining-related projects that are
being developed and pursued by the Group.

Advances to supplier
Advances to supplier represents down payment for the acquisition of thermochiller, installation cost

and other parts of machinery and equipment. The initial down payment will eventually be recouped

or deducted from the amount payable of the Group either in a pro-rated basis or in full once billed by
the supplier.

Receivable from PAGCOR

In 2011, the Group received a notice of gamishment for the amount of 23.04 million in connection
with a complaint filed against Blue Sky Philko wherein the Group was made as a co-defendant,
Accordingly, the Group’s commission from PhilWeb for the same amount was lodged under the

custody of PAGCOR. As of December 31, 2017, the case is pending before the Quezon City
Regional Trial Court.

Security depbsits

Security deposits pertain to the deposits paid by the Group to certain lessors at the inception of the
lease contracts to be refunded at the end of the lease term (see Note 34).

10
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15. Trade and Other Payables

2017 2016

Trade payables:
Third parties $207,216,692 P186,273,788
Related parties (Note 21) 12,176,252 12,176,252
Advances from third parties 223,343,722 -
Accrued expenses 95,691,972 173,201,744
Customers’ deposits and advances 89,448,737 120,376,386
Retention payable 82,942,492 75,443,403
Customers’ refund - 3,732,141
Others 196,552,492 72,830,520

R907,372,359 2644,034,234

Trade payables - Third parties

Trade payable to third parties relates to construction and development costs payable to contractors
and suppliers. These are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one year after the
reporting date. Also, included in this account are purchased land payables to various real estate
property sellers arising from acquisition of land held for development.

Advances from third parties

Advances from third parties pertain to cash received by the Group to fund real estate and mining
projects which are noninterest bearing and payable on demand.

Accrued expenses
Accrued expenses are comprised of accruals to interest, salaries and benefits, professional fees and

other taxes which are expected to be settled within twelve (12) months from the end of the reporting
period.

Customers’ deposits and advances

Customers’ advances and deposits account represent excess collections from buyers over the related
revenue recognized based on the percentage of completion method and advance payment of
customers subject to refund or future billing applications on its mining activities. This account also
includes customers’ advances representing reservation fees paid to the Group by prospective buyers
which are to be applied as payment upon recognition of revenue.

The Group requires buyers of residential houses and lots and condominjums to pay minimum
percentage of the total selling price before they enter into a sale transaction. Payments from buyers
which have not reached the minimum required percentage of 5.00% are recognized as buyers’
deposits. When the level of required payment is reached by the buyer, sales are recognized and these
deposits and down payments will be applied against the related contracts receivable (see Note 2).

Certain agreements provide real property buyers to pay nonrefundable deposits. Nonrefundable
deposits received amounting to B8.00 million, 2.50 million and nil are recorded as “Other income
(charges) - net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in 2017, 2016, and 2015,
respectively,
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Retention payable ‘

Retention payabl is a percentage of the amount certified as due to the confractor on an interim
certificate, that is deducted from the amount due and retained by the Group from contractors as
insurance for the completion of various projects, which will be released upon completion and
satisfaction of the terms and conditions of the related construction contracts.

. Purchased Land Payable

Purchased land payable pertains to payable to real estate property seller under the terms of agreement
executed by the Group for the purchase of land.

Details of purchased land payable as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Current B148,904,822  P240,372,651
Noncurrent 20,366,614 11,940,180

$169,271,436  $252,312,831

., Short-term Loans

Outstanding
Party Year Principal Balance Terms Conditions
Philippine Business Bank (PBB} 2017 P105350,000 £37,400,600 180 1o 360 days; Unsecured
2016 105,350,000 74,350,000 6.50%t0 6.75%
per annum;
Monthly repricing
of interest rate

Philippine Bank of Communications 2017 -
(PBCom) 2016 27,500,000

360 days; Unsecured
6.30% per annum

Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 2017 - 15,000,000 180to 360 days Unsecured
2016 15,000,000 15,000,000 6.00% per annum;

Monthly repricing
of interest rate
Individuals and corporations 2017 205,700,000 156,700,000 180 to 360 days; Unsecured
2016 129,200,000 . 121,700,000 7.5%to 12.0%
per annum

2017 #311,050,000 ¥£209,160,000
2016 277,050,000 211,050,000

Short-term loans were obtained to finance the working capital requirements of the subsidiaries and
partially finance the acquisition of the Group’s heavy equipment. Total interest expense on
short-term loans amounted to £4.9 million, 15,40 million, and 11.83 million in 2017, 2016, and
2015, respectively.
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18. Loans Payable

This account consists of:

2017 2016

Loans payable - unsecured and secured
by real estate mortgage
- Loans payable - secured by

contract receivable (Note 5)

P793,348,693 631,449,844

181,108,098 195,407,939

Total loans payable

Less noncurrent portion of loans payable

974,456,791 826,857,783
566,755,607 405,585,375

Current portion of loans payable

407,701,184 421,272,408

Loans payable - unsecured and secured by real estate mortgage
Loans payable - unsecured and secured by real estate mortgate represents loans with interest rate at
prevailing market rates ranging from 1.5% to 10.0 % within one to five years. The current and

noncurrent portions of long-term loans payable are as follows:

Outstanding
Party Year Principal Balance Terms Collateral
BPI 2017 $210,000,000 R161,666,667 41to 6 years;  Secured by
2016 357,710,000 197,019,853 5.67%t06.0% arcal estate
per annum; mortgage
Quarterly  and certain
repricing of parcel of
interest rate land
PBB 2017 - - Jto4d years;  Secured by
2016 40,000,000 1,111,1n 8.0%t0 9.0% areal estate
per annum mortgage
on certain
property
BDO Unibank, Inc. (BDO) 2017 4,831.200 3,340,745 S years;  Unsecured
2016 4,831,200 4,771,056 9.95% per annum
Philippine Savings Bank (PSB) 2017 8,277,510 1,486,388 Syears;  Unsecured
2016 6,244,200 - 6.03%1t0 11%
per annum
Maybank Philippines, Inc. (MPI) 2017 - - 5 years;  Secured by
2016 123,089,460 122,872,946 PDST-F+ spread  a real estate
or BSP + spread mortgage
whichever is on certain
higher; parcel of
Monthly repricing land
of interest rate
Malayan Bank (MB) 2017 11,008,000 1,374,803 3 years; Unsecured
2016 11,000,000 6,132,783 10.0% per annum
Union bank (UBP) 2017 80,000,000 79,758,066 5 years;  Secured by
2016 55,000,000 55,000,000 6.0%to 7.0% a real estate
per annum mortgage
on certain
property
(Forward)

G B
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: Outstanding
Party Year Principal Balance Terms  Collateral
Zambank (ZB) 2017 P15,000,000 #15,000,000 4 years; 8.0%  Unsecured
2016 - - per annum
Veterans (PVB) 2017 283,043,159 264,565,366 1 to 5 years; Secured by a
2016 - -  6.29%t0 6.84%  real estate
per annum mortgage
and certain
parcel of land
Other financing institutions 2017 319,012,413 266,156,661 1to2 years;  Unsecured
2016 266,430,000 234,542,095 1.5%to 7.0%
per annum
Total 2017 931,164,282 793,348,693

2016 864,304,860 631,449,844
Less noncurrent portion of loans
payable 2017 =~ 429,245,002
2016 — 247,286,664
Current portion of loans payable 2017  B931,164,282 B364,103,691
2016 864,304,860 384,163,180

Loans payable - secured by contract receivable (Note 5)
The Group entered into loan agreements with different banks and other non-bank financing
institutions to assign with recourse CTS of unit buyers payable in monthly amortization of up to five

years and bears interest rates ranging from 7.30% to 9.00%. The following table presents the
breakdown by maturity dates:

2017 2016
Due within one year P43,597,493 B37,109,228
Due afier one year 137,510,605 158,298,711

#181,108,098 - B195,407,939

Interest expense arising from the loans payable recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income amounted to £67.32 million, £56.97 million, and 12.24 million in 2017,
2016, and 2015, respectively, In 2017, 2016, and 2015, capitalized borrowing cost amounted to
B25.11 million, £15.90 million and #23.55 million, respectively, at a capitalization rate ranging from
5.70% to 9.0% (see Note 6).

The Group’s debt instruments contain restrictive covenants which include, among others,
maintenance of certain level of long-term debt-to-equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio based
on the Group’s financial statements, payment of any dividend or capital distributions to stockholders,

. payment of management bonuses or profit sharing to, or making any loans or advances to the Group’s
directors, officers and stockholders, sale of significant assets and to maintain a current ratio of at least
1.0 and its debt to tangible net worth ratio should not be more than 4.0 times until final payment date.
As of December 31, 2017, the Group was able to meet the required debt covenants.

The schedule of maturities of the loans payable of the Group follows:

2017 2016
Less than one year P407,701,184 P421,272,408
One to two years 140,745,323 129,805,102
More than two years 426,010,284 275,780,273

P974,456,791 P826,857,783

1A
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19.

Obligation under Finance Lease and Installment Payable

Obligation Under Finance Lease

Details of obligation under finance lease follow:

2017 2016
Current 26,121,235 B47,249,409
Noncurrent 8,624,968 9,842,435

P34,746,203 $57,091,844

The Group entered into a sale and leaseback agreement with BPI Century Tokyo Rental Corporation
for its heavy equipment and transportation equipment for the total consideration of

R70.60 million and £7.41 million, respectively. The obligations are payable in equal monthly
installments until January 2020.

Interest expense arising from obligations under finance lease amounted to £3.97 million,
P6.59 million and £9.32 million in 2017, 2016, and 20185, respectively. -

Net book values of heavy equipment and transportation equipment under finance lease amounted to
P13.63 million and #7.34 million, respectively, as at December 31, 2017.

Installment Payable

In 2015, the Group acquired additional heavy equipment and transportation equipment amounting to
$299.80 million. The Group initially paid £59.96 million and the remaining balance to be paid in
equal monthly installments of £10.85 million (principal and interest) for a period of twenty-four (24)
months with an interest rate of 8% per annum.

Installment payable amounted to nil and #27.99 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Interest expense arising from the installment payable amounted to R0.48 million, £5.24 million and
nil in 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.

20.

Convertible Loans

In 2013 and 2012, the Group issued convertible loans to various individuals and corporations
amounting to £79.02 million at a price of 100% of face value, which, at the option of the respective
holders, are convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion price of B0.36 per share. The
convertible loans issued are due 36 months from issuance (or carlier upon certain events of default)
and are subject to 8.0% interest, payable semi-annually from the drawdown date. The Group shall
have the right to redeem any time after one year period, upon prior notice, all or any portion of the
outstanding principal amount of the convertible loans, without penalty, for 100% of the principal
being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. The holders are also granted one (1) nil-paid
detachable warrant for every four (4) notional converted shares (the “Warrants™). The notes also
contain customary events of default provisions wherein the holder shall be entitled to convert all ora
portion of the outstanding loan into fully paid non-assessable shares of the common stock of the
issuer at a price of £0.36 or at the prevailing market price on the conversion date, whichever is lower.

000 30 A
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The notes together. with its features were evaluated to determine if the embedded components qualify
as derivatives to be separately accounted for under PAS 39, Financial Instruments. As result of this
evaluation, the Group identified the detachable warrants and the conversion rights as derivative
financial instruments and to be taken up as equity and the conversion upon default as derivative
liability. Using the residual approach, the proceeds are allocated between the debt instrument,
conversion rights and the detachable warrants and conversion upon default. At inception date the fair
value of the debt instrument, conversion rights with detachable warrants and conversion upon default
amounted to £73.79 million, P4.27 million and nil, respectively.

On March 25, 2014, the Group redeemed the convertible notes payable with principal amount of
P30.96 million before their maturity dates. Loss on early redemption of shares recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income amounted to 0.50 million.

. In 2015, the remaining convertible loans with principal amount of 48.06 million were converted to
133.51 million PHA shares. In addition, 33.38 million warrants were subscribed and issued at
P0.38 per share or B12.68 million (see Note 23).

In 2016 and 2015, the Group issued another convertible notes amounting to £26.0 million and
£408.0 million, respectively, to various individuals and corporations. The convertible notes have a
term of three years, with fixed interest rates ranging from 6.5% to 12.0% per annum, payable on a
quarterly basis and are exchangeable into fully paid and non-assessable listed PHA’s common shares
at a price of P1.00 per share. The notes allow the holder to participate in a planned stock rights offer
(SRO) even while the loan is outstanding, A nil-paid, detachable warrant is also issued to the holder
for every ten (10) notional common shares, excluding the rights shares, regardless of whether or not
the holder subscribes to the stock rights. Each warrant shall entitle the holder to subscribe to one (1)
PHA’s common share. In the event of default, the lender shall be entitled, but not obliged, to convert
all or a portion of the loan into fully paid and non-assessable listed PHA’s common shares. The
terms and conditions of said conversion shall be mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the lender
does not exercise its rights to conversion, the holder may declare the entire loan including the interest,
immediately due and demandable.

In 2017, the Group entered into a B100 million loan agreement with Treasure Island Industrial
Corporation (TIIC), subject to 6.5% interest payable in two (2) years,

The loan proceeds will be used by the Group to finance the development activities of its properties in
Palawan.

The instrument is accompanied by the following options:

a. Up to B50 million of the loan may be converted to new shares of WPP corresponding to 5.0% of
WPP post-conversion effectively at a valuation of £1.0 billion.

b. The £100 million loan amount, in whole or in part, may be convertible to lots in the
Kattinger-Nagtabon property at an agreed upon discount to the opening Joint Venture price and
as soon as the Joint Venture agreement with Kattinger group is signed and agreed on by all
parties concemed.

¢. The 2100 million loan amount, in whole or in part, may be convertible to parcels of the security
lots in North Cove at a price of 1,000 per square meters.

The £100 million loan amount, in whole or in part, may be convertible to parcels of the security lots
in North Cove at a price of 81,000 per sqm.
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The notes together with its features were also evaluated to determine if the embedded components
qualify as derivatives to be separately accounted for under PAS 39. As result of this evaluation, the
Group identified the conversion rights with detachable warrants as derivative financial instruments to
be taken up as equity. Using the residual approach, the proceeds are allocated between the debt
instrument and the conversion rights with detachable warrants. The equity component on the
convertible loan issued in 2017 is not material.

Movement in the convertible loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:

: 2017 2016

Beginning balances P423,409,346 $392,381,437

Additions 100,000,000 26,000,000

Amortization of day 1 difference 1,511,216 5,674,318

Payments (2,000,000) -
~Equity portion - (646,409)

P522,020,562  P423,409,346

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, movement in equity portion of the convertible loans payable,
which is part of APIC, are as follows:

2017 2016
Beginning balances £18,690,094 18,043,685
Additions - : - - 646,409

P18,690,094 P18,690,094

Movement in unamortized ‘Day 1° difference as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:

2017 2016
Beginning balances 210,590,834 P15,618,563
Additions - 646,409
Amortization of day 1 difference (1,511,216) (5,674,138)

®9,079,618  P10,590,834

In 2017, 2016, and 2015, interest expense on the convertible loans, including the amortization of day
1 difference, recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to 19.01
million, B45.58 million and #24.13 million, respectively.

21.

Related Party Transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or
are controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, are related parties of the Group. Associates and individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant
influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the
Group and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with these
individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible related entity relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.
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The Group discloses the nature of the related party relationship and information about the transactions
and outstanding balances necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship on
the consolidated financial statements, including, as a minimum, the amount of outstanding balances
and its terms and conditions including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to
be provided in settlement. The Group has not recognized any impairment losses on amounts due from
related parties for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. This assessment is undertaken cach
financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party and the market in which
the related party operates.

The Group, in the normal course of business, has transactions and account balances with related
parties consisting mainly of the following:

Amount/ Qutstanding

Nature Relationship  Year Volume Balance Terms Counditions
Receivables (Note 5)
Advances Officers 2017 R10,774,607 £30,602,242 Dueand  Unsecured
2016 24,458,228 19,693,829  demandable;
non-interest
bearing
Short-term loans (Note 17)
Short-term loans Officers & 2017 #8,000,000 53,200,000 180 days;  Unsecured
Shareholders 2016 10,700,000 35,200,000 B8.0%to 12.0%
interest rate
Convertible loans (Note 20}
Convertible loans Officers 2017 136,000,000 3years;  Unsecured
2016 10,000,000 136,000,000 8.0%
: interest rate;
Convertible
to PHA shares
Trade and other payables (Note 15)
Management fees Officer 2017 o 5,500,000 Dueand  Unsecured
2016 5,352,292 5,500,000  demandable;
non-interest
bearing
Interest expense Officers 2017 - - Dueand  Unsecured
2016 7,728,460 — demandable
2017 P18,774,607 PR225,302,242
2016 58,238,920 196,393,829

Compensation of Group’s Key Management Personnel

Compensation of the Group’s key management personnel consists of short-term employee benefits
amounting to B37,82 million, £24.50 million, and £12.80 million in 2017, 2016, and 2015,
respectively. There are no post-employment benefits in 2017, 2016, and 2015. There are no
agreements between the Group and any of its directors and key officers providing for benefits upon

termination of employment, except for such benefits to which they may be entitled under the Group’s
retirement plan.

[AUAV TR EI RN



.53

22. Pension Liabilities

The Group has an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit plan covering all regular employees.
Benefits are based on the employee’s years of service and final plan salary.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay
to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other

agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan.

The following tables summarize the unfunded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets and the components of the net benefit expense recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income for the pension plan.

Pension cost recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

2017 2016 2015

Service cost 83,664,403 P3,503,689 P4,256,389
Interest expense on defined benefit

obligation 1,004,528 748,719 682,864

4,668,931 B4.252 408 £4,939,253

Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit obligation to be recognized under OCI in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

2017 2016 2015
Actuarial gains (losses) due to:
Changes in:
Financial assumptions £6,836,928 82,339,162 P496,663
Demographic assumptions 58,677 - 5,487,772
Experience adjustments 3,331,759 (1,773,870) (1,658,289
Remeasurement gains on defined
benefit obligation 10,227,364 565,292 4,326,146
Income tax effect (2,936,079) (761,538) (1,144,931)
R7,291,285 (R196,246) £3,181,215

Remeasurement gains and losses on defined benefit obligation recognized under OCI in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income are shown net of tax amounting o
£2.94 million in 2017, £0.76 million in 2016 and 1,14 million in 2015.
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Cumulative remeasurement effect recognized in OCI included in the ‘retained earnings’ under equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent and equity attributable to non-controlling interests:

2017 2016
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Balances at beginning of year 21,768,620 12,192,423
Actuarial gain 5,685,528 71,082
7,454,148 2,263,505
Income tax effect (1,599,954) (494,885)
Balances at end of year 5,854,194 1,768,620
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests
Balances at beginning of year 1,348,226 1,120,669
Actuarial gain 4,541,836 494,210
5,890,062 1,614,879
Income tax effect (1,336,125) (266,653)
Balances at end of year 4,553,937 1,348,226
Total amount recognized in OCI £10,408,131 £3,116,846

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2017 2016
~ 'Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year P19,124,656 P15,437,540
Service cost . 3,664,403 3,503,689
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 1,004,528 748,719
Actuarial losses (gains) due to:
Experience adjustments (3,714,665) 1,773,870
Changes in demographic assumptions (58,677) -
Changes in financial assumptions {6,836,928) (2,339,162}
Defined benefit obligation at end of year #13,183,317 819,124,656

The cost of defined benefit pension plans as well as the present value of the pension liabilities is
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions,

The principal assumptions used to determine pension for the Group are as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increase rate
Entity Name 2017 2016 2017 2016
PHA 5.77% 5.86% 5.0% 5.0%
RCDC - 583% 4.92% 10.0% 10.0%
GLCI 5.73% 6.00% 5.0% 10.0%
CUBES - 5.86% - 5.0%
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably po§sible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on the retirement benefit obligation

Increase (Decrease) PHA RCDC GLCI

Discount rate +100bps (R104,416) (21,180,284) P3,995,988
-100bps 133,905 1,510,911 (5,263,488)

Salary increase +100bps 125,223 1,349,050 5,285,765
-100bps (99.771) 1,088,273 (3,968,894)

The Group does not have a formal retirement plan and is therefore still unfunded.

Shown below is the maturity profile of the undiscounted benefit payments:

Expected
benefits
payments
Less than one year P1,403,798
More than one year to five years 2,322,051
Mare than five years to 10 years 7,598,147
More than 10 years to 15 years 2,575,957
More than 15 years to 20 years 8,871,174
More than 20 years 26,924,095
23. Equity
Capital Stock _
The details of the number of common shares and the movements thereon follow;

2017 2016 2015
Authorized — B0.25 par value 2,254,224,000 2,254,224,000 2,254,224,000

Issued and fully paid

Balances at beginning of

the year 1,815,480,889 1,815,480,889 1,648,592,000
Additional subscriptions — - 166,888,889
1,815,480,889 1,815,480,889 1,815,480,889
Subscribed 175,000,000 175,000,000 175,000,000
Treasury stock 225,268,793 270,268,793 266,094,793
Outstanding shares 1,765,212,016 1,720,212,096 1,724,386,096

In 2015, convertible loans with principal amount of 48.06 million were converted to

133.51 million PHA shares at 20.36 per share. In addition, 33.38 million warrants were subscribed
and issued at 0.38 per share or R12.68 million (sec Note 20). Additional paid-in capital recognized
from the transactions amounted to £19.03 million. '

Treasury stock pertains to Parent Company shares held by DSI,

i
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Subscription Receivable

Subscription receivable pertains to the unpaid portion of the 175.0 million shares subscribed at
£0.30 per share amounting to 44,63 million. In 2017, the Group collected $1.60 million of the
subscriptions receivable. As at December 31,2017 and 2016, subscription receivable amounted to
P24.91 million and B26.51 million, respectively.

Additional Paid-in Capital (APIC)

Additional paid-in capital includes the equity component of the issued convertible loans amounting to
B18.69 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, The liability component is reflected as financial
liabilities.

Retained Earnings (Deficit)

For purposes of dividend declaration, the retained earnings shall be that of the legal parent presented
in the separate financial statements. After considering the reconciling items, the Parent Company has
no available retained eamings for dividend declaration items as of

December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The details of the Group’s retained earnings are as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Retained earnings:
Balances at beginning of year £180,338,549 £145,004,082 P102,235,980
Net income for the year 31,675,928 35,334,467 42,768,102
212,014,477 180,338,549 145,004,082
Cumulative remeasurement gain on
~ defined benefit plan:
Balances at beginning of year 1,768,620 2,192,423 379,597
Remeasurement gain (loss)
during the year 4,085,574 (423,803) 1,812,826
5,854,194 1,768,620 2,192,423

Equity reserves: ‘
Balances at beginning of year (31,149,252) (31,149,252) (34,929,209
Movement during the year — — 3,779,957
‘ (31,149,252) (31,149,252) (31,149,252)
$186,719,419 P150,957917 B116,047,253

Equity Reserves

In December 2013, PHA obtained the BOD’s approval to sell its 15% interest or 24.38 million shares
in DSI for a consideration of 22,25 per share or B54.84 million. After the sale, PHA will retain 85%
ownership with DSL. The transaction represents a change in ownership interest in a subsidiary that
does not result in a loss of control. The Group recognized P8.95 million

“Equity Reserve™ arising from the excess of the consideration received over the proportionate share
of non-controlling interest on the net assets value of DSI.

Additional 1.0 million shares were sold to non-controlling interests in January 2015 for a total
consideration of P2.25 million or B2.25 per share, resulting to 15.62% non-controlling interest as of
the end of January 2014.

In December 2014, the Parent Company has acquired 25.38 million common shares of DSI from
various individual investors for a total consideration of B92.46 million or B3.64 per share. The
acquisition of shares represents the remaining 15.62% interest in DSI. As a result of the acquisition,
the Parent Company now holds 100% interest in DSI. The Group recognized “Equity Reserve” from
the acquisition amounting to #43.88 million in the 2014 which is closed. in the retained earnings
under consolidated statements of changes in equity. '
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In February 2015, the Parent Company acquired 5.24 million shares equivalent or 13.1%
non-controlling interest in RCDC for a total consideration of B5.24 million or B1.0 per share,
increasing its ownership interest to 80.0%. The Group recognized “Equity Reserve” from the
acquisition amounting to #3.78 million in the 2015 which is closed in the retained carnings under
consolidated statements of changes in equity. The equity reserve is excluded for purposes of dividend
declaration.

Non-controlling Interest
Non-controlling interest consists of the following:

Name of Percentage of Ownership Equity Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest
Subsidiary 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
RCDC 80.0% 80.0% 80.0% £17,049979 26,262,403 23,976,921
GLCI 55.0% 55.0% 55.0% 313,986,999 299,225,485 251,133,179
CUBES 51.0% 51.0% 51.0% 69,293,869 74,149,677 85,273,501
410,330,847 1399,637,565 B360,383,601

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest follows:

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to

Name of Percentage of Ownership Non-Controlling Interest

Subsidiary 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

RCDC 80.0% 80.0% 80.0% P699,489 P2,680.,114 P2,502,716

GLCI 55.0% 550% 55.0% 11,643,890 20,556,133 32,492,842

CURES 51.0% 51.0% 51.0% {4,855,808) ~ (11,209,842) (6,179,490)
#7,487.571 £12,026,407 #28.816,068

The summarized financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This information is

based on amounts before intercompany eliminations,

Summarized statement of income for 2017:

GLCI RCDC CUBES
Revenues P479,475,389 B247,142,428 21,648,726
Cost and expenses (399,639,209) (233,409,787) (11,741,123)
Other income (charges). (41,125,191) (8,004,309) . 182,585
Income (loss) before income tax 38,710,989 5,728,332 (9,909,812)
Provision for income tax (12,835,679) (2,230,885) -
Net income (loss) $25,875,310 £3,497,447 (B9,909,812)
Attributable to non-controlling interest P11,643,890 £699,489 (B4,855,808)

Summarized statement of income for 2016:

GLCI RCDC CUBES
Revenues P605,423,264 B297,833,328 B7,882,924
Cost and expenses (496,635,218) (265,459,750) (26,361,736)
Other charges (40,402,489) (12,793,580) (4,398,350)
Income (loss) before income tax 68,385,557 19,579,998 (22,877,162)
Provision for income tax (22,705,258) {6,179,423) 67)
Net income (loss) P45,680,299 £13,400,575 (P22,877,229)
Attributable to non-controlling interest 820,556,134 P2,680,115
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GLCI RCDC CUBES
Revenues ©590,369,661 P289,714,919 12,025,000
Cost and expenses (449,944,889) (251,592,495) (14,510,743)
Other charges (18,513,384) (18,849,620) (125,462)
Income (loss) before income tax 121,910,888 19,272,804 (12,611,205)
Provision for income tax (49,704,572) (6,759,223) =
Net income (loss) £72,206,316 P12,513,581 {£12,611,205)
Attributable to non-controlling interest B32 492,842 2,502,716 (86,179,490)
Summarized balance sheet as of December 31, 2017:
GLCI RCDC CUBES
Current assets P£2,458,092,154 P87,526,905 84,012,100
Noncurrent assets 89,796,711 266,943,424 84,249,565
Current liabilities (636,754,619) (207,809,145) (52,116,132)
Noncurrent liabilities (1,196,170,134) (11,402,518) (75,302)
Equity P714,964,112 P135,258,666 236,070,231
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent $393,230,264 BI108,206,934 B18,395818
Non-controlling interest 321,733,852 27,051,733 17,674413
Summarized balance sheet as of December 31, 2016:
GLCI RCDC CUBES
Current assets £2,349,889,311 P69,015,319 PB5,316,108
Noncurrent assets 43,854,292 323,146,916 194,519,819
Current liabilities (623,541,648) (247,009,345) (48,051,847)
Noncurrent liabilities (1,037,069,281) (13,840,880) (382,973)
Equity P733,132,674 P131,312,010 P151,401,107
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent P403,222,971 P105,049,608 P77.214,565
Non-controlling interest 329,909,703 26,262,402 74,186,542
Summarized cash flow information for year ended December 31, 2017:
GLCI RCDC CUBES
Operating (B118,655,764) $43,506,076 (P4,192,218)
Investing (25,600,303) (1,553,591) 667,075
Financing 123,290,784 (54,036,116) 3,193,389
. Net decrease in cash (P20,965,283) (B12,083,631) #331,754)
Summarized cash flow information for year ended December 31, 2016:

. GLCI RCDC CUBES
Operaﬁng (834,138,016) B105,650,367  (P13,465,237)
Ir!vestlpg (27,591,120) 36,455 (16,559,999)
Financing {3,679,065) (93,898,516) 28,324,032
Net increase (decrease) in cash (B65,408,201) PB11,788,306 #1,701,204)
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Summarized cash flow information for year ended December 31, 2015:

| GLCI RCDC CUBES
Operating (F288.995282)  F110,896210  (P13,251,124)
Investing (52,284473)  (336,337,542)  (55,909,795)
Financing 442,871,435 217,644,936 50,998,371

Net increase (decrease) in cash $101,591,680

(B7,796,396)  (P18,162,548)

Parent Company Shares held by a Subsidiary

On August 26, 2014, the BOD approved the buyback of shares of the Parent Company through its

owned subsidiary DSL. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, DSI holds 225.21 million and

270.27 million shares, respectively. Average price per share amounted to £0.36 and £0.57 in 2017

and 2016, respectively.

24. Cost of Services

2017 2016 2015
Depreciation (Note 12) B57,522,090 P82,334,950 P57,203,778
Personnel cost (Note 26) 57,001,556 59,441,126 61,944,368
Fuel and oil 37,741,425 50,649,259 45,260,793
Repairs and maintenance 36,592,410 31,272,594 29,826,858
Taxes and licenses 5,767,134 6,154,570 6,100,051
Transportation and travel 4,800,460 9,737,480 7,687,912
Professional and legal fees 4,495,812 6,788,622 6,596,843
Rentals and utilities 3,833,612 7,406,431 1,657,168

Entertainment, amusement and
recreation 2,466,531 2,826,623 5,068,446
Others 11,105,587 3,271,526 1,870,233
$221,326,617 P259 883,181 P223,216,450

25. General and Administrative Expenses

2017 2016 2015
Personnel cost (Note 26) P51,639,486 B53,292,455 $£39,900,268

Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 11 and 12) 27,589,745 30,144,801 9,063,030
Commissions 27,243,712 37,497,159 27,883,560
Professional and legal fees 20,659,587 36,495,095 46,199,913
Taxes and licenses 10,981,779 6,232,547 14,867,263
Rentals and utilities 8,450,182 11,908,156 8,808,320
Qutside services 2,102,599 3,252,862 -
Supplies and materials 2,057,497 667,275 650,673
Advertising and promotions 1,771,241 4,772,769 313,920
Transportation and travel 1,715,252 5,128,378 4,050,516
Freight and handling 1,690,479 877,757 -

Entertainment, amusement and
recreation 596,147 3,847,132 6,491,910
Repairs and maintenance 500,767 2,090,905 1,169,504
Others 21,695,901 13,410,083 15,970,546
P178,694,344 £209,617,384 P175,369,423
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26. Personnel Costs
2017 2016 2015
Cost of services:
Salaries and wages R39,527,934 £41,200,296 P46,812,492
Pension expense (Note 22) 1,462,850 903,426 475,389
Other employee benefits 16,010,772 17,337,404 14,656,487
57,001,556 59,441,126 61,944,368
General and administrative expenses:
Salaries and wages 44,102,462 41,303,500 28,404,509
Pension expense (Note 22) 3,206,081 3,348,982 4,463,864
Other employee benefits 4,330,943 8,639,973 7,031,895
51,639,486 53,292,455 39,900,268
P108,641,042 P112,733,581 B101,844,636
27. Impairment Losses
2017 2016 2015
Receivables (Note 5) £6,000 B2,025,000 5,897,048
Input VAT (Note 7 and 14} 16,560 662,061 209,736
Film rights (Note 11) 556,243 796,460 796,460
P578,803 P3,483,52] £6,903,244
28. Income Taxes

The provision for income tax from continuing operations shown in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income consists of:

2017 2016 2015

Current B5,257,160 P12,362,638 18,083,981
Final 27,000,000 2,732,390 45,343
Deferred (94,142,944) 55,509,107 67,949,043
(#61,885,784)  P70,604,135 76,078,367

The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to the provision

for income tax follows:

2017 2016 2015
Income tax at statutory tax rate (P6,816,686) P35,389,503 P44,298,761
Tax effects of:
Capital gains tax 27,004,000 1,919,214 -
Movement of deferred taxes 18,476,693 12,234,739 25,291,969
Nondeductible expenses 2,748,566 1,927,557 5,407,803
Taxable income 2,643,263 26,192,274 1,634,998
Interest expense — accretion 453,365 1,702,295 -
Equity in net earnings of an associate - - {354,022)
Income subject to:
ITH - - (141,510)
Final tax (91,376,795) (8,761,447) (59,632)
Difference in tax base and accounting
base of land and land development (15,014,190) — -
Provision for (benefit from) income tax (P61,885,784) P70,604,135 £76,078,367
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Components of the Group’s net deferred tax liabilities follow:

2017 2016
Deferred tax asset recognized in profit or Joss:
Difference in the tax base and accounting base
of land and land development R15,014,190 o
Pension liabilities 4,777,203 3,960,385
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables 1,488,287 1,488,287
MCIT - 7,819,390
NOLCO - 3,935,078
21,279,680 17,203,140
Deferred tax liabilities recognized in profit or loss:
Gross profit on real estate sales 173,482,172 173,780,254
Increase in fair value due to purchase price allocation 79,740,615 84,255,436
Gain arising from change in fair value of
investment property - 35,652,305
Prepayments - 73,631
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange - 67
253,222,787 343,761,693
Net deferred liabilities recognized in profit or loss 231,943,107 326,558,553
Deferred income liabilities recognized in
other comprehensive income:
Remeasurement actuarial gains on defined _
benefit obligation 4,099,548 650,970
Net deferred tax liabilities B236,042,655 $£327,249,523

Net deferred tax liabilities acquired in GLCI amounted to 141,00 million in 2015 (see Note 10).

In 2017, PHA and WPP entered into a contract to sell to transfer and convey PHA’s investment
property with a total area of 499.99 hectares, for a consideration of B450.00 million. Prior to the
transfer, the investment property’s carrying value amounted to £399.95 million, which is also the fair
value as at December 31, 2016. As a result of the transfer, a deferred tax asset amounting to

P15.01 million arising from the difference of the investment property’s carrying amount and the cost
of the transferred land in the books of WPP amounted to 50.05 million (sce Note 13).

Capital gains tax recognized by the Group amounted to £26.94 million.
The Group has deductible temporary differences that are available for offset against future taxable

income or income tax payable for which deferred tax assets have not been recognized. These
deductible temporary differences are as follows:

2017 2016
Allowance for impairment losses B257,597.485 B257,018,682
NOLCO 146,347,537 115,575,473
Pension liabilities 7,804,174 5,857,973
Excess MCIT over RCIT 2,919,997 3,379,209
Effect of levelization of rent expense 527,545 341,901
Unrealized forex loss 223 -
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The carry forward benefits of NOLCO that can be claimed as a deduction from future taxable income

follow:
Year Incurred Amount Applied Expired Balance  Expiry Year
2017 P56,176,221 P P-  P56,176,221 2020
2016 21,549,257 {1,939) - 21,547,318 2019
2015 72,284,606 (3,660,608) - 68,623,998 2018
2014 34,858,537 (9,702,558)  (25,155,979) 2017

P184,868,621 (P13,365,105) (P25,155,979) P146,347,537

The excess MCIT over RCIT that can be carried forward and credited against tax payable follows:

Year Incurred Amount Applied Expired Balance Expiry Year
2017 P412,581 P P P412,581 2020
2016 2,066,420 (121,889) - 1,944,531 2019
2015 4,085,718  (3,522,833) - 562,885 2018
2014 5,046,461 (4,174,668) (871,793) - 2017

£11,611,180 (P7,819,390)

(B871,793) P2,919,997

NOLCO and MCIT presented in the above tables include the amount of NOLCO and MCIT of GLCIL

29. Interest Expense

2017 2016 2015

Loans payable (Note 18) B67,322,959 56,973,101 £12,243,605
Convertible loans (Note 20) 19,006,484 45,578,215 24,131,421
Short term loans (Note 17) 4,878,757 15,399,597 11,833,062
Obligation under finance lease (Note 19) 3,977,517 6,591,709 9,327,043
Installment payable (Note 19) 477,265 5,243,594 -
P05.662,982 P129,786,216 P57,535,131

30, Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company divided by the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the year.

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

2017

2016 2015

Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company P31,675,928

P35,334,467

P42,768,102

Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares * 1,762,992,918

1,720,401,466

1,676,456,880

Basic/diluted earnings per share $0.0180

P0.0205 B).02535

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury shares transactions

and new subscriptions during the year.
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2017 2016 2015
No. of shares at the beginning of year  1,990,480,889 1,990,480,889 1,823,592,000
Weighted average number of shares

issued during the year - - 84,130,250
Weighted average number of Parent

Company shares held by a

subsidiary (227.487971) (270,079,423) (231,265,410)
Weighted average number of

oummﬁnécomon shares 1,762,992,918 1,720,401,466 1,676,456,880

Diluted earnings per share is computed similar to the computation of the basic earnings (loss) per
share except that the net income attributable to the equity holders of the parent and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding should be adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The effect of the conversion option of the convertible loans is anti-dilutive as at
December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, Thus, the basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.

31

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group’s operating segments are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of the business activity, with each segment representing strategic unit that
offers different services and serves different markets. The Group has three reportable segments as
follows:

e Contract mining segment pertains to the operations of RCDC for the hauling services it provides
with mining Companies.

* Real estate segment pertains to the operations of GLCI which develops and sells innovative
master planned communities of low to mid rise residential and commercial condominiums
including student dormitories.

¢ Service contract segment pertains to the operations of CUBES which provides thermochiller
system {o certain customers. '

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Management monitors operating results for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation

- and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on income or loss and is

measured consistently with income or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Group’s
financing (including finance costs and finance income) and income taxes are managed on a Group
basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on
an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
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The following tables regarding business segments present the revenue and profit information for the

years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

2017
Contract Service
Mining Real Estate Contracts Others Eliminations Total
Revenues
External customer P247,142,428 R479475389  P1,648,727 P387,213 B~ P728,653,757
Inter-segment — - — 13,191,853  (13,191,853) -
247,142,428 479475389 1,648,727 13,579,066 (13,191,853) 728,653,758
Cost and Expenscs 233,409,78 99,639,209} (11,735,123 42,432,033 1,857,546) (689,073,698
Operating Income (Loss) 13,732,641 79,836,180 (10,086396) (28,852,967} (15,049,399) 39,580,059
Interest income 38,190 50,717 9 37,708 - 126,621
Interest expense (7,912,758) (67,082,959) (185,644)  (20,469,133) - (95,650,494)
Impairment losses - - - (578,803) - (578,803)
Finance charges - - (1,990) (10,498) - (12,488)
Other income (expense) - net (129,741) 25,907,051 370210 15,049,975  (7,384,675) 33,812,820
Provision for income tax (2,230,885) (12,835,679) - 57,423,336 19,529,012 61,885,784
Net Income (Loss) B3,497447 B25875,310 (#9,903811) PB22.599.615 (R1905,062) P39,163499
2016
Contract Service
Mining  Real Estate Contracts Others  Eliminations Total
Revenues
External cusforner P207,833,328 B605,423,264 PB7,882,924 o P~ B911,139,516
Inter-segment — - — 8,102,169  (8,102,169) -
207,833,328 605,423,264 7,882,924 8,102,169  (8,102,169) 911,139,516
Cost and Expenses (181,368,137) (493,094 431) (22,756,890) (48326,632) 8,102,169 (737,443921)
Operating Income (Loss) 116,465,191 112,328,833  (14,873,966)  {40,224,463) — 173,695,595
Gain from change in fair value
of investment property - - ~ 158,937,240 - 158,937,240
Gain on sale of investment - - - 10,257,441 - 10,257,441
Interest income 57,050 174,466 442 1,848,651 - 2,080,609
Impaiment losses - net - - (2,025,000} (1,458,521} - (3,483,521)
Interest expense (12,842,458) (56,973,101} (2,352,553) (57,618,104) - (129,786,216)
Depreciation and amertization (84,001,612) (3,540,787) (18,654250)  (6,193,101) ~ (112,479,750}
Other income (expense) - net (8,173) 16,396,148 (21,240) 2,376,878 - 18,743,611
Provision for income tax (6,179.423) (22,705,258) {67y  (41,719,387) - (70,604,135)
Net Income (Loss) P13.400,575 P45,680,299 (R37,926,634) B26,206,634 B-  P47,360,874
2015
Contract Service
Mining  Real Estate Contracts Others  Eliminations Total
Revenues
External customer B239,714,919 B590,369,661  PB2,025,000 P357,143 C B PRB2,466,723
Inter-segment - - - 20,000,000 (20,000,000) —
289,714,919 590,369,661 2,025,000 20,357,143 {20,000,000) 882,466,723
Cost and Expenses (193,384,152 (449,944,889) (13,937,031) (64,975,898) 20,000,000 (702241,970)
Operating Income (Loss) 06,330,767 140,424,772  (11,912,031)  (44,618,755) - 180,224,753
Gain from change in fair value
of investment property - - - 95,522,590 - 95,522,590
Equity in net eamnings of an
associate - - - 1,180,072 - £,180,072
Interest income 56,237 89,211 19,678 5,261,312 (4,962,336) 467,102
Remeasurement loss {Note 10) - - (2,607,117} - - (2,607,117}
Impairment losses - net (29,250) (2,671,506) - (4,202,488} - {6,903,244)
Interest expense (18,601,377) (12,251,694) (120,110)  (31,524,286) 4,962,336 (57,535.131)
Depreciation and amortization (58,208,343)  (1,524,444) (573,712) (5.960,309) - (66,266,808)
Other income (expense) - net {278,230) (2,155,451} (25,030) 6,039,031 - 3,580,320
Provision for income tax (6,759,223) (43,711,938) —  (25,607206) — (76,078,367
Net Income (Loss) R12.513,581 R78,198,950 (P15,218,322) (P3,910,039) B-  P71,584,170

Intersegment revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the “eliminations” column.
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~32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial assets and financial liabilities comprise of loans payable and due to
and from related parties. The main purpose of these financial assets and financial liabilities is to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group has other financial assets and financial liabilities such as
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables which arise directly from its operations.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities per category are equal to
the estimated fair values except for the following financial assets and financial liabilities:

2017 2016
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Loans and receivables: ,
Receivable from PAGCOR P3,042,702 P2,146,638 P3,042,702 £2,146,638
Contracts receivable 220,981,250 372,127,260 374,529,931 341,337,782
Security deposits 884,604 796,313 274,718 193,815
Other financial liabilities:
Loans payable 793,348,693  1,149,533,159 631,449,844 641,000,933
Installment payable - - 27,992,410 30,173,082
Convertible loan 522,920,562 534,000,000 423,409,346 434,000,000

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Financial assets
The carrying values of cash and nontrade receivables approximate their fair values due to the short-
term nature of their related transactions.

The fair values of noncurrent security deposits were based on the discounted value of future cash
flows using the applicable interest rates for similar types of financial instruments. The discount rate
used ranges from 2.14% to 7.97%.

Financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables and due to related parties approximate their fair
values due to the short-term nature of the transactions, The carrying amounts of loans payable equal
their fair values because the remaining terms are less than 12 months.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2; other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are based on observable market data, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that
are not based on observable market data.
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The following table shows the Group’s assets and liabilities carried at fair value:

2017
Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
AFS financial assets B B P R P
2016
Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
AFS financial assets F240,000 $240,000 P- P £240,000
Investment properties 399,952,700 — ~ 399,952,700 399,952,700
$400,192,700 £240,000 B~ P399,952,700 £400,192,700

The fair value of the investment property was obtained using the Market Data Approach. In this
approach, the value of the land was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered
within the vicinity. The technique of this approach requires the adjustments of comparable property
by reducing reasonable comparative sales and listing to a common denominator. This was done by
adjusting the differences between the subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as
comparable. The properties used as bases of comparison are situated within the immediate vicinity of
the property and were premised on the factors of location, size and shape of the lot, time, element and
others.

The latest valuation report was made in April 2017, with the observable inputs as follows:

Observable inputs Values
Land area (square meter) 4,999,414
Price per square meter £80.00
Fair value £399.5 million

Based on the analysis of the land usage surrounding the Nagtabon, Puerto Princesa investment
property, the highest and best use of the investment property is to be an eco-tourism themed/beach
resort land development,

In 2017, the Group transferred its investment property to land and land development.

The fair value in 2016 include the following observable inputs:

Observable inputs Values
Land area (square meter) 4,999,414
Price per square meter R80.00
Fair value 399.5 million

Although no sales of truly comparable land have occurred, the following are believed to provide
reasonable bases for comparison:

Observable inputs Land ] Land 2 Land 3
Land area (square meter) 45,000 41,777 29,932
Price per square meter B100.00 - B75.00 B80.00

The fair value of the investment properties was estimated by using the Sales Comparison Approach
(SCA), SCA is an approach to value that considers the sales of similar or substitute properties and
related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison, The selling
price is adjusted for certain external and internal factors ranging from negative 20% to positive 15%.
For SCA, the higher the price per sqm, the higher the fair value. Also, the higher the external and
internal factors adjustments, the higher the fair value. ’
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As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has no financial instruments carried at fair value based
on levels 2 and 3.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are liquidity risk,
credit risk and market risk. Exposure to these risks arises in the normal course of business activities.
The main objectives of the Group’s financial risk management are as follows:

e to identify and monitor such risks on an ongoing basis;
¢ to minimize and mitigate such risks; and
s to provide a degree of certainty about costs.

The BOD reviews and approves actions for managing each of these risks which are summarized
below:

a. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising
from the Group’s inability to meet its obligations when they become due without incurring
unacceptable losses or costs.

The major liquidity risk confronting the Group pertains to the daily calls on its available cash
resources in respect of claims arising from trade and other payables and the maturity of loans
payable. In this regard, the Group maintains a level of cash deemed sufficient to finance its
operations.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 based on contractual undiscounted future payments.
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. When counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the
liability is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay.

: 2017
<120 days 121-360 days >360 days Total
Financial liabilities:
Trade and cther payables
Trade
Third parties } R190,039,782 R17,176,910 E $207,216,692
Advances from third parties 343,722 223,000,000 - 223,343,722
Accrued expenses 11,414,137 2,390,501 5,100,000 18,904,638
Short-term loans* 64,688,055 77,752,375 227,658,000 370,098,430
Convertible loan* 11,077,505 398,751,246 13,091,811 421,920,562
Obligation under finance lease 958,022 25,163,213 8,624,968 34,746,203
Loans payable* 232,900,040 174,801,144 566,755,607 974,456,791
P511,421,263 £919,035,38% $821,230,386 £2,251,687,038
Financial assets:
Cash P68,703,341 B- P P68,703,841
Receivables
_Contracts receivables 633,659,495 756,501,115 163,921,408 1,554,682,015 .
Trade 38,187,271 2,956,352 1,388,982 42,532,605
Others 279,718 71,701,042 - 7,980,760
Other noncurrent assets
Receivable from PAGCOR - - 3,042,702 3,042,702
Security deposits - 481,230 403,374 884,604
£740,830,325 P767,639,739 P168,756,463 P1,677.226,527

*Including interest
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2016
<120 days 121-360 days >360 days Total
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Trade
Third parties B40,259,328 367,503,010 £30,824,281 2438,586,619
Related parties - 12,176,252 - 12,176,252
Accrued expenses 15,692,898 129,724,192 27,784,654 173,201,744
Others 6,560,321 204,489,679 - 211,050,000
Short-term loans* - 27,992,410 - 27,992,410
Instaliment payable® - 11,027,909 412,381,437 423,409,346
Convertible loan* 677,321 46,572,088 9,842,435 57,091,844
Loans payable* 204,227,065 213,692,330 404,548,435 822,467,830
P267,416,933 P1,013,177,870 885,381,242 B2 165,976,045
Financial assets:
Cash P83,721,575 o P-- £B3,727.575
Receivables
Contracts receivables 498,936,775 §97,150,419 387,192,861 1,483,280,055
Trade 504,689,841 610,754,772 413,321,965 1,528,766,578
Others 151,008,000 - - 151,008,000
Other noncurrent assets
AFS financial assets - - 243,000 243,000
Receivable from PAGCOR - - 3,042,702 3,042,702
Security deposits — — 274,718 274718
P],238,362,191 $1,207,905,191 PB04,075,246 $£3,250,342,628
*Including interest. -

b. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group’s credit risks are primarily
attributable to cash in banks, receivables and notes receivable, due from related parties and
security deposits. The Group’s receivables, notes receivable and due from related parties are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

With respect to credit risk arising from cash in banks, rcccivaBles, due from related parties, and
other noncurrent assets, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The tables below show the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets:

2017
Neither past due nor impaired
. Medium Past due but
High Grade Grade Total not impaired Impaired ‘Total
Cash in banks $68,703,841 f £68,703,541 P | P68,703,841
Receivables
Contracts receivables 1,480,062,742 - 1,480,062,742 69,058,317 4,960,956 1,554,082,015
Trade 32,420,942 - 32,420,942 8,722,681 1,388,982 42,532,605
Others - 7,687,127 7,687,127 293,633 7,980,760
Other noncurrent assets
Receivable from
PAGCOR - - - 3,042,702 - 3,042,702
Refundable deposit - 51,240,000 51,240,000 - - 51,240,000
- Security deposits 384,604 — 884,604 : — - 384,604
£1,582,072,129 P58,927,127 P1,640,999,256 R80,823,700  P6,643,571 #1,728,466,527
(Forward)
2016
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Neither past due nor impaired
Medium Past due but
High Grade Grade Total  not impaired Impaired Total
Cash in banks $89,085,003 B Pg9,085,003 P B BR9,085,001
Receivables

Contracts receivables  1,269,726,084 24,173,171  1,293,899,255 185,380,799

4,960,956 1,488.241,010

Trade 2,754,126 - 2,754,726 12,348,152 2,054,250 17,157,128
Others - - - - 2,308,403 2,308,403
Other noncurrent assets
Receivable from
PAGCOR - - - 3,042,702 - 3,042,702
Refundable deposit - 842,977 842,977 - - 842977
Security deposits 472,014 - 472,014 - - 472,014

B1,362,037,827 B25016,148 B1,387,053,975 P204,771,653

B9,323,609  P1,601,149,237

An aging of the Group’s past due or individually impaired receivables as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as folliows:

As of December 31, 2017
Past Due but not Impaired Impaired
Financial
<120 days  121-360 days >360 days Assets Total
Receivables
Contacts receivable P633,659,495 ®756,501,115  P158,960,449 £4,960,956 PI1,554,082,015
Trade 38,187,271 2,956,352 - 1,388,982 42,532,605
Others 279,718 7,407,409 - 293,633 7.980,760
Receivable from
PAGCOR - - 3,042,702 - 3,042,702
262,126,484 P766,864,876 #162,003,151 26,643,571 P1,607,638,082
As of December 31, 2016
Past Due but not Impaired Impaired
Financial
<120 days  121-360 days >360 days Assets Total
Receaivables
Contacts receivable  £112,806,108 P41,058,229 R35,516,462 4,960,956 £194,341,755
Trade 12,348,152 - - 2,054,250 14,402,402
Others - - - 2,308,403 2,308,403
Receivable from
PAGCOR — - 3,042,702 — 3,042,702
£125,154,260 £41,058,229 £38,559,164 9,323,609 P214,095,262

The Group has determined that the credit quality of all neither past nor impaired financial assets
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are classified as high grade based on the following;

Cash - based on the financial and credit standing of the counterparty.

Receivables - high grade pertains to receivables with no default in payment; medium grade
pertains to receivables with up to 3 defaults in payment; and low grade pertains to receivables
with more than 3 defaults in payment. All receivables are deemed high grade by the Group.

Security deposits - based on the credit standing/reputation of counterparty.

Receivable from PAGCOR pertains to DSI’s commission from PhilWeb that is gamished and is
under the custody of PAGCOR. The management believes that the receivable is not impaired
because of the Group’s counterclaims. .
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c. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss to future carnings, fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument as a result of changes in its price, in turn caused by changes in interest rates, equity
prices, foreign currency exchange rates and other market changes.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has
no significant foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities that could materially impact the
financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indeces and the value of individual stocks. As of December 31,2017 and 2016,
changes in fair value of equity instruments held as AFS financial assets due to reasonably
possible changes in equity indeces, with all other variables held constant, will increase unrealized
gain on equity by nil and £0.01 million, if equity prices will increase by 1%. A similar change in
the opposite direction would have decreased equity by the same amount.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no financial instruments with variable
interest rates exposed to interest rate risk as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

33.

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in 2017:

January 31,2017 Availments Payment  Interest accretion December 31, 2017

Convertible loans P423,409,346  P100,000,000 {82,000,000) R1511,216 B522.920,562
Short-term loans . 211,050,000 68,140,000 (70,090,000) - 209,190,000
Loans payable 826,857,783 730,863,200 (583,264,192) - 974,456,791
Obligations under finance lease 57,001,844 - (22,345,641) - 34,746,203
Instaliment payable 27,992,410 — (27,992.410) — —
P1,546,401,383  P899,003,200  (B705,692,243) £1,511,216 R),741,223 556

34

Agreements

Service Contracts

Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation (MMDC)

On March 8, 2011, the Group executed the contract with MMDC to haul and load beneficiated nickel
ore stockpile located at Cabangahan, Cantilan, Surigao del Sur and its hauling to the Pier Yard in
Bon-ot, Carrascal, Surigao del Sur.

In February 2015, the Group renewed its agreement with MMDC for an additional period of

three (3) years effective January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. Under the scope of work, the Group
shall excavate, load and haul more or less 500,000 wet metric tons {WMT) of ore per year at the area
specified and designated by MMDC.
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Cagdmnao Mining Corporation (CMC)

In December 2014, the Group entered into a Saprolite Mining Contract with CMC for the hauling and
extraction of mineral ores in Municipality of Cagdianao, Province of Dinagat Islands. The Contract
shall be for a period of three years, from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017, which may be
extended by written mutual agreement of the parties.

If the Group fails to deliver the required tonnage, CMC shall impose a penalty upon the Group
computed based on the required WMT multiplied $0.50 per WMT of materials not delivered.

BenguetCorp Nickel Mines, Inc. (BNMI)

In April 2015, the Group entered into a Mining Services Agreement with Arrow Freight Corporation
(AFC) for the extraction of nickel ore and other mineral products from BNMI mine pit to designated
dumping, stockyards and stockpile areas and the provision of other necessary equipment including
manpower and consumables such as fuel and oil, as maybe specified by AFC from time 1o time in
accordance with the need of the project. The agreement shall be valid for a period of three (3) years
starting April 1, 2015 and ending December 31, 2017, which may be renewed upon mutual consents
of the parties,

Mining related services recognized by the Group amounted to 8247.14 million, 8297.83 million, and
P289.71 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This includes equipment rental amounting to
P2.63 million, 26.88 million and P12.93 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Operating Iease Commitments :
On May 1, 2015, the Group entered into a lease contract with Rmarese, Inc. to lease the commercial

space for the administrative office of the Group. The lease is for a period of two (2) years
commencing on May 1, 2015 to April 30, 2017. In addition, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Accupak Philippines, Inc. to lease the premises for the warehouse of the Group located at
Calamba, Laguna. The contract is for a period of five (5) years commencing on September 1, 2015 to
August 30, 2020. In May 2016, the lease agreement with Accupak Philippines, Inc. was pre-

. terminated.

Rent expense charged in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to
£7.74 million, #6.24 million, and £13.63 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Joint Operation

In 2008, GLCI has entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) with certain landowners, for the
development of certain lots. Pursuant to the JVA, the landowners shall contribute the title and their
interest fo the lots and the Group, in turn, shall provide the necessary cash and expertise to undertake
and complete the implementation of the residential project development as development manager and
as exclusive marketing agent of the project. The Group shall pay the landowners their share in net
proceeds after deducting a marketing fee equivalent to 15.0% of the selling price.

Details of the sharing agreement follow:

Area Landowner’s
Project (in sq.m.) Location Share in Net Proceeds
Summerfields Subdivision 47,360  La Trinidad, Benguet 15.00%
North Cambridge Subdivision 10,852  Baguio City 10.00%

Courtyards Condominium 18,517  Lucban, Baguio City 12.00%
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35.

Registration with Board of Investments

CUBES

The Group is registered with the BOI as a new operator of Thermo Chilling System under the heading
Energy Efficiency Projects of the 2014 IPP on a Non-Pioneer Status under the provision of Executive
Order (EO) No. 226, otherwise known as the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

Under the Group’s registration, it is entitled to certain tax and nontax incentives which include,
among others, ITH for four (4) years from November 2015 or actual start of commercial operations,
whichever is earlier but availment shall be in no case earlier than the date of registration.

The ITH incentives shall be limited only to the revenues generated from the new activity.

Under the terms of the Group’s registration, it is subject to certain requirements, principally that of
following a specified sales volume and sales revenue schedule and securing prior permission from the
BOI before performing certain acts.

Under the Group’s application with the BOJ, it can avail of a bonus year in each of the following

cases but the aggregate ITH availment (basic and bonus years) shall not exceed eight (8) years:

a. The ratio of the total imported and domestic capital equipment to the number of workers for the
project does not exceed US$10,000 to one (1) worker;

b. The net foreign exchange savings or earnings amount to at least US$500,000 annually during the
first three (3) years of operation; and

¢. The indigenous raw materials used in the manufacture of the registered product must at least be
fifty (50%) of the total cost of raw materials for the preceding years prior to the extension unless
the BOI prescribes a higher percentage,

36.

Events After the Reporting Date

The following non-adjusting events happened subsequent to the respective dates of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries:

On March 20, 2018, the BOD of the Parent Company approved, out of the unrestricted retained
earnings as of December 31, 2017, a property dividend consisting of 260,000 shares of stock with a
new par value of B0.10 per share of RCDC and a cash dividend of #2.95 million to be applied to the
payment of any applicable withholding taxes on the property and cash dividends declared.

The property dividend ratio will be paid at 1,346 RCDC shares for every 10,000 shares of PHA with
no fractional shares to be issued.

Together with the property and cash dividends, the BOD also approved the grant of 268 million
detachable nil-paid warrant that will entitle the warrant holder to acquire one RCDC share from PHA
for each warrant held. The warrants shall be applied for listing in the PSE.

RCDC will continue to be a subsidiary of the Parent Company after the property dividend
distribution.

(VR
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
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We have examined the consolidated financial statements of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation and
Subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2017, on which we have rendered the attached report dated

April 6, 2018.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule No. 68, As Amended (2011), we are stating that the
Parent Company has one hundred fourteen (114) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares.
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Qbwin. pra..;., cm,_

Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza III
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
Unit E-1705, 17th Floor, East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Center
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at

December 31, 2017 and 2016, and each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2017
included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated April 6, 2018. Our audits were made
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
The schedules listed in the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), and are not part of the basic
consolidated financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all
material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole. '

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.
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Alexis Benjamin C, Zaragoza I

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 109217

SEC Accreditation No. 1627-A (Group A),
April 4, 2017, valid until April 3, 2020

Tax Identification No. 246-663-780

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-129-2017,
February 9, 2017, valid until February 8, 2020

PTR No. 6621351, January 9, 2018, Makati City

April 6, 2018

AR



PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Supplementary Schedules to the Financial Statements Required Under
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011)
For the year ended December 31, 2017
and

Independent Auditors’ Report

Philippine Peso




SEC Number 147584

File Number

PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Company’s Full Name)

Metro Manila, Philippines
{Company’s Address)

(02) 632 - 7714
(Telephone Number)

December 31

(Year Ending)
(month & day)

Supplementary Schedules
to the Financial Statements

Form Type

Amendment Designation (If applicable)

December 31, 2017
Period Ended Date

(Secondary License Type and File Number)



PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Supplementary Schedules Required
By the Securities and Exchange Commission
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
L. Supplementary schedules required by Annex 68-E
A Financial Assets 1
Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties
B and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) 2
Amounts Receivable from Related Parties Which are Eliminated
C During the Consolidation of Financial Statements 3
D Intangible Assets - Other Assets 4
E Long-Term Debt 5&6
Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related
F Companies) 7
Guarantees of Securities and Other Issuers B
Capital Stock 9
IL. Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations (Part 1, 47)
1L Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration (Part

1, 4C; Annex 68-C)

V. Map of the relationships of the companies within the group (Part 1, 4H)

NA: NOT APPLICABLE



-1-

PREMIERE BORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule A - Financial Assets

December 31, 2017
Name of Issuing Entity and Number of Shares or Amount Shownin |  Valued Based on Income Received and
Description of Each Issue Principal Amount of § the Balance Sheet/ | Market Quotations at Accrued (including
Bonds and Notes Notes Balance Sheet Date Dividends Received)
Loans and receivables
Cash £70,160,469 P B
Receivables :
Trade 42,532,605 - -
Contract receivables 1,554,082,015
Others 7,980,760 - -
Other noncurrent assets
Receivable from PAGCOR 3,042,702 - -
Advances to Supplier 50,532,519
Cash Advances 126,366,554
Security deposits 884,604 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets
Quoted equity security -

P1,855,982,228

- See Note 30 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule B - Amounts Receivables from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties, and
Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

" December 31, 2017
Beginning Ending Balance
Name of Debtor Balance Additions Collections Current Non-Current ' Total
Advances to officers and ' '
Employees B33,261,322 P17,716,038 (®5,895,340) $50,388,020 B $50,388,020

See Note 5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties Which are Eliminated
During the Consolidation of Financial Statements

December 31, 2017
Name and Balance at Amounts Amounts Balance at End of Period
Designation of Debtor Beginning of Additions Collected Written Off Current Non-Current Total
Period
Premiere Horizon Alliance P24,639.994 R164,169,842 266,024,912 - R122,784,924 R122,784,924
Corporation
DSl - 12,694,845 56,313,439 (43,618,594) - (43,618,594)
West Palawan Premiere _
Development Corp (WPP) 7,280,000 7,006,748 152,662,923 - (138,376,175) (138,376,175)
Redstone Construction & 153,693,010 153,693,010
Development Corporation 117,917,387 35,775,623
PH Big Bounty - 88,175 1,112,474 (1,024,299) (1,024,299)
Concepts Unplugged 459,420 459,420
Business Environment
Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) 34,640,661 34,181,241
2,807,042 2,807,042

Goshen Land Capital, Inc. 16,335,558 (13,528,516)
Premiere e-Teleservices, Inc. 254,932 254,932 - - - R
La Prima Hotel — Inc. (5,748,316) 770,860 (13,319 - (4,964,137) (4,964,137}
PH Mining and Development ' 14,267,072 14,267,072
Corporation 14,146,152 120,920 -
PH Agriforest Corporation (2,013,410) 868,067 (13,823) — (1,131,520) (1,131,520)

$207,452,958  B207,966,564  $310,522.779 - P104,896,743 £104,896,743




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule D - Intangible Assets - Other Assets

December 31, 2017
Deductions / Amortizations Other Chargés—

Description Beginning Additions Charged to cost Charged to Additions Ending

Balance at Cost and Expenses Other Accounts {(Deductions) Balance
Exclusive Right to Operate P135,444,637 - 15,049,404 B P P120,395,233
Film Rights 5,575,220 - 556,243 13,309 5,006,190

Goodwill (including

provisional goodwill) 18,308,920 — — - 18,308,920
Intangible Assets R159,328,777 — 215,605,647 P 213,309 143,710,343

See Note 11of the Consolidated Financial Statements.




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule E - Long-Term Debt

December 31, 2017
Name of Issuer and Amount Authorized Amount Shown Amount Shown .
Type of Obligation By Indenture as Current as Long-term Total
Convertible loans (8% - 10% interest rate; 3 years)
8.J.Roxas& Co., Inc. 50,000,000 - 49,098,302 49,098,302
Myka Advisory and Consultancy Services, Inc. 10,000,000 - 9,819,660 9,819,660
Tarciso M. Medslla 10,000,000 - 9,819,660 9,819,660
Asian Alliance Investment Corporation 60,000,000 - 58,729,270 58,729,270
Abigail B. Arcilla 10,000,000 - 9,734,514 9,734,514
Mr. Raul Ma. F. Anonas 46,000,000 - 44,829,161 44,829,161
Philippine Business Bank, Inc. - Trust and
Investments Center - 60,000,000 - 58,419,362 58,419,362
United Coconut Planters Life Assurance
Corporation 100,000,000 - 98,569,220 98,569,22(1)
Robinsion W. Siao 5,000,000 - 4,390,961 4,890,328
Guild Securities, Inc. 10,000,000 - 9,395,058 9,332,058
Crown Equities Incorporated 10,000,000 - 9,395,058 9,339,258
Jaime I Cabangis 7,000,000 - 6,839,258 2,229,660
One Wealthy Nation Inc. 15,000,000 - 14,629,660 14,629,
Multinational Bancorporation Enterprise
Devetopment 15,000,000 - 14,616,332 I;,gég,i gg
Jaime Cabangis and/or Manuel Federico Santos 3,000,000 - 2,870,278 0 cna 550
Roberto V. San Jose ‘ 10,000,000 - 9,528,580 & 230248
Francisco Colayco 7,000,000 - 6,839,258 ,8 8,58]
Homer Perez 6,000,000 - 5,808,581 5,808,

TIIC , 100,000,000 - 98,569,220 98,569,220




Name of Issuer and Amount Authorized Amount Shown 'Amount Shown

Type of Obligation By Indenture as Current as Long-term Total
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 161,666,667 161.666.667

{4 10 6 years; 5.67% to 6.0% per annum) 161,666,667
BDO Unibank, Inc. (5 years; 6.88 % for the first three
years and yearly repricing thereafter) 3,340,745 668,149 2,672,596 3,340,745
Philippine Savings Bank (PSB) 1,486,385 1,46,385 1,486,385
Malayan Bank (MB) (3 years; 10.0% per annum) 1,374,803 458,267.67 916,535.33 1,374,803
Unionbank (5 years, 6%-7% per annum) 79,758,066 15,951,613.20 63,806,452.80 79,758,066
Zambank (4 years, 8% per annum) 15,000,000 3,750,000 11,250,000 15,000,000
Veterans {1-5 years,6.29%-6.84% per annum) 264,565,366 38,188,455.33 176,376,910.67 264,565,366
Others financing institutions (1-2 years, 1.5%-7% per 447,264,759
annum) 266,156,661 298,684,698.80 148,580,060.20 '
#1,392,106,759 £407,701,184 £1,089,676,169 £1,497,377,353
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule F - Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)

December 31, 2017

Name of Related Party

Balance at Beginning of Period

Balance at End of Period

NONE TO REPORT



PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
. Schedule G - Guarantees of Securities and Other Issners

December 31, 2017
Name of Issuing Entity of Title of Issue of Total Amount Amount Owned by
Securities Guaranteed by the Company Each Class of Guaranteed and Person for which this Nature of
for which this Statement is Filed Securities Guaranteed Outstanding Statement is Filed Guarantee

NONE TO REPORT




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule H - Capital Stock

December 31,2017
Number of Shares | Number of Shares
Number of Issued and Reserved for Number of Shares Held by
Title of Issue Shares Qutstanding Options, Directors,
Warrants,
Authorized (Net of Treasury | Conversions and Affiliates Officers and Others
Shares) Other Rights Employees
Common stock- £0.25 par
value
Authorized 2,254,224 000 - - - - -
Issued - 1,815,480,889 - - - 403,058,474 1,412,422 415
Subscribed - 175,000,000 - - 175,000,000 - -
Treasury - (315,268,793) - 315,268,793 - -
Shares reserved for
" conversion -

See Note 22 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Supplementary Information Required Under Securities Regulation Code Rule 68,
As Amended (2011)

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of

Financial Statements :

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative

characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 |First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial v

(Revised) |Reporting Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an v
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions v
| for First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation v
and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1:Government Loans v

PFRS 2 | Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled v
Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS3  |Business Combinations

(Revised)

PFRS 4 |Insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial v
Guarantee Contracts

PFRS 5 | Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations ) ' '

PFRS 6 | Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral v
Resources

PFRS7 |Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures




Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective
Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of |
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective

PFRS 8

Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
Operating Segments | '

<

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PERS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Philippine

Accounting Standards

PAS1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1 Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Ligquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of]
Other Comprehensive Income

PAS2

Inventories




PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
PAS S Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting v
Estimates and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
(Amended)
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange v
Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
(Revised)
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements v
(Amended)
PAS 28 Investments in Associates v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures _
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and v

. |PAS32

Presentation




Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights
Issues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

\

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

SIS S

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

<

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement .

\

Amendments to PAS 39: sition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets — Effective
Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-
9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Irems

PAS 40

Investment Property

PAS 41

Agriculture




Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Similar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 |Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and v
Similar Instruments
IFRIC4 | Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease
IFRIC S |Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds
IFRIC 6 |Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific v
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment
IFRIC7 |Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies
IFRIC8 |Scope of PFRS 2 v
IFRIC9 |Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-- v
9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 |Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 11 |PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 |Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 |Customer Loyalty Programmes v
IFRIC 14 |The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations [FRIC- v
14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement
IFRIC 16 |Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign v
Operation '
IFRIC 17 |Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 | Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 |Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
‘ Instruments
IFRIC 20 |Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a v
Surface Mine




SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro

SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities

SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scape of SIC 12

SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives

SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Shareholders

SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements; Disclosures.

SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
For the year ended December 31, 2017 ‘

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning
Adjustments: _
Cumulative actuarial gains on retirement obligation
Effect of voluntary change in accounting policy of investment
property from cost model to fair value model
Gain on fair value changes on investment property, net of tax

£150,957,917
(1,768,620)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings as adjusted, beginning

149,189,297

Add: Net income (Joss) actually earned / realized during the year
Net income during the period closed to retained earnings
Less: Non-actual / unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those
attributable to cash on hand and in banks)
Unrealized actuarial gain
“Fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains)
Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to
gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP — gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained
earnings as a result of certain transactions accounted
for under the PFRS
Add: Non-actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - loss
Loss on fair value of investment property (after tax)
Provision for deferred tax

35,761,502

4,085,574

Net income (loss) actually eamned during the year

Add (less):
Dividend declarations during the year
Appropriations of retained earnings during the period
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior period adjustments
. Treasury shares

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for Dividend
Distribution, December 31, 2017

£180,865,225




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

1. Current Ratio or Working Capital Ratio

Total Current Assets

Total Current Liabilities

2. Solvency Ratio

Total Assets
Total Liabilities

3. Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Total Liabilities
Stockholder's Equity

4. Debt Ratlo

Total Liabilities
Total Assets

5. Return on Assets

Net Income
Average Assets

6. Asset-to-Equity Ratio

Total Assets
Stockholder's Equity

7. Times interest Earned

Earning Before Interest and Taxes

Interest

Audited
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 Change
2,634,818,699 2,176,606,381
1,689,543,553 1,592,854,638
1.55 0.91 0.64
4,096,552,694 3,723,636,290
3,004,377,276 2,790,006,153
1.34 133 0.01
3,094,377,276 2,790,006,153
1,002,175,418 933,630,137
3.09 2.99 0.10
3,094,377,276.00 2,790,006,153.00
4,096,552,694.00 3,723,636,290.00
0.76 0.75 0.01
39,163,499 47,360,874
3,910,094,492.00 3,574,678,935.50
0.01 0.01 {0.00])
4,096,552,694.00 3,723,636,290.00
1,002,175,418.00 933,630,137.00
4.09 3.99 0.120
72,940,697.00 247,751,225.00
95,662,982.00 129,786,216.00
0.76 1.91 (1.15)




PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Map of the relationship of the companies within the group
For the year ended December 31, 2017

PREMIERE HORIZON

ALLIANCE CORPORATION
(PARENT)
Il I
REDSTONE CONCEPTS PH AGRIFOREST PH MINING AND PREMIERE
CONSTRUCTION UNPLUGGED : CORPORATION - DEVELOPMENT HORIZON BUSINESS
& BUSINESS GOSHEN LAND (Formerly CORPORATION SERVICES (Formerly
DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL INC. Premiere (Formerly Premiere | | ta Prima Hotel inc.)
CORPORATION SOLUTIONS, INC (55%) Showbiz Biz, Inc.) Showbiz Biz, Inc.) (100%)
(80%) {(51%) (100%) {100%)
[
PH BIG BOUNTY DIGIWAVE WEST PALAWAN
ENTERTAINMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. PREMIERE
INC. {100%) (100%) DEVELOPMENT
CORP. (100%)




COVER SHEET
[1/4[7[sl8[4] [ | ] ]

bS'éEC Registration

Number
|PIR[E[MI|E[RIE[ [HORI|Z|OJN [A[LIL[I[AINCIE|l | | | | |
clo[R[PIORIAITIIfOIN [ | [ T T VI T U T T T 11T}
HENEEEEEEEE e EE.

(Company’s Full Name)
LUIN[X|T] {1[7[o[s5] [2/7[T{H [FIL|O[O/R,| [E[A[S[T] [T[O] |
IWE[R| [PIHI[L[I[P[P[I[NE] [s[TIOjC/Kl |E[X|C([HANGE |
CIE[N[TIRIE[,| [E/X|Cc|HA[N[GIE [RIO/AID[ [O/R[T/I[GA[S| |

ClE[NTIE[R[,| [PlAlsitl@] [clejT|]Y] | [ [ [} | [ ]]]
RAUL MA. F. ANONAS Tel No. 632-7715
Contact Person Company Telephone Number
SEC FORM 17-Qi
[1]2] [3]1] lofs] { [}
Month Day FORM TYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year Annual
Meeting
|
Secondary License Type, If Applicable
L1 [ | | !
Dept Requiring this Doc Amended Articles Number / Section
| Total Amount of Borrowings
l ] L | |
Total No. of Stockholders Domestic . Foreign
To be accomplished by SEC Personnel concerned
HEEEERNAER
File Number : Lcu
HEEEEEEERN
Document ID Cashier

...............................

Remarks: Please use BLACK ink for scanning purposes

................................




| |
C
T
| EmmeEe
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SEC%__N 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended: March 31, 2018

2. Commission identification number: 147584

3. BIR Tax Identification No.:043-002-727-376
4. Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter;

PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES

6. Industry Classification Code: [% (SEC Use Only)
7. Address of registrant's principal office: Postal Code

Unit 1705, 17th Floor, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. 1405

8. Registrant's telephone number, including area code(02) $32-77-1410 15

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report:

NOT APPLICABLE

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 &12 of the Code, or Sections 4 & 8 of the
RSA:

Title of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount
of debt outstanding

COMMON STOCK P 0.25 PAR VALUE 1,990.889.480 COMMON SHARES
1.648,592,000issued and listed




11. Are any or all of the securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?
Yes [X] No [] (Please refer toitem 10.)
12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

{a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule
17 thereunder or Sections 11 of RSA and RSA Rule 11{a}-1 thereunder, and Sections
26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)
Yes [X]No [ ]Notapplicable -issuer has less than 100 holders of securities

{b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 20 days.

Yes [X] No [ ] Not applicable - issuer has less than 100 holders of securities




PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

item 1. Financial Statements

The Unaudited Financial Statements as of the first quarter of 2018 are cﬁoched to
this Report.

1. The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles in the Philippines.

2. The same accounfing policies and methods of computation are followed in
the interim financial statements as compared with the most recent annual
financial statements.

Iierﬁ 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financlal Conditlon and Resulls of
Operations

The Company and its subsidiaries use the following key performance indicators: 1}
revenues; 2} gross profit / loss; 3] gross profit ratio (computed as gross profit
divided by the gross revenues); 4) net income / loss; 5) net profit ratio (computed
as net profit divided by the gross revenues); é6) net profit attributable to parent;
7)12 months tralling net income (loss) (computed as year to date net income (loss)
plus net income of the latest annual income minus the previous year to date net
income (loss); 8)12 months trailing net income (loss) per share [computed as 12
months frailing net income (loss) divided by weighted average number of
shares);?) debt-to-equity ratio [computed as total liabilities divided by total
Stockholders' Equity); 10} cumrent ratio (computed as total current assets divided
by total current liabilities); 11) debt ratio (computed as total liabilities divided by
total assets); and 12) return on investment {computed as net income divided by

investrment).

o [ March31,2018 [ March31,2017 | Inc/iDec) |
11, [Revenues | Php 117991 |  Php 150,834 | Php (32843)
3 | Gross Profit / Loss |  Php27.451 1  Php41.636 | Php(14.185)
I Gross Profit/Loss Ratio 23% 28% -5%
l Net Profit/Loss | Php (48930} | Php(32,891) | Php (16,039)

is _[NetProfit/losskatio | -41% | . 2% | -19%
16 |Net Profit / Loss : '
1 | offributable to Parent | Php (46848) |  Php (34,550) | Php (12,298)
17 -1 12 months trailing net Php 23,125 : Php 35,788 | Php (12,663)

1. . il income {loss) . N I
1 8. | railing 12months 0.01 002 -0.02
: :| eamnings{loss) per ' :
| share basic ' R B R P
March 31, 2018 | December 31, Inc/(Dec)
N . LY A ;
gl 9 lDebt fo—Equﬂy Rcho 5 ] 3791 i ] ‘_‘_3091 [ - 070 -
[To_ [Cumentratio |~ ta&l | 1ss1 | 009
{n.lpebfRatioc [ oz o7&l | 0.03
12, i} Return on Asse'rs T 01014 oa0 [ 020




During the first quarter of 2018 the Group generated gross revenues of Php
117,991thousand broken down into Php104,289thousandirom real estate sales and
Php13,702thousand from mining related services.

Gross profit in the 1¢ Quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php27,451thousand
and Php 41,636 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 14,185
thousand or 34.07%.

The Grbup's net loss attributable to the equity holder of the parent in the 1
Quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 46.848thousand and Php 34,550
thousand, respectively, which showsan increase of Php 12,298thousand or 35.59%.

- The Group's 12 months tailing net income in the 1% Quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 23,125 thousand and Php 35,788 thousand, respectively, which
shows a decrease of Php 12,663 thousand or 35.38%.

The Group's trailing net income (loss) per share in the 1 Quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to 0.01 and 0.02 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of
0.01.

The Debt-to-Equity Ratio is3.79:1 and 3.09:1 in the 1stquarter of 2018 andyear end
2017, respectively.

The Cumrent Ratio is 1.46:1 and 1.55:1 in the 1<t quarter of 2018 and year end 2017,
respectively,

The Debt Ratio is 0.79:1 and 0.76:1 in the 1%t quarter of 2018 and year end 2017,
respectively.

The Return on Assets is -0.10:1 and 0.10:1 in the 15t quarter of 2018 and year end
2017, respectively.

There were no events that triggered direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

Moreover, there were no material off-balance sheet fransactions, arangements,
obligations {including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the
Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the
reporting period.

The following are the causes for the material changes. i.e. those amounting five
percent {5%) of the relevant accounts or such lower amount, between this period
versus the previous, on a vertical and horizontal basis of analyses:

Financial Position

» Cash - As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account amounted
to Php 55,617 thousand and Php 70,140 thousand, respectively, which shows a
decrease of Php 14,543 thousand or 20.73%. Cash used in operations
amounted to Php 209,648 thousand; cash provided by investing activities
amounted to Php 107,080 thousand; while cash provided by financing
activities amounted fo Php 88,024 thousand; the aforesaid cashflows
represents the decrease during the reporting period.

» Receivables, net —As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this account

amounted to Php 1,629.259 thousand and Php 1,424,673 thousand,
respectively, which shows an increase of Php 204,586 thousand or 14.36%. The
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increase primarily came from the uncollected contract and other receivables
during the reporting period,

» Unused supplies and spare parts — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, this account amounted to Php 21,793 thousand and Php 13,004
thousand, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 8,789 thousand or
67.59%. The increase primarily came from the additional unused supplies and
spare parts accurmnulated during the reporting period.

» Other cumrent assefs= As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this
account amounted to Php 694,891 thousand and Php 301,996 thousand,
respectively, which shows an increase of Php 392,895 thousand or 130.10%. The
increase primarily came from the additional advances made for certain
projects during the reporting period.

» Cther non-current assets — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this
account amounted to Php 71,587 thousond and Php 187,868 thousand,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 116,281 thousand or 6§1.89%. The
decrease primarily came from the reclassification to other current assets of
advances made for certain projects during the reporting pericd.

» Trade and other payables - As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this
account amounted to Php 1,335,870 thousand and Php 907,372 thousand,
respectively, which shows an increase: of Php 428,498 thousand or 47.22%. The
increase primarily came from the increase in unpaid frade and accrued
expenses during the reporting period.

» Purchased land payable - current — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, this account amounted to Php 124,990 thousand and Php 148,905
thousand, respectively, which shows adecrease of Php 21,915 thousand or
14.72%. The decrease primarily came from the payments made during the
reporting perod

¥ Loans payable - cumrenf — As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this
account amounted to Php 515,382 thousand and Php 407,701 thousand,
respectively, which shows an increase of Php 107,681 thousand or 26.41%. The
increase primarily came from the additional loans availed during the reporting
petiod

» Obligations under finance lease - cumrenf - As of March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, this account amounted to Php 19,957 thousand and
Php 26,121 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 6,164
thousand or 23.60%. The decrease primarily came from the payments made
during the reporting period

Performance

> Revenues - The Group'srevenues in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 117,991 thousand and Php 150,834 thousand, respectively,
which shows a decrease of Php 32,843thousand or 21.77%.

Revenue from the real estate sales in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 104,289 thousand and Php 144,770 thousand, respectively,
which shows a decrease of Php 40,481 thousand or 27 .94%.



Revenue from the mining related services in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 13.702 thousand and Php 6,065 thousand, respectively,
which shows anincrease of Php 7,637 thousand or 125.92%.

The net decrease in revenues were due fo the slowdown of consimqﬁon works
and the increasedservices rendered to mining client(s) during the 15t quarter of
2018.

Cost of real estate sold -~ The Group's cost of real estate sold in the first quarter
of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 64,543 thousand and Php 81,010 thousand,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 16,467 thousand or 20.33%. The
costs of the real estate sold decreased due 1o the slowdown of construction
worksduring the 15 quarter of 2018,

Cost of services -The Group's cost of real estate sold in the first quarter of 2018
and 2017 amounted to Php 25,997 thousand and Php 28,188 thousand,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 2,191 thousand or 7.77%. The Cost
of services decreased due to lower personnel costs and other direct costs

-during the 1t quarter of 2018,

Professional and legal fees - The Group's professional and legal fees in the first
quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 9.264 thousand and Php 10,294
thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 1,032 thousand or
10.03%. The decrease primarily came from the lower fees and decrease in
services rendered by professionals during the 19 quarter of 2018.

Personnel cost -The Group'spersonnel cost in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017
amounted to Php 9,181 thousand and Php 11,845 thousand, respectively,
which shows a decrease of Php 2,464 thousand or 22.49%. The
decreaseprimarily came from the lower personnel requirements of operations
during the 1 quarter of 2018.

Adverfising -The Group's adveriising expenses in the first quarter of 2018 and
2017 amounted to Php 7.432 thousand and Php 8,046 thousand, respectively,
which shows a decrease of Php 614 thousand or 7.63%. The decrease primarily

came from the lower advertising expenses required by operations during the
1t quarter of 2018,

Taxes and licenses -The Group's taxes and licenses in the first quarter of 2018
and 2017 amounted to Php 3,297 thousand and Php 8,981 thousand,
respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 5,684 thousand or 63.29%. The
decrease primarily came from the decrease in taxes incurred and taxable
transactions of the Group during the st quarter of 2018.

Depreciation and amortizafion -The Group'sdepreciation and amorfizationin
the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 4,165 thousand and
Php 3,742 thousand, respectively, which shows anincrease of Php 403
thousand or 10.71%. The increase primarily came from the increasedbalance
of depreciable assets during the 15 quarter of 2018.

Rentals and utflities and supplies — The Group'srentals and utilities and
suppliesin the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 2,320 thousand
and Php 2,998 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of
Php 678 thousand or 22.63%. The decrease primatily came from the lower

rentals, utilities, and supplies required by operations during the 15 quarter of
2018.



Transportation & Travel — The Group's transportation and travel in the first
quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 2,328 thousand and Php 1,538
thousand, respectively, which shows an increase of Php 790 thousand or
51.39%. The increaseprimarily came from the increased fransportation & travel
expenses required by operations during the 15t quarter of 2018.

Enfertainment, amusement and recreation - The Group'sentertainment,
amusement and recreation in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to
Php 1.620 thousand and Php 701 thousand, respectively, which shows an
increase of Php 919 thousand or 131.03%. The increase primarily came from the
increased entertainment, amusement, and recreation expenses required by
operations during the 1t quarter of 2018.

Repairs and maintenance-The Group'srepairs and maintenance in the first
quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php 533 thousand and Php 786
thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 253 thousand or
32.18%. The decrease primarly came from the decreased repairs and
maintenance required by operations during the 15t quarter of 2018.

Other Expenses - The Group's other expenses in the first quarter of 2018 and
2017 amounted to Php 7.796 thousand and Php 5,725 thousand, respectively,
which shows an increase of Php 2,071 thousand or 36.17%. The increase
primarily came from the increased other expenses required by operations
during the 1¢ quarter of 2018.

Interest Income — The Group's interest income in the first quarter of 2018 and
2017 amounted to Php 1,746 thousand and Php 788 thousand, respectively,
which shows an increase of Php 958 thousand or 121.63%. The increase
primarily came from the increased balance of interest eaming assets during
the 1t quarter of 2018.

Other income - net - The Group's other income -net in the first quarter of 2018
and 2017 amounted to Php 6,086 thousand and Php 3.6460 thousand,
respectively, which shows an increase of Php 2,426 thousand or 66.28%. The
increase primarily came from higher service income earned from operations
during the 14 quarter of 2018 which is presented as part of the said account.

Interest expenses — The Group’s interest expenses in the first quarter of 2018
and 2017 amounted to Php 36,278 thousand and Php 27.369 thousand,
respectively, which shows an increase of Php 8,909 thousand or 32.55%. The
increase primarily came from increased balance of interest bearing liabilities
during the 13t quarter of 2018.

Provision for income tax (benefif) -The Group's provision for income tax
(benefit) in the first quarter of 2018 and 2017 amounted to Php -nil- thousand
and Php 3,073 thousand, respectively, which shows a decrease of Php 3,073
thousand or 100.00%. There were no provisions for income fax (benefit]) during
the 1stquarter of 2018.

For assessing impairment of goodwill, a test of impairment is performed annually or
when circumstances indicate that the canying value may be impaired.

~ There were no seasonal aspects that had any material effect on the financial
condition or results of operation.

During the 1stquarter of 2018 the Group's gross revenues and net loss amounted o
Php 117.991thousand and Php 48,930 thousand, respectively; while, in 2017the
same amounted o Php150,834 thousand and Php 32,89 1thousand, respectively.in
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the 15t quarter of 2018 and 2017, The equity holder of the Parent amounted to
Php44,848 thousandand Php 34,550 thousand in net loss, respectively.

As of the March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, The Group's fotal assets
amounted to Php 4,564,145 thousand and Php 4,096,553 thousand, respectively:
the total liabilities of the same aforesaid period amounted to Php 3,610,900
thousand and Php 3,094,378 thousand, respectively.

The Parent Company incorporated West Palawan Premiere Development Corp. as
a 100% owned subsidiary.

The Parent Company increased its ownership interest in Redstone Construction

and Development Corporation to 80%. The increase took effect in the 1st half of
2015, '

In the 1st half of 2015, the Company acqguired Goshen Land Capital, Inc. and
obtdined a 55% ownership thus gaining control.

In 19 half of 2015,the Parent Company increased its ownership to the Concepts
Unplugged: Business Environment Solutions, Inc. (CUBES) an affiliate in 2014. The
increase in ownership gave the parent the power to control.

tem 3.No relevant disciosure covered by this ltem was made since there is no event that

tiggered any direct or contingeni financial obligation that is material to the
company. Likewise, no material off-balance sheet transactions, arangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the
company with unconsolidated entities or other persons was created duiing the
reported period.
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hairman & President/CEO

ate: May 10, 2018
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Date: May 10, 2018



CONSOL[DATED BALANCE SHEETS

{In Php000.00)

. PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

~_Unaudited _Audited |

March 31, Decamben
2018 A, 2€I17

Current Assets.

ASSETS

‘Cash

55, 617 ) 160

‘Receivables - - 620259 | 142673 | )
RealEstateHeldforSale ~ 825,560 | 824,985 .

‘Unused supplies spare parts

21 793 | 13 004

‘Other current assets

694,891 301,996 :

{Total current assets

3,227,121 | 2,634,818 .

H

Noncurrent portion of installment contracis receivable
'Land and land development

..220981 2209811
5846811 578789

intangible assets o e o
‘Property and equtpment )

143 710 ,
315 065 :

'Other noncurrent assets

71,587 | 187,368

Total Noncurrent assets

1,337,024 ;| 1,461,734

Total Assets

4,564,145 | 4,096,553 |

_LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY ) )

‘Current Liabilities

[Trade and other payables

1335870 907372

Short term debt T 217523 | 209,100
ncometaxpayable . i
Current portion of Iong term debt: N
. Purchased land payable B - 126990 148,905 ;
_ Loans payable 515382 | 407,701 .
Obligation under finance lease 19,957 26,121 |
‘Total Current Liabilities [ 2,216,065 1,699,543 !
‘Noncurrent Liabilifies I A
.Pension Liabilittes = e e B} 13,383 ° 13,183

[doncurrent ppmon of long term debt:
Purchased fand payable

5229211 522821
b :

20367 " 20367,

Loans payable

_.Obligation under finance lease

8625 8625

Capital gains tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities-Net

236043 236,043

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

1,394,835 | 1,394,835 |

‘Total Liabilities

3,610,900 | 3,094,378 |

iRetaIned eamlngs
‘Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary

I_Equity aitributable to equity holders of the parent T

Unreallzed gain OI'IVAFS fnanclal assets i o - --

47151 412715,
660741 660?4!

Cagg i 186719
_(133,664)  (133,664).

:Equity attributable to Parent
‘Equity attributable to non-oontrolllng interests

.. 544,996 591,845
408249 ¢ 410331

‘Total Equity

953,245 ' 1,002,175

;Total Liabilites and Equity

4,564,145 ' 4,096,553

i ¥

t
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'PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
‘Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income S
(In Php000.00) ’ | E | 5

e > 9018 " 2017 5
REVENUES | '
|Real estate sales B R " 104, 239 144, 770 !
san_g related senvices i 13,702 : 6,065 |
Total revenue T | 117,991 ' 150,834
:Costs of real estate sold o ; | 64,543 81,010 |
. Costs of senvices g 25,007 | 28188 |

'GROSS PROFIT | 27451 41,636 |
r : i é

{ _For gh[ee ‘months ended March 31

—— R S ] I
{OTHER COSTS AND EXPENSES P e
' Professional and legal fees ‘ [ 9 264 10,296 .
-
%

Personnel costs | 91811 11,845,
Advertsing | | 7432 8,086

Taves and icenses o} B2OT! BOBY
 Depreciation andamortizaon ! % 4165 3762
.Rent and utilities and supplies N 2320 2998

,,,,,, -

Transportation and travel __ 12328 1,538
 Entertainment, amusement and recreatlon P 1620 7011

'Repairs and maintenance oo b B33) 786

' Others b : 1 779% . 5725 |
i 47,935 54,680 |
i

! i i
! I SR SN G SO O
/INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE OTHER | SRS B 5

INCOME AND CHARGES __ B 20, 434) 13, 043)

| I
R SOV U VR PRE ,;
'OTHER INCOME(CHARGES) e mim o . ;

] 1?46, 788 |

6,086 | 3,660 |
(36,278) (27, 369)|
(28, 445) (22, 920),

Other mcome-net L

3
H
/Interestincome |
H

|

L

i Interest expenses ' !
; : ;
; x
i

l

iiﬁéomé(LOSS) BEFORETAX | f"..ff'_'.__f_'..f["‘_'.."_j"' B 930) (35.964)

j

PROVISlON FOR INCOME TAX (BENEFITS) - (3,073)

;nggows (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD |

5

(48,930) (32,801)/

3 ‘ i

i
%
i
\INCOMEFROM CONTINUING OPERATION i I
:Equny holders of the parent ?__w_f____mmmmmmm_ (46,8 848) (34 5__1
!
i
B

!
i
i

i Non-controlling interest ? (2,082) 1,660 |
: (48,930)% (32,891);

9

g v
i ;
| !?
; S

'NET INCOME (LOSSL FOR THE PERIOD | (48, 930) (32, 891)
o 5 B i
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(In 000) .

For three months ended March 31

2018 2017
CAPITAL STOCK
|ssued and subscribed shares 472,715 472,715
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 66,074 66,074
UNREALIZED GAIN ON AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS - (335)
PARENT COMPANY SHARES HELD BY SUBSIDIARY (133,664) (133,999)
RETAINED EARNINGS
Beginning 186,719 150,958
Net income (loss) (46,848) (34,550)
Balance at end of the period 139,871 116,408
ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Balance at beginning of the period 410,331 399,638
Increase -
Total beginning balance of non-controlling interest of subsidiary 410,331 399,638
Net income(loss) attributable to non-controlling interest {2,082) 1,660
Balance at end of the period 408,249 401,297
TOTAL EQUITY 953,245 922,160
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|PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES | '
|UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

g(ln Php000.00)

:CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE o

_For three months ended hhrch 31

20 18 2017
.CASH FLOWS FROMOPERATNG ACTVMTES i
; Income (loss) before income tax (4“@ ,g?,“g)

H

Adjustments for: Py
Depreciaion and Amortization o 17,630
Gain on change in FV of investment property -
__Gain on sale of investment In associates I
Interest Expenses 36278 27,369
Interest Income © {1,746} {788).

.Operating income (foss)before working capitaichanges | 3231 14,814

‘Decrease (increase) in: - R
" Unused supplies b (8789) (209),

_ _ Other current assats 392,895)! (47,4770)7;
Increase (decreass) in: R O R
’ Trade payables ' 428 498 71, 667
:Net cash flows from (used in) operation | (175,116)! (131,377);
Interest received e e LT48 T 788
Inferest paid R L o __{gng_zs)w (27,369)
lncorne tax paid - {9).
_Net cash flows from (used in) operating activiies {209,648) (157,967)
'CASH FLOWS FROMINVESTING ACTVITIES j ‘,
Cash received from sales of investment in assoc ates o b B
Acquisition of property andequipment i (3309) _(3,825)
'Land and land development costs e i (5892)i  (1,878)!
fIncrease (decrease) in_other noncurrent assets | 116,281 (16)!
i Net cash (used in) provided by 107,080 {5,719};
‘CASH FLOWS FROM FINACING ACTIVITIES ; =
 Proceeds from: : ,‘ :
. _Short-term loans 8, 423 1;@151

_Shares held by subsidiary
Payment of

Purchased land payable ... .o RROIS
Obligations under finance lease ' 18, 164} (21 17{5)=

{Purchase of shares held by subsidiary e |19 ggwl_
‘Increase (decrease) in obligations under finance lease | {6,022);
:Cash flows from financing activities © 88,024 101,437}
'NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH ?
EQUIVALENTS

'BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD T go460 03100

TOTAL CASH AT THE BEGINNING 70,160 90,310;

\CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHE

P
)

'END OF THE PERIOD T T sy | ié','dé"ﬂ

H
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PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In Php 000)

L.

Corporate Information and Status of Operations

Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation (PHA or the Parent Company), was
incorporated in the Philippines on January 13, 1988 and listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE) on May 5, 1997. The Parent Company’s primary purpose is o engage
in business activities relating to entertainment, gaming, hotel and leisure,

The Parent Company's registered address is Metro Manila, Philippines. Currently, the
Parent Company acts as holding company to Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
and Subsidiaries (the Group).

On December 29, 2011, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the

amended articles of mcorporcmon of the Parent Company which include the
following:

a. change of name of the corporation from Premiere Entertainment Philippines, Inc.
{o Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation;

b. reduction in deficit amounting®1,236.44 million by decreasing the authorized
capital stock from £1,800.00 million to B563.546 million (see Note 16); and

c. Amendment of secondary purpose clause to include the authority to engage in
non-gaming business such as mining and real estate.,

On April 26, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company's application on the
freatment of quasi-reocrganization in the consolidated financial statements.

On May 27, 2013 and September 30, 2014, the stockholders and Board of Directors
(BCD}, respectively, approved the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation (AOH)
of the Parent Company to change the Parent Company's principal place of business
to Unit E-1705, 17th Floor, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. On November 7, 2014, the SEC approved the
amendment to the AOI

Cash

This account consists of:

Unaudited
March 31, 2018 Audited 2017
Cash on hand B 1456 B 1456
Cash in banks 54,161 68,704
B55,617 ' B70,160

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.
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3. Receivables - net

This account consists of:

Unaudited
March 31, 2018 Audited 2017
Contract receivables P1,499,636 £1,333,101
Trade receivables 60,930 42,533
Advances to officers and employees 61,833 50,388
Qthers 14,930 7,981
1,637,329 1,434,003
Less allowance for impairment losses 3,070 9,330
£1,629,259 B1.424,673
Aging of Receivables
Account Title Total 1-30 31-60 61-90 Over 9
1 | Contract receivables 1,499,636 152,349 564,413 550,398 234,476
2 | Trade 60,930 28,325 4,670 10,953 16,982
3 | Advances to 6.783 A
employees & officers 61,833 ? 20,345 18,798
4 | Others 14,930 13,196 1,734 - 15,907
Total 1,637,329 200,653 591,162 580,149 265,365
4. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:
Unaudited
March 31,2018 Audited 2017
Advances to suppliers and contractors P 271,832 B271,832
Input Tax — Value Added Tax 19,039 15,608
Advances for projects 391,551 -
Tax Credits 9,699 11,288
Prepayments 886 787
Others 1,883 2,481
P 694,891 B301,996
5. Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of:
Unaudited
March 31, 2018 Audited 2017
Trade payables P 549291 $219,393
Advances from third parties 223,344 223,344
Accrued expenses 159,297 95,692
Customers® deposits and advances 124,097 89,449
Retention payable 83,289 82,942
Others 196,552 196,552
P 1,335,870 P907,372
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